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VISION, MISSION & CORE VALUES

VISION STATEMENT

To be a leading Company in meeting the growing energy
requirements for the country by increasing domestic production
through conventional and non-conventional sources and marketing
of cheaper energy alternatives while ensuring optimal value for all
stakeholders.

MISSION STATEMENT

To maximize energy production with a sustainable growing return
to the shareholders and recognizing our people as the most
valuable resource.

CORE VALUES

Professional Competence
Creative and Proactive
Ethical Behavior and Integrity
Authority with Responsibility
Accountability
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COMMITTEES OF THE

B

OARD

The Board has constituted four Committees to
discharge its responsibilities in effective manner:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Audit Committee

Board Finance, Procurement and Risk
Management Committee

Board Business Development & Strategy
Committee

Board Human Resource and Nomination
Committee

Board Audit Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2024
Ms. Huma Pasha Chairperson
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member
Rana Tarig Mehmood Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board Audit

Co

mmittee include the following:

Review of annual and interim financial
statements of the company, prior to their
approval by the Board;

Review any financial, operational, or legal
matters which could significantly impact the
financial statements;

Facilitating the external audit and discussion
with external auditors on major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any
matter that the auditors may wish to highlight;

Ensuring coordination between the internal
and external auditors of the company;

Review of management letter issued by
external auditors and management’s response
thereto;

Suggesting the appointment of external
auditors and any questions of resignation or
removal of the external auditors, audit fees,
and the provision by the external auditors of
any service to the Company in addition to the
audit of the Company’s financial statements.

Considering the objective and scope of any
non-financial audit or consultancy work to be
undertaken by the external auditors and
reviewing the remuneration of this work;

Review the scope and extent of the internal
audit, audit plan, reporting framework, and
procedures and ensure that the internal audit
function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the company;

Consideration of major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response
thereto;

Recommending the hiring or removal of the
chief internal auditor;

Determination of compliance with relevant
statutory requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the best practices
of corporate governance and identification of
significant violations thereof;

Review Code of Conduct and related policies
applicable to employees, officers, and director
and other agents and associates of the
Company as and when required;

Determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the company’s assets;

Ascertaining that the internal control system
including financial and operational controls,
accounting system and reporting structure are
adequate and effective;

Review of the company’s statement on internal
control system prior to endorsement by the
Board of Directors;

Overseeing  whistle-blowing
protection mechanism; and

policy and

Consideration of any other issue or matter as
may be assigned by the Board.
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BOard Finance = Review any changes to financial authorities

relating to procurement.

Procurement and Risk Risk Management
Man agem ent Committee* = |dentification and management of strategic

business risks of the Company;

Composition as at June 30, 2024 . _ -
= Review the risk identification and management

Mr. Nasir Mahmood Chairman process developed by management to confirm
Khosa it is consistent with the Company’s strategy
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member and business plan;
Rana Tarig Mehmood Member = Review management's assessment of risk
periodically and provide an update to the
Terms of Reference Board in this regard;
The Terms of Reference of the Board Finance, = Monitor steps management has implemented

to manage and mitigate identifiable risks, and
assess the effectiveness of the Company’s
Risk Management processes and recommend

Procurement and Risk Management Committee
include the following:

) improvements;
Finance ] . o
. . ) = Review the controls, risk mitigation measures,
* Review and recommendation of operational and extent of disclosure with the objective of
plans, long-term prole?tlons_ and financing obtaining reasonable assurance that all risks
plans for the Company’s projects/operations are being effectively managed and controlled;

for approval by the Board of Directors; ) )
) ) = Review with the Company’s counsel, legal
= Evaluation and recommendation of the Annual matters which could have a material impact on
Operating and Capital Budget; the Company and related public disclosure,

= Review of policies relating to financial matters including through theliggligil statements; and

prepared by management for Board approval; = Providing regular updates to the Board of
and Directors on key risk management issues and

= Review corporate objectives, strategies its proposed mitigating factors.

developed by the Management and the Environmental, Social, and Governance
Company’s overall performance against the (ESG)

Annual Strategy;
= Recommend to the Board the Company’s

Procurement overall strategy with respect to ESG Matters;
* Review and recommend the Annual = |dentify the Company's ESG risks and
Procurement Plan of the Company and the opportunities;

required budget; ol
= Qversee the development of related policies,

* Review the Company’s policies and practices, and performance with respect to
procedures for the procurement of goods, ESG matters across the company; and
services, and works and recommend changes
for improvement thereof; = Report to the Board on ESG matters that may

_ ) affect the business, operations, performance,

= Ensure compliance by management with or public image of the Company or are

applicable laws, including the PPRA Rules otherwise pertinent to the Company and its

while  procuring goods, services, and stakeholders and, if appropriate, detail actions
consultancy; taken in relation to the same.

= Review special cases of procurement referred

gy . the/ _dMana/gement. for fseeklﬂg *Subsequent to year-end, the Committee was reconstituted
'reCt'V_eS guidance/instructions 0 the into the Board Finance and Procurement Committee and the
Committee; and Board Risk Management Committee.
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Board

Business

Development & Strategy

Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2024
Mr. Ahmad Ali Quddusi Chairman
Mr. Momin Agha Member
Mr. Sagib A. Saki Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board Business
Development & Strategy Committee include the
following:

Review the corporate medium to long-term
business development strategy of the
company prepared by the management and
recommend it to the Board.

Review proposals/feasibility studies for special
projects to assess possibilities for prospective
business expansion and investment.

Review the proposed annual Business Plan to
ensure alignment with the overall strategy of
the company and endorse the same for
approval of the Board.

Review and advise on business opportunities
in upstream sectors such as Farm-in in
Exploration Joint Ventures

Review growth possibilities
projects and diversification.

through new

The Committee shall consider any other issue
or matter as may be assigned by the Board

Board Human Resources
and Nomination
Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2024

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board Human
Resources and Nomination Committee include
the following:

Recommend the human
management policies to the Board

resource

Review organization structure periodically and
recommend changes in the organization,
functions, and reporting relationships of
management positions;

Establish plans and procedures that provide an
effective basis for management control and
monitoring over company manpower;

Review and recommend to the Board,
succession plans and talent management for
critical Senior positions;

Determine appropriate ‘Limits of Authority’ and
approval procedures for personnel matters
requiring decisions at different levels of
management.

Recommend to the Board for consideration
and approval a policy framework for
determining the remuneration of directors and
senior management;

Ensure that compensation policies and
procedures are aptly designed to attract and
retain the caliber of personnel needed to
manage the business effectively;

Recommend annual increments and bonus to
employees;

Review and recommend to the Board the
development and training needs of employees
and Board members in line with the strategy of
the company;

Undertaking, annually, a formal process of
evaluation of performance of the Board as a
whole, its members and its committees; either
directly or by engaging an external
independent consultant;

Develop professional and ethical standards
and values to be incorporated in the Code of

Mr. Sagib A. Saki Chairman
Ms. Huma Pasha Member
Mr. Muhammad Ramzan

Member

Malik

Ethics / Code of Conduct and provide support
to the Board on various aspects of employee
relations;

= Employee workplace policies concerning
safety and wellbeing, engagement, work-life
balance, diversity and inclusion and other
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standards detailed within the Company’s Code
of Conduct;

Formulation and oversee the implementation
of gender diversity policy for recruitment,
promotion along with gender pay gap analysis
within the organization;

Identify, evaluate and recommend candidates
for vacant positions including casual vacancies
on the Board including candidates
recommended by the Government for
consideration of shareholders or in case of
casual vacancy to the board of directors after
examining their skills and characters that are
needed in such candidates; and

Monitoring whether satisfactory orientation at
the time of induction is provided for new
directors with respect to their Board and Board
Committee responsibilities
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD & COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

Board Finance, Board Business
Board of Directors Board Audit Committee Procurement & Risk Development & Strategy

Name of Director Management Committee Committee

Meetings  Attendance  Meetings Attendance  Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance

Mr. Nasir Mahmood Khan Khosa 16 16 - - 5 5

Ms. Huma Pasha 16 16 7 7 - -

Mr. Momin Agha* 13 13 - - - - 4 4
Mr. Muhammad Mahmood* 3 3 - - - - 1 1
Mr. Muhammad Ramzan Malik** 5 5

Mr. Ahmad Ali Quddusi 16 16 - - - - 6 6
Rana Tarig Mehmood 16 16 7 7 5 5

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed 16 16 7 7 5 5

Mr. Sagib Ahmad Saki 16 16 - - - - 6 6
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem** 11 11 - - - -

Board HR & Nomination

: Special Purpose Fee paid to the Directors

Name of Director Committee

Meetings  Attendance  Meetings Attendance (Rupees)
Mr. Nasir Mahmood Khan Khosa - - - - 3,150,000
Ms. Huma Pasha 20 20 3 3 6,900,000
Mr. Momin Agha* - - - - 2,400,000
Mr. Muhammad Mahmood* - - - - 600,000
Mr. Muhammad Ramzan Malik** 2 2 3 1 1,200,000
Mr. Ahmad Ali Quddusi - - 3 3 3,600,000
Rana Tarig Mehmood - - - - 4,200,000
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed - - 8 3 4,650,000
Mr. Sagib Ahmad Saki 21 21 3 3 6,750,000
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem** 19 19 3 3 4,950,000

The Board was reconstituted on July 3, 2023

* Mr. Muhammad Mahmood was replaced by Mr. Momin Agha w.e.f September 01, 2023
** Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem was replaced by Mr. Muhammad Ramzan Malik w.e.f. Feb 27, 2024

GHPL | Annual Report 2024



HIGHLIGHTS 2023-24

Operational Highlights
09 08 05 1,554 1,517

Development Discoveries Line Km 2D Sqg. Km 3D
seismic acquired seismic acquired

Exploration
/ Appraisal wells wells
Operational activity in partner-operated blocks

Financial Performance
Rs. 137.9 Rrs.103.2 Rs. 69.2 Rrs.29.78 50%

Earnings per Share  Net Profit Margin
(basic and diluted)

Net Sales Revenue Gross Profit Profit after taxes
(billion) (billion) (billion)

Production Results
7,823 183 210

Oil/condensate Gas LPG
(BPD) (MMSCFD) (MTD)

Net GHPL'’s share of Production

Net Sales Revenue
(Products)

Net Sales Revenue
(Main JVs)

Chanda
3% Others
Sinjhoro 11%
6% MKK
28%
Gambat
South
9%

Tal
27%
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SIX YEARS SUMMARY

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Operational Performance

Seismic Survey - 2 D line km 619 938 640 1,045 2,257 1,554
Seismic Survey - 3 D sqg. km 614 510 730 600 1,009 1,517
Wells Drilled - Exploratory / Appraisal numbers 21 9 10 13 13 9
Wells Drilled - Development numbers 10 5 4 10 11 8
Qil & Gas Discoveries numbers 8 3 3 6 6 5)
Qil / Condensate BPD 9,094 7,780 7,781 7,899 7,730 7,823
Gas MMSCFD 257 233 227 219 196 183
LPG MTD 197 181 189 206 201 210
Sales - Gross Rs. billion 86.8 81.4 75.7 111.3 139.2 152.1
Sales - Net Rs. billion 77.6 71.9 67.1 99.0 126.0 137.9
Gross Profit Rs. billion 59.6 49.4 46.3 71.4 92.4 103.2
EBITDA Rs. billion 58.1 58.0 55.1 73.8 94.3 111.5
Profit before Taxation Rs. billion 54.4 50.4 48.4 65.2 85.8 100.9
Profit after Taxation Rs. billion 34.6 33.0 33.5 43.2 49.2 69.2
Share Capital & Reserves Rs. billion 136.7 165.1 193.5 232.5 291.8 353.9
Non Current Liabilities Rs. billion 17.6 17.7 16.8 14.3 84.2 74.7
Current Liabilities Rs. billion 15.6 16.4 12.7 89.0 42.3 67.2
Total Equity & Liabilities Rs. billion 169.8 199.2 223.0 335.8 418.3 495.8
Fixed Assets Rs. billion 48.2 49.9 48.7 47.0 49.3 46.3
Long term investment & deposit Rs. billion 3.0 3.4 5.3 42.2 61.6 71.3
Long term loan including current portion Rs. billion 8.4 7.9 6.7 5.6 4.4 0.2
Receivable from GoP Rs. billion - - - 64.0 70.4 71.9
Deferred tax asset Rs. billion - - - - - 5.8
Trade Receivables Rs. billion 84.7 104.5 109.0 141.5 191.7 223.0
Cash, Bank & Term Deposits Rs. billion 22.2 30.0 49.2 31.4 35.7 71.2
Other Current Assets Rs. billion 3.3 3.6 4.1 4.2 5.0 6.0
Total Assets Rs. billion 169.8 199.2 223.0 335.8 418.3 495.8
Opening Balance Rs. billion 2.6 16.2 23.5 36.6 21.4 30.7
Operating activities Rs. billion 19.8 14.4 27.1 26.8 13.5 46.9
Investing activities Rs. billion (1.4) (2.5) (9.0) (37.4) 6.2 6.5
Financing activities Rs. billion (4.8) (4.6) (5.1) 4.7) (5.3) (19.3)
Changes in Cash & Equivalents Rs. billion 13.6 7.3 13.1 (15.2) 14.4 34.1
Effects of exchange rates changes Rs. billion - - - - - (0.0)
Reserved against Mining project Rs. billion - - - - (5.0) (5.0)
Cash & Equivalents at year end Rs. billion 16.2 23.5 36.6 21.4 30.7 59.8
Total Contribution Rs. billion 40.3 42.4 40.4 47.8 66.8 68.2
Gross Profit Margin % 77% 69% 69% 72% 73% 75%
EBITDA Margin % 75% 81% 82% 75% 75% 81%
Pre tax Margin % 70% 70% 72% 66% 68% 73%
Net Profit Margin % 45% 46% 50% 44% 39% 50%
Return on equity % 29% 22% 19% 20% 19% 21%
Return on average capital employed % 40% 30% 25% 29% 28% 25%
Debtor turnover Times 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.7
Debtors Collection period Days 293 428 519 413 439 499
Current ratio Times 7.3 8.9 12.9 7.1 6.4 5.6
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 1.4 1.8 3.9 1.3 1.0 1.3
Cash Dividend Rs. billion 5.0 5.0 7.0 5.0 5.0 7.0
Earnings per Share Rs. 16.8 15.8 16.0 20.5 22.7 29.8
Dividend per share Rs. 2.4 2.4 3.4 2.3 2.2 3.0
Dividend Payout Ratio % 14% 15% 21% 12% 10% 10%
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= Net Sales: Reached a record-high Rs. 138 billion in FY
2023-24, up from Rs. 78 billion in FY 2018-19, driven by
higher exchange rates and realized prices.

= Production Trends: Gas production and sales volumes
declined due to natural depletion of mature fields, while
oil volumes remained stable due to new discoveries.

= Profit After Tax: Achieved an unprecedented Rs. 69
billion in FY 2023-24, compared to Rs. 35 billion in FY
2018-19, primarily due to higher net sales.

= Total Assets: Stood at Rs. 496 billion as of June 30
2024, up from Rs. 170 billion in 2019, reflecting growth
in long-term investments, GoP receivables, trade debts,
and cash reserves.

= Trade Receivables: Increased from Rs. 85 billion in FY
2018-19 to Rs. 223 hillion in FY 2023-24, mainly due to
inter-corporate circular debt. Record collections of Rs.
118 billion in FY 2023-24 slowed the growth in
receivables.

= National Contribution: Contributed Rs. 306 billion to
the national exchequer over the last six fiscal years
through corporate taxes, dividends, royalties, and
government levies.
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VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Vertical Analysis

Sales - Net 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Cost of Sales -23% -31% -31% -28% -27% -25%
Gross Profit 77% 69% 69% 72% 73% 75%
Profit before Taxation 70% 70% 72% 66% 68% 73%
Profit after Taxation 45% 46% 50% 44% 39% 50%
Share Capital &Reserves 81% 83% 87% 69% 70% 71%
Non Current Liabilities 10% 9% 8% 4% 20% 15%
Current Liabilities 9% 8% 6% 27% 10% 14%
Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Non Current Assets 33% 27% 27% 28% 43% 37%
Current Assets 67% 73% 73% 72% 57% 63%
Total Assets 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Horizontal Analysis (base year: 2018-19)

Sales - Net 100% 93% 86% 128% 162% 178%
Cost of Sales 100% 126% 116% 153% 187% 193%
Gross Profit 100% 83% 78% 120% 155% 173%
Profit before Taxation 100% 93% 89% 120% 158% 185%
Profit after Taxation 100% 96% 97% 125% 142% 200%
Share Capital &Reserves 100% 121% 142% 170% 213% 259%
Non Current Liabilities 100% 101% 96% 82% 480% 426%
Current Liabilities 100% 105% 82% 572% 272% 432%
Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 117% 131% 198% 246% 292%
Non Current Assets 100% 96% 106% 167% 321% 327%
Current Assets 100% 128% 143% 213% 210% 275%
Total Assets 100% 117% 131% 198% 246% 292%
Composition of Equity & Liabilities (%) Composition of Assets (%)
100% 100%
-FEEERRR
80% 80%
60% 60%
40% 40%
20% 20%
0% 0%
18-19  19-20 2021 21-22 2223 23-24 18-19  19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24
Equity ®Non-Current liabilities  ®Current liabilities Non-Current Assets = Current Assets
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION

2022-23 2023-24

Rs. billion % Rs. billion

Gross Revenue 139.2 113% 152.1 108%

Less: Operating, G&A and Exploration (11.5) -9% (11.4) -8%
Expenses

127.6 104% 140.7 100%

Add: Income from Financial Assets 126 10% 26.1 18%

Income from Non-Financial Assets 0.8 1% 0.0 0%

Less:Finance & Other Expenses 18.4 -15% 256 -18%

Total Value Added . 100% . 100%

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

Employees Remuneration and Benefits 0.9 1% 1.0 1%
Government as:
Company Taxation 36.6 30% 31.8 22%
Sales Tax, Excise Duty etc. 13.1 11% 14.2 10%
Royalty and other levies 15.3 12% 16.4 12%
Dividends 5.0 4% 7.0 5%
70.0 57% 69.4 49%
To Society 0.1 0% 0.0 0%
Retained in Business:
Depreciation 26 2% 3.2 2%
Amortization 4.7 4% 5.1 4%
Impairment 0.1 0% 0.4 0%
Net Earnings 44.2 36% 62.2 44%
51.6 42% 70.9 50%

alue Added 122.7 100% 141.3 100%

DISTRIBUTION OF VALUE ADDED

m Government
Society & Employees

Retained in business

GHPL | Annual Report 2024



QUARTERLY ANALYSIS FY 2023-24

1st 2nd 4th

Annual

Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SALES - NET Rs. billion 38.0 34.2 33.7
Royalty and other levies Rs. billion (4.6) 4.2) (3.8)
Operating expenses Rs. billion (4.8) 4.2) (4.5)
GROSS PROFIT Rs. billion 28.6 25.8 25.4
Exploration & prospecting expenditure Rs. billion (0.2) 0.3) 0.1)
General and administrative expenses Rs. billion (0.2) 0.3) (0.5)
Net impairment loss on financial assets Rs. billion - - -

Other income / (expenses) - net Rs. billion 3.3) 0.3 (2.8)
Finance income / (cost) - net Rs. billion 17 24 24
Share of loss of associate Rs. billion (0.8) (0.9) (0.6)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION Rs. billion 25.9 27.6 24.8
Taxation Rs. billion (9.0) (12.0) (10.3)
PROFIT AFTER TAX Rs. billion 16.9 15.6 14.5

Gas MMBTUS in million 13 13
Qil BBLs in million 0.8 0.7
LPG MTs in thousands 20 20

3rd
Quarter
21%
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC
SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE)
GOVERNANCE RULES, 2013
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pwc AFFERGUSONE.CO

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
THE PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in
the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by
the Board of Directors of Government Holdings (Private) Limited (the Company) for the year
ended June 30, 2024.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors'
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Chartered Accihuntants
Islamabad

Date: February 28, 2025
UDIN: CR202410083YlopaQtii

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
74-East, 2nd Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, P.0.Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51} 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924; <www.pwc.com/pk>

KARACHI “LAHORE "ISLAMABAD



Statement of Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Name of company: Government Holdings Private Limited (The Company)
Name of the line ministry: Ministry of Enerqy (Petroleum Division}
For the year ended: June 30, 2024

L This statement presents the overview of the compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (hereinafter calied “the Rules”) issued for the purpose
of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a public sector company is
managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector governance.

il The company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

[ sr. | Provision of the Rules ¥ ~ [Rule [ Yes | No ‘Remarks
Mo | - ' - 1% Tickin the
| i ; t ! Relevant
i : eul b o box :
1. The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, 2{d) Declaration from
as defined under the Rules. the director is taken
v at the time of

appointment only.

2.

The Board has at least one-third of its total members as | 3(2)

independent directors. At present the board (as of June 30, The directors were

2024) includes: nominated by

e Government of

Category Names Pakistan on July 3,
Independent | « Mr Nasir Mehmood Khosa 2024.
Director ¢ Mr Rana Tariqg Mehmood

¢ Mr Ahmad Ali Quddusi
e Mr Saqib A. Saki
¢ Ms Huma Pasha

Executive + Mr. Masocod Nabi

Director

Non- « Mr Momin Agha

E)_ncecutive e Mr Muhammad Ramzan Malik

Directors o Ms Saira Najeeb Ahmed

Sr. No Director Number of directors

1. Male 7

2. Female* 2

v
*According to Companies Act 2017 section 1564 subsection (1)
proviso, public interest companies shall be required to have
female representative on the board as may be specified by the
Commission.
. Pagelof 7

N“~/




Sr.
‘No

|3.

l : : Provision of the Rules

| The“direc'tors have confirmed that none of them is serving as

a director on more than five public sector companies and listed
companies simultaneously, except their subsidiaries.

| ‘Rule
no.

| 3(5)

Yes | No

Remarks

Tick in the
Relevant
‘box

The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper
criteria given in the Annexure to the Rules in making
nominations of the persons for election as board members
under the provisions of the Act.

3(7)

All the nominations
on the Board of
Directors are made
by the Federal
Government.

The office of the chairman shall be separate and his
responsibilities distinct from those of the chief executive.

4(1)

The chairman has been elected by the Board of Directors
except where Chairman of the Board has been appointed by
the Government.

4(4)

All the nominations
on the Board of
Directors, including
the Chairman, are
made by the
Federal
Government.

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the
chief executive on the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well
as the guidelines specified by the Commission.
{Non-applicable where the chief executive has been
nominated by the Government)

5(2)

N/A

All the nominations
on the Board of
Directors are made
by the Federal
Government.

(a) The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct” to
ensure that professional standards and corporate values are
in place.

(b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures, including posting the
same on the company's website. {(www.paking.com)

(¢) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls
for the identification and redressal of grievances arising from
unethical practices.

5(4)

The Board has established a system of sound internal control,
to ensure compliance with the fundamental principles of
probity and propriety; objectivity, integrity and honesty, and
relationship with the stakeholders, in the manner prescribed in
the Rules.

5(5)

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate
conflict of interest policy to lay down circumstances or
considerations when a person may be deemed to have
actual or potential conflict of interests, and the procedure for
disclosing such interest.

11.

5(5)
(bXii)

The Board has developed and implemented a polit_:y on anti-
corruption to minimize actual or perceived corruption in the
company.

5(5)(
b} {vi)

2.

| service.

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by
establishing open and fair procedures for making
appointments and for determining terms and conditions of

5(5)
{cXii)

NM‘-:/-
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!i Sr. Provision of the Rules Rule | Yes | No Remarks
gho nO.  “Tick in the
! Relevant
{ il i box !
13. | The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the | 5(5)
company’s internal rules and procedures relating to public | (c)iii)
procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing and v -
technical standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods and
services.
14. | The board has developed a vision or mission statement and | 5(6) v -
corporate strategy of the company.
15. | The Board has developed significant policies of the Company. | 5(7)
i A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended, has v -
been maintained.
16. | The board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of | 5(8}
any service delivered or goods sold by the Company as a
public service obligation and has submitted its request for N/A .
appropriate compensation to the Government for
consideration.
17. | The Board has ensured compliance with policy directions | 5{(11})
requirements received from the Government. v -
18. | a) The board has met at least four times during the year. 6(1) v -
b) Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda | 6(2}
and working papers, were circulated at least seven days v Notice for 181, 185,
before the meetings. 192 and 195
meetings of BoD
could not be
circulated within
the stipulated time
due to the urgent
nature of the
agenda. However,
the same
requirement has
been waived off in
the respective
meetings by BoD
¢) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded | 6(3)
and circulated. v
19. | The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of | 8(2)
senior management on annual basis and held them v -
accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals and key
performance indicators set for this purpose.
20. | The board has reviewed and approved the related party
transactions placed before it after recommendations of the | 9 v
audit committee. A party wise record of transactions entered -
into with the related parties during the year has been |
maintained.

\
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Provision of the Rules i Rule Remarks

Sr. Yes | No

' No | no.

Tick in the
Relevant

21.

(a) The board has approu;ed the profit and loss account for,
and balance sheet as at the end of, the first, second and third
quarter of the year as well as the financial year end.

(b} In cases of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half yearly

| accounts and undertaken limited scope review by the auditors.

(c) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on
company's website.

10

N/A

v

The Board has
approved the profit
or loss and balance
sheet relating to
the first, second,
and third quarter
for the year but not
within the
stipulated time
period.

arranged by the company to apprise them of the material
developments and information as specified in the Rules.

In order to acquaint the Board members with the wider scope
of responsibilities concerning the use of public resources, to
act in good faith and in the best at least one orientation course
shall be arranged annually for the directors.

All the board members underwent an orientation course |

11

23.

(a) The board has formed the requisite committees, as
specified in the Rules.

b) The committees were provided with written term of
reference defining their duties, authority and composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were
circulated to all the board members.

(d) The committees were chaired by the following non-
executive directors:

No. of

Members
Human Resource & . .
Nomination Commitiee 3 Mr. Sagib A. Saki
Finance, Procurement 3
and Risk Management
Committee

Audit Committee 3

Committee Name of Chair

Mr. Nasir Mahmood
Khosa

Ms. Huma Pasha

Business
Development & 3
Strategic Commitiee

Mr. Ahmad Ali
Quddusi

12

24,

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, by
whatever name called, with their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment.

13

25.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have
requisite qualification prescribed in the Rules.

14

26.

The company has adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards notified by the Commission in terms of sub-section
(1) of section 225 of the Act.

16

27.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Act and the Rules
and fully describes the salient matters required to be
disclosed.

17

Sivu A
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[ Sr.

No

Provision of the Rules

| Rule
no.

Yes | No

Remarks

Tick in the
‘Relevant
box

28.

The Directors, CEO and executives, or their relatives, are not,
directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract
or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company
except those disclosed to the Company.

18

29.

(a) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the
remuneration packages of individual directors has been set in
place and no director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

(b} The annual report of the Company contains criteria and
details of remuneration of each director.

19

30.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed
by the chief executive and chief financial officer before
consideration and approval of the audit committee and the
board.

20

31.

The board has formed an audit committee, with defined and
written terms of reference, and having the following members
as at June 30, 2024

Name of Category Professional
Members background

Ms Huma Pasha Independent ICAF, Hubco,
director Dawood Hercules
Ms Saira Najeeb Non-executive Universily of
Ahmed Director Londen, NEPRA
Finance Division,
WAPDA

Mr Rana Tariq Independent Sheikh Zayed
Mehmood director Medical College,
Pakistan
Agricultural
Research Council

The Chief Executive and Chairman of the Board are not
members of the audit committee.

21
(1)
and
21

(2)

32,

(a) The chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor, and a
representative of the external auditors attended all meeting of
the audit committee at which issues relating to accounts and
audit were discussed.

(b) The audit committee met the external auditors, at least
once a year, without the presence of the chief financial officer,
the chief internal auditor and other executives.

(c) The audit committee met the chief internal auditor and
other members of the internal auditor and other members of
the internal audit function, at least once a year, without the
presence of chief financial officer and the external auditors.

21(3)

33

(a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit function,
which has an audit charter, duly approved by the audit
committee.

(b) The chief internal auditor has requisite qualification and
experience prescribed in the Rules.

(c) The internal auditor reports have been provided to the
external auditors for their review.

22

iy Td

Ncci/°
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F‘S_r. Provision of the Rules Rule | Yes | No Remarks

hog ' n0- “Tickin the

i }.Rolevant
‘bhox

34, | The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the | 23
| firm and all its partners are in compliance with International | (4) v -
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of
| Ethics as applicable in Pakistan. _ -
35. | The auditors have confirmed that they have observed | 23
applicable guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to provision | (5) v -
of non-audit services.

SOAFLL

Neto Malmmt fthe o 04
Name: Naiy Mahmeod Khosa Name: Va tonol Mobj

Chairman Managing Director/CEO
Dated: Dated:
Islamabad Islamabad
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Schedule Il

Explanation for Non-Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been
complied with except for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made
by the company to seek compliance by the end of next accounting year.

account for and balance sheet as at the end of,
the first, second, and third quarter of the year as
well as the financial year. However, the Quarterly
Financial Statements were not prepared within
one month of the relevant quarter because cost
statements from respective operators are issued
within 30 days of the relevant meonth as per the
Petroleum Concession Agreement (PCA)
approved by the Government of Pakistan (GoP).

There is a time limitation for the

sr. | Rule/sub- : ;
No | rule No. Reason for Non-Compliance Future course of Action
1. 10 The Board has approved the profit and loss

preparation and approval of quarterly
financial statements because cost
statements are issued by the JV
operator within 30 days of the
relevant month as per the signed
Petroleum Concession Agreement.
However, efforts will be made to
ensure preparation of Quarterly
Financial Statements within the
required time including taking up the
matter with the respective operators.

RIS

Neas. Maluort [C[ny-

Azl A

-
Name: Nagir Mabmamd khesa

Chairman

Dated:
Islamabad

Name: Ma_tf c)’ud Ndb}.

Managing Director/CEQ

Dated:
Islamabad
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended June 30, 2024

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are
pleased to present the Directors’ Report for the
year ended June 30, 2024 along with the Annual
Report, the audited Financial Statements of the
Company, and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

INTRODUCTION

GHPL also has 33.33% equity stake in Pakistan
Minerals (Private) Limited (PMPL), a company
that holds an indirect 25% non-operating share
in the Reko Dig Mining Project for the extraction
of gold and copper.

EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION PORTFOLIO

The Company, Government Holdings (Private)
Limited (GHPL) was incorporated in the year
2000 as a private limited company under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now governed by
Companies Act 2017).

GHPL is one of the three public sector Qil and
Gas Exploration and Production (E&P)
Companies operating under the governance of
the Petroleum Division of the Ministry of Energy,
Pakistan.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Company is fully owned by the Government
of Pakistan (GOP) and all the members of the
Board of Directors are nominated by the GOP.

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Company holds 100% equity stake in
Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited (ISGS)
and Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL).

ISGS is mandated by GoP to oversee the import
of transnational gas pipelines into the country
and make improvements in Pakistan’s strategic
Oil and Gas infrastructure. PLL's principal
activity is to import, transport, market and
distribute Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG).

Collectively, the Company and its subsidiaries
are referred to as “the Group”.

GHPL also holds a 25% equity interest in
Pakistan International Qil Limited (PIOL), an
E&P Company based in Abu Dhabi, UAE.
Moreover, as part of its diversification strategy,

GHPL acts as a non-operator partner in onshore
petroleum E&P joint ventures and is the licensee
of offshore petroleum exploration licenses in
Pakistan.

GHPL holds a diverse portfolio of exploration
and production assets across the country with
international presence in UAE. It is partner with
several local and foreign E&P companies, which
includes OGDCL, PPL, UEP, MOL, OPPL, POL,
MPCL, Al-Haj Enterprises, and KUFPEC.

The Company's onshore E&P investment
portfolio within the country as at year-end
comprised of:

i. 55 Exploration Licenses under various
Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCA)

ii. 102 Development and Production (D&P)
Leases

Further, the Company through its 25% equity
interest in PIOL holds working interest in Abu
Dhabi Offshore Block — 5.

The Company is also the licensee of two (02)
offshore blocks within the country, under
Production Sharing Agreements (PSA).

The Company is constantly exploring
opportunities to enhance its investments in the
Energy Sector.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Seismic Activities

A total of 1,554 L. Km of 2D seismic and 1,517
Sq. Km of 3D seismic lines were acquired during
the year in different non-operated blocks of the
Company. In 2022-23, the corresponding figures
were 2,257 L. Km and 1,009 Sgq. Km,
respectively.
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Drilling Activities

Following drilling activities were carried out in
different non—operated blocks of the Company.

ells Status 2023-24 2022-23
Explor.atlon & 9 13
Appraisal
Development 8 11
Discoveries

A total of 5 discoveries were made during the
year ended June 2024:

= Taj South-1, Takhat-3 (C sand) and Isra-1
discoveries were made in Mirpurkhas Block
operated by UEPL.

= Kharo-1 discovery was made in Khewari
Block operated by OGDCL.

= Jhim East-1 discovery was made in Shah
Bandar Block operated by PPL.

These discoveries resulted in an addition of
~3.57 BCF of natural gas and ~0.1 MMBO of
oil/lcondensate to the Company’s hydrocarbon
resources/reserves.

Production

GHPL's share of average daily production from
all fields during the year ended June 2024 is as
follows:

2023-24 2022-23

Qil (BOPD) 7,823 7,730
Gas (MMSCFD) 183 196
LPG (MT/D) 210 201

The Company's share of production in the year
2023-24 remained consistent with the previous
year, accounting for 11%, 6%, and 10% of the
Country’s overall Oil, Gas and LPG production.

(* %age of Company’s production to the Country’s overall production
as reported in PPIS Annual Report for FY 2023-24)

Reserves

The total net proved (1P) reserves of the
Company as of June 30, 2024, are 7.06 MMBO

(2023: 8.23 MMBO) of oil/condensate and
240.46 BCF (2023: 262.92 BCF) of gas.

Major Development and Producing Assets

Mirpur Khas & Khipro Blocks (GHPL's
working interest (WI) 25%)

= Operated by UEPL.

= Total average production from these two
blocks was ~266.61 MMscfd (Million
Standard Cubic Feet Per Day) of Gas, ~8,382
Bpd (Barrels per day) of Condensate and
~91.13 MTD (Metric Tons per day) of LPG.

= Several well intervention, reservoir
surveillance and production optimization
activities were conducted to maintain
production and enhance recovery.

= Various compression and efficiency
improvement  projects were initiated/
completed during the year. Production of
LPG was enhanced through segregation of
LPG-rich gas from lean gas and selling gas
through separate Point of Deliveries (PODs)
after revised Gas Sales Agreements with
Gas Buyer.

Tal Block (GHPL's WI 15%)

= Operated by MOL Pakistan

= Total average production was ~243.15
MMscfd of Gas, ~14,829 Bpd of Oil &
condensate & ~446 MT/D of LPG.

= Multiple production curtailments were faced
as gas production was curtailed due to M/s
SNGPL. CPF & GPF load management was
implemented to reduce machine fatigue and
sustain continuous operation.

= Several well interventions, surface well
testing, and reservoir monitoring activities
were also carried out during the year for
production continuity and enhancement.

= Projects completed in TAL Block include
drilling and completion of Makori East 5 ST
which has been successfully commissioned
on January 22 2024.

Nashpa Block (GHPL's Wi 15%)

= QOperated by OGDCL
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Average production was ~100.31 MMscfd
Gas, ~11,518 Bpd Oil and ~364 MTD of LPG.
Compression remained operational during
the year.

Several well interventions, surface well
testing, and reservoir monitoring activities
were carried out during the year for
production continuity and enhancement.
Nashpa-11 development well successfully
brought on production along with Nashpa-4
well after rig-based workover during the year.

Chanda D&PL (GHPL's WI 17.5%)

Operated by OGDCL

Average production was ~7.72 MMscfd,
~2,067 Bpd and ~9.89 MT/D of LPG (Metric
Ton per Day).

A reservoir simulation study has been
completed to evaluate further potential and
enhance recovery.

Chanda-7 development well was brought on
production after successful driling &
completion.

Chanda-4 well brought back on production
after successful rig-based workover.

Tando Allah Yar Block (GHPL's Wi 22.5%)

Operated by OGDCL

Average production was ~24.59 MMscfd
Gas, ~670 Bpd Oil/Condensate and ~66
MTD of LPG.

Production from the field is being processed
at KPD-TAY Plant.

Several well intervention activities and
workovers carried out to bring shut-in wells
on production.

Dars West-2 & Nim East-1 wells brought on
production after successful d rilling

Gambat South Block (GHPL’s Wi 25%)

Operated by PPL

Total average production was around
~136.25 MMscfd Gas, ~1,354 Bpd
condensate and ~10.72 MTD of LPG.
Regular reservoir surveillance and well
intervention activities were conducted. G&G

and reservoir studies are in progress to
identify further drilling prospects.

= Flowline for Shahpur Chakar North-1 was
completed and well brought on production.

= Alternate development options are under
review to exploit the reserves of Hatim-Faiz
discovery due to its low heating value gas.

= Options for execution of GPF-Ill/Zafir project
are under evaluation.

Sinjhoro Block (GHPL's WI 22.5%)

= QOperated by OGDCL

= Average production from fields was ~ 38.37
MMscfd Gas, ~2,015 Bpd Oil/Condensate
and ~160 MT/D of LPG.

= Several well-intervention jobs were carried
out to maintain/enhance production.

= Production from newly drilled Chak-63/2 well
and Chak-63/4 well have commenced after
tie-in with Sinjhoro gas processing facilities &
LPG Plant.

Nim Block (GHPL’s WI 22.5%)

= QOperated by OGDCL

= The average production was ~12.1 MMscfd
Gas, ~499 Bpd Oil/ Condensate and ~17.54
MT/D of LPG.

= Production continued from Mangrio-2,
Saand-1 and Saand-2 wells. Saand-1/2 well
are being processed at KPD-TAY LPG plant.

= Based on surface well testing results of Low-
pressure wells in Nim Block, alternate sales
arrangements are being evaluated by the JV
to bring these wells on production.

Guddu Block (GHPL's WI 22.5%)

s Operated by OGDCL

= Average production from the field was around
~7.22 MMscfd Gas.

= Gas from the Guddu field is being supplied to
a third party (M/s Engro).

= Umair SE-1 exploratory well injected into
system during the year.

Bitrism Block (GHPL's W1 22.5%)

= Operated by OGDCL
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= Average production was around ~3.37
MMscfd Gas, ~156 Bpd Condensate and
~10.25 MTD of LPG.

= Bitrism wells are being processed at Sinjhoro
processing facilities.

= Compression is awaited for Bitrism West
wells for production continuity.

Khewari Block (GHPL's Wi 22.5%)

= QOperated by OGDCL

= Average production was around ~12.14
MMscfd Gas, ~29 Bpd Condensate and
~1.93 MTD of LPG.

= Kharo-1 exploratory well was successfully
tested and completed. Its tie-ins are being
planned to bring the well on production.

= Evaluations for deployment of Compressor in
progress.

Jhal Magsi South D&PL (GHPL's W1 22.5 %)

= Operated by OGDCL

= PC Contract for construction of Jhal Magsi
Processing Facility has been awarded and
site execution works are in progress.

= M/s SSGCL is also laying Sales gas line in
parallel with frequent stoppages attributed to
security issues.

Zarghun South D&PL (GHPL's WI 17.5%)

= QOperated by MPCL

= Average production was ~3.32 MMscfd Gas.

= Production is on continuous decline after
water breakthrough in ZS-4 well.

s Security issues remain a threat which are
being managed for smooth operations.

= G&G and reservoir studies are in progress
and development well ZS-5 planned in FY
24-25.

Dhok Sultan Block (GHPL’'s WI 25%)

= QOperated by PPL

= Total average production was ~2.25 MMscfd
Gas, ~1277 Bpd Oil and ~11.49 MTD of LPG.

= Owing to stable production performance of
the well, Dhok Sultan JV opted to buyback
the rental Oil Handling Facility (OHF).

= Based on G & G evaluation, a well DS-3 is
planned to be drilled in FY 24-25.

Mehar Block (GHPL's WI 25%)

= Operated by UEP

= Average production was ~10.25 MMscfd Gas
and ~309 Bpd Condensate from four wells.

= Sofiya-4 well brought on production.

= Several well intervention activities were
carried out along with process optimizations
to maintain/ enhance production and reduce
OPEX.

= Sofiya-3 Remote Compression was also
commissioned in March 2024.

Sawan D&PL (GHPL's W1 22.5%)

= Operated by UEP

= The average gas production was around
~20.50 MMscfd.

= Sawan Central Processing Plant (CPP) is
currently processing raw gas from all Middle
Indus fields as per Single Plant Operation
(SPO) philosophy agreed by all Middle Indus
JVs.

= Several well intervention activities and
application of deliquification techniques for
off-loading of wells & continuity of production
were carried out to maintain/enhance the
production.

Zamzama D&PL (GHPL's W1 25%)

= Operated by OPPL

= The average production was ~6.66 MMscfd
Gas and ~33 Bpd condensate.

= The field is on natural decline.

= Several well intervention activities including
reservoir surveillance, water shut-off jobs
were carried out to revive production.

Others

= Average production from the Mazarani
D&PL (GHPL’'s WI: 12.5%; Operator: PPL)
was ~1.76 MMscf[d and ~04 Bpd
Condensate.

= Average production from Chachar D&PL
(GHPL's WI: 25%; Operator: PPL) was ~0.68
MMscfd Gas.
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= Average production from Pariwali D&PL
(GHPL’'s WI: 17.50%; Operator: POL) was
~3.02 MMscfd Gas, ~175 Bpd Condensate
and ~10.58 MTD of LPG.

= Average production from Minwal D&PL
(GHPL’'s WI: 17.50%; Operator: POL) was
~52 Bpd Condensate.

= Jakhro D&PL (GHPL's WI: 22.50%;
Operator: OGDC) ceased to flow and
production could not revive even after several
attempts. Field didn’t produce during 2023-
24. Exploration prospects are being
evaluated.

SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATES

Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited
(Subsidiary)

Interstate Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGS)
was incorporated on August 04, 1996 as a
private limited company.

Projects being pursued by the ISGS include:

- Iran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project (IP-
Project);

- Turkmenistan - Afghanistan - Pakistan - India
(TAPI) Gas Pipeline;

- Pakistan Stream Gas Pipeline (PSGP) Project
(formerly known as North-South Gas Pipeline);
and

- Strategic Underground Gas Storage (SUGS)
Project.

The Company holds 100% shares of ISGS.
Pakistan LNG Limited (Subsidiary)

Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) was incorporated
as a public company on December 11, 2015. In
compliance with the GoP decision, PLL merged
with its associated company, PLTL (Pakistan
LNG Terminals Limited) w.e.f January 01, 2021
with PLL being the surviving entity.

The principal activity of PLL is to import, re-
gasify, transport, market, and distribute
Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG).

Pakistan International Qil Limited
(Associate)

The Company along with consortium members;
PPL (operator), OGDCL and MPCL were
awarded offshore Block-5 in Abu Dhabi on 31
August 2021. The consortium companies have
established an independent company namely
Pakistan International Qil Limited (PIOL) in Abu
Dhabi with each entity having 25% equity stake
in PIOL. PIOL holds a 100 % stake during the
exploration and appraisal of oil and gas
opportunities in Offshore Block 5. In case of a
successful commercial  discovery, the
consortium will have the right to a production
concession to develop and produce commercial
discoveries. Abu Dhabi National Oil Company
(“ADNOC") will have an option to acquire upto
60% stake during the production phase of the
concession.

The Field Development Plan (FDP) of three pre-
existing Discoveries_was submitted by PIOL in
December 2023. The due diligence and
governance process is being undertaken by the
regulator. First drilling campaign commenced in
April 2024 focusing on drilling of three appraisal
and one exploration wells. Two appraisal wells
have been completed successfully and
suspended after verifying structure and
volumes. Drilling of first exploratory well is
currently underway. G&G and
Facilities/Infrastructure studies are in process to
further assess the potential of Block-5.

Pakistan  Minerals (Private) Limited
(Associate)

The Company, along with OGDCL and PPL
(collectively, the SOEs), entered into
agreements for the reconstitution of the Reko
Diq project with Barrick Gold Corporation,
Balochistan Mineral Resources Limited, and the
Government of Balochistan in December 2022.
The SOEs hold 25% equity stake in the project
through PMPL, divided equally among these
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companies. Barrick Gold holds 50% of equity in
the project along with management and
operatorship rights, while the Provincial
Government of Balochistan holds 10% free-
carried, non-contributing share with an
additional 15% held by BMRL owned by the
Provincial Government of Balochistan.

The Reko Diq project is currently undergoing a
comprehensive feasibility study. Project
financing arrangements are also underway, with
construction set to follow. Production is
projected to begin in 2028.

During the year, based on directions from the
GoP, the SOEs are in the process of discussing
and evaluating the terms of a potential
transaction with a sovereign foreign investor with
respect to divestment in the Reko Diq Project
and advisors were appointed through PMPL to
assist in this regard. The divestment and its
conditions will require significant approvals
including from the Federal Cabinet of GoP,
Board of Directors and shareholders of the
SOEs and other investors of the Reko Diq
project.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Accordingly, a corresponding amount has been
recognized as receivable from GoP at June 30,
2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The key financial results of the Company are

summarized as under:
2023-24 2022-23

Rs. in million
Sales 137,927 126,036
Gross Profit 103,203 92,362
Profit before tax 100,934 85,799
Profit after tax 69,150 49,160
EPS - basic (Rs.) 29.78 22.71

In FY 2021-22, the Government of Pakistan
(GoP), through GHPL, secured a short-term
finance facility from the National Bank of
Pakistan (NBP) to fulfil its commitment towards
the Government of Balochistan (GoB) to acquire
an equity stake for GoB in the reconstituted
Reko-Diq Project. The same year, this loan
facility was renewed, for a tenor of seven years,
including a two-year grace period, effective from
December 31, 2022. The loan carries an interest
rate of 6-month KIBOR + 0.20% and is
repayable in equal semi-annual instaiments of
the principal amount starting from June 30,
2025. The loan is secured against a GoP
guarantee and letter of comfort.

GoP is making semi-annual interest payments
on the loan as they become due.

As of year-end, the outstanding loan amount
including interest is Rs. 71,899 million.

Sales Revenue

During the year, the Company’'s net revenue
increased by 9% to its highest level at Rs.
137,927 million, reflecting a substantial Rs.
11,891 million increase from the previous year's
revenue of Rs. 126,036 million.

The revenue increase is mainly attributable to a
positive foreign exchange variance of Rs.
16,935 million as the realized exchange rate for
the year (Rs. 283 / US$) was higher as
compared to the previous year (Rs. 245 / US$).

Gas sales revenue increased by Rs. 1,925
million to Rs. 60,459 million, predominantly
driven by favourable exchange rate variance of
Rs. 8,481 million that offset negative variances
in both price (Rs. 2,240 million) and quantity
(Rs. 4,316 million). The net negative volume
variance is attributable to the natural decline in
Mirpur Khas, Khipro, Tando Allah Yar, Tal,
Mehar, Sawan and Zamzama JVs as well as
forced production curtailment by SNGPL.

Oil sales revenue also increased by Rs. 8,502
million to Rs. 65,024 million, largely due to
favourable foreign exchange variance of
Rs. 8,454 million and quantity variance of
Rs 2,211 million that offset negative price
variance of Rs 2,162 million. The net positive
volume variance is driven by increased oil
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production in Mirpur Khas, Sinjhoro and Nim
JVs. The average realized oil prices reduced to
$80.3/bbl in FY24 from $ 83.3/bbl the previous
year, in alignment with the decline in
international oil prices.

Additionally, LPG sales revenue grew by Rs.
1,464 million to Rs. 12,444 million, driven mainly
by higher LPG prices and increased sales
volume.

Profitability

In the fiscal year, the Company recorded its
highest profit after tax at Rs. 69,150 million
surpassing the previous year's profit of Rs.
49,160 million. These results translated into
earnings per share of Rs. 29.78 up from Rs.
22.71 in the previous year.

The Company’s pre-tax margin improved from
68% in FY 2022-23 to 73% primarily due to
growth in sales revenue and finance income,
effectively offsetting increased expenses under
the heads of royalty, exploration & prospecting
expenditure and share of loss in associates.

Similarly, the Company’s net profit margin also
increased to 50% from 39% in the previous year,
primarily due to aforesaid factors and reversal of
income tax provision against depletion
allowance.

Resultantly, the Company's profits increased by
Rs. 19,990 million, marking a 40.7% year-over-
year increase.

Trade Receivables

During the year, the Company collections from
customers substantially increased to Rs. 118
billion (2023: Rs. 87 billion), translating into
collection ratio of 77% compared to 63% in the
previous year. Major factor in the increased
collections was payments by gas customers
subsequent to government measures to address
the circular debt issue including revision in gas
prices.

Consequently, the rate of accumulation of the
Company’s trade debts reduced to Rs. 2.6 billion

per month in 2023-24 compared to Rs. 4 billion
per month in FY 2022-23. As at June 30, 2024,
the Company'’s trade debts stood at Rs 222,951
million (2023: Rs. 191,709 million). This includes
overdue trade receivables of Rs. 208,093 million
with over 97% of these receivables due from
SNGPL and SSGCL.

The Company will continue to make rigorous
efforts for recovery of its trade debts through
continuous engagement with customers and
relevant ministries. The recovery of trade debts
is crucial to the Company's liquidity position and
its ability to invest in business activities while
providing equitable returns to the shareholders.
However, based on the continued trend of
improved collections, the Management is
optimistic about further reducing the rate of
increase in trade debts going forward.

Liquidity Management and cash flows

An  amount of Rs. 46,937 million
(2023: Rs 13,471 million) was generated from
the Operating activities of the Company which
was mainly used to undertake exploration and
development activities, capital expenditures,
investments, and payment of dividends. At the
end of the year, the Company reported cash and
cash equivalents of Rs 59,751 million (2023: Rs
30,728 million).

The Company places a strong emphasis on
liquidity management and as part of this effort,
financial projections are prepared regularly to
ensure the availability of funds at all times while
generating optimum returns through the
placement of surplus liquid funds in a secure and
well-diversified investment portfolio.

Dividends

During the year, the Company paid an interim
cash dividend of Rs 7,000 million (Rs. 3.01 per
share).

Contribution to national economy

The Company is a significant contributor to the
national economy. During the year, GHPL
contributed Rs. 68,352 million to the National
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Exchequer on account of corporate taxation,
dividend, royalty, sales tax, federal excise duty,
petroleum levy, and windfall levy.

In addition, the Company's oil and gas
production also contributed toward foreign
exchange savings as import substitution.

Group’s Financial Performance

The Group reported sales revenue and profit
after tax of Rs. 350,694 million (2023: 237,544
milion) and Rs 105,062 million (2023: Rs.
10,965 million).

Auditors’ Opinion

The Auditors have expressed an unmodified
opinion in their Audit Reports on the
unconsolidated and consolidated financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Company is
committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to ensure business
integrity and transparency.

Specific statements to comply with requirements
of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 are as follows:

= The Board has complied with the relevant
principles of corporate governance and has
identified the regulations that have not been
complied with, the period such non-
compliance continued and the reasons for
such non-compliance.

= The financial statements, prepared by the
Management of the Company, present its
state of affairs fairly, the result of its
operations, cash flows, and changes in
equity.

= Proper books of accounts have been
maintained by the Company.

= Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting

estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards
as applicable in Pakistan have been followed
in the preparation of financial statements.

There are no doubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board recognizes its responsibility to
establish and maintain sound system of
internal control, which is regularly reviewed
and monitored.

The appointment of the Chairman and other
members of the Board and their terms of
appointment along with the remuneration
policy adopted are in the best interest of the
Company as well as in line with the best
practices.

Disclosure on remuneration of Chief
Executives and Executives is given in Note
35.2 of the Company's unconsolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended June
30, 2024.

Directors only receive directors’ fees for
attending meetings of the Board and Board
Committees. The details of fees paid to each
director are provided in the relevant section
of the Annual Report.

No subsidy or financial support has been
taken from the Government.

Reasons for significant deviations from last
year’s operating results have been explained
in the relevant section of the Directors’
Report.

Key operating and financial data of the last
six years has been summarized in the
relevant section of the Annual report.

Information about outstanding taxes and
levies is given in the notes to the financial
statements.

The value of investment in employee
retirement funds as per latest audited
accounts as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:

- Employees Provident Fund  Rs. 95,274,639
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- Employees Gratuity Fund Rs. 221,656,023

= The number of meetings of the Board and its
Committees held during the year and the
attendance thereat by the respective Director
has been disclosed in the relevant section of
the Annual Report.

= A statement of pattern of shareholding in the
Company as at June 30, 2024 has been
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company’s auditors, A.F. Ferguson & Co.,
Chartered Accountants will retire upon the
conclusion of the upcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offered themselves
for re-appointment as external auditors of the
Company.

The Audit Committee considered the matter and
recommended the re-appointment of A.F.
Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, as
external auditors for the financial year 2024-25.
The Board of Directors has endorsed the Audit
Committee’s recommendation for approval at
the Company's upcoming Annual General
Meeting.

MowiD A

The Company remains steadfast in its
commitment to working with Joint Venture
partners to accelerate exploration efforts aimed
at uncovering new hydrocarbon resources within
the country. These endeavours are vital for
reducing the nation’s import dependency and
addressing its increasing energy demands.
Additionally, the Company will continue to
prioritize development and production activities
within its non-operated blocks, ensuring
sustained and enhanced production levels.

Looking ahead, the Company is focused on
strengthening its portfolio by pursuing
opportunities to acquire or expand stakes in
petroleum blocks, both locally and globally. In
parallel, the Company will actively explore
diversification initiatives to broaden its business
horizons and establish new revenue streams.

Through these strategic actions, the Company is
well-prepared to seize emerging opportunities
and deliver sustainable growth, creating value
for all stakeholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Government Holdings (Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Gpinion .

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Government Holdings (Private) Limited
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June
30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financia! Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s reports thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

#

A, F FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the Pw{ network
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are- -

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order tc design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a} proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XViII of
1880).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
JehanZeb Amin.

islamabad
Date: February 28, 2025
UDIN: AR202410083CMDQAO3YX



o

e,

e

GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT CF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Capital reserves

Other reserves

Unappropriated profit

Advance against issue of shares
TOTAL EQUITY :

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Leng term liabilities :

l.oan from National Bank of Paldstan (NBP) - secured
Deferred tax liability

Provision for decommissioning cost

Deferred employee benefits

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities :
Current portion of long term liabilities

Current portion of loan from National Bank

of Pakistan (NBFP)} - secured -
Provision for taxation

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQINTY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20
21
21

22
23
24
25
26

27
301
22

23
28

29

2024 2023
------------------- Rupees {'000)--mmmrnmrenn

23,221,242 23,221,212
25,000,000 25,000,000
14,245,204 15,471,304
289,739,079 227,603,263
1,649,329 525,089
353,855,825 291,820,848
4,230,389 4,507,802
58,409,218 64,899,131
- 315,880
12,047,359 14,408,445
51,631 45,537
74,738,597 84,178,795
33,008,563 26,207,287
103,502 1,708
1,903,482 1,867,523
13,489,869 5,648,325
18,659,198 8,836,207
67,164,614 42,261,060
141,903,211 126,437,855
485,759,036 418,258,703

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

ASSETS

NGN CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Exploration and evaluation assels
Development and production assets
Long term Investment in subsidiaries
Long term investment in associates

Receivable from Government of Pakistan {GoP)

Deferred tax asset
Long term foan to subsidiaries and staff -

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools - share in joint

operations' inventory

Current portion of long term loan to
subsidiaries and staff - unsecured

Trade debts - net

Advances, other receivables and short-term
prepayments

Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP}

Accrued interest receivable
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

2024 2023
NG nmmmmennm Rupees {'000)-mmmmmmmmmamne
8 27,213,631 28,531,464
7 45,581 1,663
8 3,980,338 4,438,428
g 15,097,525 16,367,623
10 6,974,241 5,849,981
11 64,363,935 55,759,241
12 58,409,218 54,898,131
24 5,849,021 -
13 103,167 2,708,956
182,036,668 178,554,488
14 5,935,225 4,800,359
13 61,116 1,721,218
18 222,951,132 191,708,858
17
38,912 197,685
12 13,489,868 5,548,325
15 321,394 137,567
18 67,799,054 28,258,016
1% 3,125,667 7,332,188
313,722,368 238,704,215
495759 036 418,258 703

desced

Director




GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Royalty and other levies
Operating expenses
GROSS PROFIT

Exploration and prospecting expenditure

General and administrative expenses

Net impairment (loss) / reversal on financial assets
Other income

Other expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance income
Finance cost
Finance income — net

Share of loss of associates accounted for
under equity method

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Earnings per share- basic and diluted (Rupees)

30

31
32

34
35
16.3
37
36

33
33

11

38

39

137,927,077

(16,400,594)
(18,323,363)

126,035,663

{15,262,778)
{18,410,825)

103,203,120 92,362,060
(1,184,232) (447 ,903)
{1,625,162) (1,494,115)

(1,227} 343,004
40,596 328,592
(6,859,157) {11,156,460)
93,573,938 79,935,178
26,074,139 13,157,664
{16,445 899) (6,610,271)
9,628,240 6,547,393
(2,267,968) (683,150)
100,934,210 85,795,421

(31,784,210)

{36,638,987)

69,150,000

49,160,434

29,78

22.71

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

Director



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note
PROFITFORTHEYEAR S 88150,000 0 49,160,434
Other comprehensive income:
items that will not be subsequently reclassified to
statement of profit or loss:
Remeasurement loss on employees’ retirement benefits 27.3 {28,369} {28.,835)
Taxation 14,184 18,237
{14,184) {10,598)
ftems that may be subsequently reclassified to
statement of profit or loss:
Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate 11 (295,958) 1,460,902
Share of effect of translation of investment in a foreign
associated company of the associate 11 {1,003,132) 14,026,097
Taxation 73,980 {393,668)
{1,225,101) 15,087,331
Other comprehensive {loss) / income for the year - net of tax {1,239,285) 15,076,733
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 67,910,715 64,237 167

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

URATGY .
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS {PRIVATE} LMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Balance 8% at July 1, 2022
Total comprehensive income for the year -
Profit for the year
Otrer cormprehansive income for the vear
Total comprehensive income for the vear

Transactions with swners of the Company
Contributions :
Advance recaved sganst issue of shares -
ssue of shares .
Transfer of resefves to unappropriated profits
Transfer of profits 1o Mining proiect reserva

Distributions .
ftgnm dividend 2023 Rs. 2.15 per share .
Total contributions and distributions. net
Balanee ag at June 30, 2023 :
Batance as at July 1, 2023
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Other comprahansive lass for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year |

Transactions with cwnars of the Company
Gontributions
Advanse raanived agatnst issue of sharesg

Bistributions :
fnterim dividend 2024: Rs. 3.01 per share

Total contributions and distributions- net

Balance as at Jure 30, 2024

The annexed nates from 1 ta 45 form an integral part of thase tnancial statemenis

Share capital Other Reserves Capital Reserves
. Advance Forelgn " . Assat Assels . . .
Issued, Subscribed e General currency Committed LNG project R o Mining project Unappropriated
. against issue ; insurance aequisition Total Total
an Paig-up reserve transiation outlay resarve reserve reserve profits
of shares reserye resere
reserve
Rupeas {'300}
21327561 2.329.895 2,254 828 283,973 20946 247 25,000.000 300 000 5,000,000 “ 53,946 247 152222354 232 494 886
. “ . . - - - - 48 160,434 49,160,434
- - - 15.087.331 - - - - - - {10.598) 18,076,733
- 15,087,331 - - - - - - 48,149,836 64,237 187
A 58825 - - . . R 35825
1,893 651 (1853651} - . . . . : . .
- {2.284.626) - (20.945.247) (25,000,000 (35000008 (48,845,247} 51.230,873 -
23007000 20.000.00C (20.000.000) .
1,593,451 {1.804.826)  {2.284.820) - (20.946.247) (25,000,000 {3.00C.000} - 20,000,000 (28.946,247) 31,230,873 88,825
. - . B B {5.Q00,000) (5,000,000
T.893,651 (1,804 828) {2,284 626) - (20,946 2473 {25,600,000) {3.000,000) - 20.000.000 (25.946.247) 26330873 (4.911,178)
23221212 525,068 - 15,471,304 - - - 5,005,000 20000000 25,000,000 227 603283 201 820,848
23,221,212 525,069 - 15,471,304 ~ “ « 8,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 227,603,263 291,820,848
R R N R R B R B - - £9,150,000 58,150,006
i
- - i - (1,225,101} - - - - - - {14,124) {1,239,285)
- - - (1,225,101} - “ - - - £9,135,815 67,910,715
- 1 T1A%4,280 | . P . - T K 1,124,260
- 1,124,260 - - - - - - - 4,124,280
- - - - - - - - - {7.000,000) {7,006,00¢
- 1,124,260 - - . p . - - - 17,000,060} {5,875,740}
23921212 1,649,329 . 14,246 203 . . . 5,002,000 70,000,000 25490 239.739.078
1
Director

Chief Exacutive Officer
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
2024 2023
NOte  meceneememn e Rupees {'000})---mmmmmemrommn
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 100,934,210 85,799,421
Adjustments for:. .
Depreciation on Joint operations’ fixed assels 32 3,138,504 2611052
Amortization of development and production assets 32 5,097,731 4,739,174
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 37 (422} (328,571}
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 32.2 45,443 104,075
Impairment on development and production assets 322 396,422 308,352
Bepreciation on owned fixed assets 35 41,550 22,291
Amortization of intangible assets 35 9,039 5,655
Share of loss of associate 11 2,267,968 583,150
Dry hole wells 34 185,604 7.160
Provision for employee benefits 26 & 27 77,557 69,759
Unwinding of discount on provision for
decommissioning cost 33 1,237,412 923,438
Unwinding of discount on long term liability 33 261,286 137,133
Discount of long term liability 33 359,828 (519,532}
Unrealized exchange (gain) / loss 28,061 4,911,834
Provision for windfall levy on oil / condensate 36 6,287,023 5,881,852
Reversal due to change in deceommissioning
cost estimates 253 (1,296,743) (391,758
Net impairment (reversal) / ioss on financial assets 16.3 1,227 (343.004;
Interest expense 33 14,580,316 5,548 325
Interest income 33 {26,074,139) {12,638.132)
107,578,875 97,532,515
Changes in working capital:
Increase in stores, spare and ioose tools - share in
Joint operations’ inventory {1,134,868) (667,803}
Increase in trade debis (32,591,087} {49.67G.240)
Decrease / (increase) in advances, other receivables
and short term prepayments 326,918 (173.756;
Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities 101,794 (65,645}
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 3,556,770 (273,568}
{29,740,450) {50,850,811}
Cash generated from operations 77,838,425 46,681,704
Increase in loans to staff (46,311) (67,505}
Income tax paid 28 {30,760,201) (33,023,265}
Employee benefits paid {94,875) (120,333}
Net cash generated from operating activities 46,937,038 13,470,600
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2024 2023
Note  weewomssmssscssscnnRUpees {000} --memmmmearemmamnans
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure {7,516,427) {7.783,568)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,088 328,631
Interest received 28,162,852 7,117,863
tnvestment in subsidiary (1,124,260) (88,825)
investment in associates (12,171,753} (4,494,172}
- Sale of shori<term investments - ' o o (] 498,229y 10,600,660
Receipts against loan {o subsidiaries 2,595,747 1,117,674
Net cash used in investing activities 6,452,019 6,197 6802
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance received against issue of shares 1,124,260 88,825
Repayment of short term borrowing - (63,966,965)
Proceeds from long term loan - 63,966,985
Repayments against long term liabilities (330,494) {396,715)
Interest expense paid against long term loan (13,128,685) -
Dividend paid {7,000,000) {5,000,000}
Met cash used in financing activities {19,334,919) {5,307,890)
NET INCREASE iN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 34,054,136 14,360,312
Effects of exchange rates changes on cash and cash eguivalents (31,0204 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 30,727,769 21,3687 457
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESERVED AGAINST
MINING PROJECT RESERVE (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 19.3 59,750,886 30,727 769

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director




GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Government Holdings (Private) Limited (the "Company™) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company
on January 15, 2000, under the Companies Ordinance, 18984 (repealed by the Companies Act, 2017} The
Company’s registered office is situated at 7th Floor, Petroleum House, Ataturk Avenue, G-5/2, Islamabad. The main
objectives of the Company are to

a) Acquire shares of the companies or interest of Government of Pakistan (GoP} in the existing and new oil and
gas concessions, either by payment or by issuance of shares, credited as fully paid, or other securities, as the
Company may think fit and to hold and enjoy all interests, rights, contracts and privileges vested in, or
connected with the fitle of such shares: and LRI T I T

b}y Take over, acquire, renew, unitize, and hold any exploration, prospecting, development and production
concessions of whatever nature or otherwise acquire any estate or interest, develop resources of work, dispose
off or otherwise turn to account land or sea beds in any part of the world containing or thought to contain
petroleum or any other oil in any form, and to search for or participate in the exploration for petroleum or any
other oif in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas, or any substance used or which
may be capable of use, and to organize, equip and employ expeditions, experts and other agents o carry out
dritling and other exploratory operations, and o establish and cperate oil and gas welis and other undertakings
for the extraction of any of the aforesaid substances.

As of the date of statement of financial position, the Company has the following equity investments:

a) inter State Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary
b)  Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary {effective from January 1, 2021,
Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) was merged into PLL with PLL being the surviving entity .}
c} Pakistan International Qit Limited (PIOL) - foreign operation - 25% shareholding
d) Pakistan Minerals (Private)} Limited (PMPL) - 33.33% shareholding

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiary
companies are accounted for at cost basis rather than on the basis of reported results. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost. Consolidated financial
statements are prepared separately.

The Company has interest in certain joint operations / concessions as non-operator. Geographical location of
concessions / blocks is as under:

Operator Concession / Block Working Inferest (%) Province

Al-Haj Baska North 415 Balochistan & KPK
Hycarbex Yasin 5 Sindh & Balochistan
KPBV Makhad 2.5 KPK

Tallahasse Karak MNorth 2.5 KPK

MOL Tal 5 (Exp} ~ 15 (Dev)* KPK

MPCL Bolan / Zarghun South 17.5 Balochishtan
MPCL Wali West 2.5 KPK

MPCL Sharan 2.5641 Balochishtan
MPCL Nareli 2.5641 Balochishtan
MPCL Mach 2.5641 * Balochishtan
MPCL Dhadhar 2.5641 Baiochishtan
OGDCL Bitrism 5(Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)” Sindh

QGDCL Guddu 5 (Exp) ~ 22,5 (Dev)* Sindh & Punjab
OGDCL Gwadar 2.5 Batochistan
OGDhCL Jhakro 22.5 Sindh



.

Operator

OGDCL
OGDCL
GGDCL
OGDCL
CGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL

©OGDCL

OGDCL
OGDhCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDLCL
OGDCL
OGDHCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OPPL
PEL
PEL
PEL
POL
POL
POL.
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
UEP
UEP
UEP
ugpP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
Paige

Concession { Block

Khuzdar South
Khuzdar North
Khewari

Kotra

Nashpa

Nim

Orakzai

Pasni West
Pezu -
Ranipur
Chanda
Sinjhoro

Tirah

Tando Allah Yar
Gurgalot

Zin

Lilla

Sujawatl South
Chah Baii
Khewari East
Suleiman
Zamzama
Block 22
Kandra

Mirpur Mathelo
Pariwali
Minwail

North Dhurnal
Bela West
Dhok Sultan
Gambat South
Hisal
Mazarani
Chachar
Nausherwani
Shah Bandar
Sirani
Musakhel
Punjab

Sui North
Kalat West
Shaigatu
Badin |l
Gambat
Khipro

Kuhan

Mehar
Mehran
Mirpur Khas
Mubarak
Sawan
Murgha Fagir Zai

* Exp- Exploratory phase
* Dev- Development phase
“* Inclusive of carried Wi of respective provincial holding company during exploration phase

HATLL

Working Interest {%)

Province

2.5

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 20 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 15 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dav)*
4.66

2.5

264

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 17.5 (Dew)”
5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)”
5

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp)*

5 (Exp)y*

2.5641 **

2.5641*

2.5641 *

2.5641*

2.5641 ™

25

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)”
5 (Exp)y*

17.5

17.5

2.5641 **

2.5

25

25

2.5

12.5

25

25

2.5

25

2.5

2.5

2.5641 *

2.5641 **

2.5641 **

25 (Devy*

5 (Exp)y*

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
25 (Dev)y*

5({Exp) ~ 25 (Dew)”
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dew)*
22.5

5 (Exp)”

Sindh & Balochisian
Balochistan
Sindn
Balochishtan
KPK

Sindh

KPK
Balochistan
Puhjab & KPK
Sindh

KPK

Sindh

KPK

Sindh
Punjab & KPK
Baiochistan
Punjab
Sindh
Baiochistan
Sindh
Bailochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Punjab
Punjab
Punjab
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Sindh
Punjab
Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Punjab
Balochistan
Baiochistan
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh & Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
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2.2

2.3

3.1

31

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

7. Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards. the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for certain items as
disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee {(PKR / Rupees / Rs) which
is the Company’s functional currency.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
New or amendments / interpretations to existing standards, interpretations and forthcoming requiremenis

Standards, amendments and interpretations te existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Company:

Efiective date {annual reporting
periods beginning on or after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) January 1, 2024
tAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates January 1, 2025
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2026
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and measurement of Financial January 1, 2026
instrument

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods wili
have no material impact on the Company's financial statements other than in presentation / disclosures.

Gther than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, 1ASB has also issued the following standards
and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at June 30, 2024

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements




3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

e
Standards and amendmentis {o approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became appiicable to the Company
on July 1, 2023. However, these amendmenis do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial
statemenis except as disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements,

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.O. 87{1)/2023 dated January 20, 2023, in
partial modification of its previous S.R.O. 1177 {1)/2021 dated September 13, 2021, has notified thal in respect of
companies hoiding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (GoP} in respect of circular debt, the
requirements confained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of expecied credit loss (ECL) model shall not be

.applicable till. December 31, 2024, provided that such companies shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 .

'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ in respect of above referred financial assets during the
exemption period. Earlier to the S.R.O. 985142019 dated September 2, 2019, SECP in a press release daied
August 22, 2019 communicated that IFRS 9 needs to be looked into from Pakistan perspective where phenomenon
like circutar debt need to be given due consideration. It was noted that concerns expressed by companies regarding
practical fimitations in determining ECL on debts due from government, due to uncertain cash recovery patterns of
circular debt, carry weight. Public information regarding expected settlement of circular debt by GoP in coming years
may result in subsequent reversals of impairment losses recognized in 2019, Financial assets due from GoP include
those that are directly due from GoP and that are ultimately due from GoP in conseguence of the circular debt. In
accordance with the exemption granted by SECP, ECL has not been assessed / recognized in respect of financial
assets due directly / ulimately from GoP which includes trade debts amounting to Rs. 201,237 million {2023: Rs.
166,972 million) on account of inter-corporate circuiar debts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. [t also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future period affected.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the management has made the following estimates,
assumptions and judgments which are relevant to these financial statements;

Property, plant and equipment - notes 5.1 and 6

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation on property, plant and equipment. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making
these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in the estimate
in the future might affect the carrying amount of the respective items of property, plant and equipment. with
sorresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment,

Exploration and evaluation assets - notes 5.3 and 8

The Company's accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure results in certain iterns of expenditure
being capitalized for an area of interest where it is considered likely to be recoverable by future exploration or sale or
where the activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of reserves.
This policy requires management 10 make certain estimates and assumptions as to fulure events and circumsiances,
in particular whether an economically viable extraction operation can be established. Any such estimates and
assumptions may change as new information becomes available. if, after having capitalized the expenditure under
the policy, a judgment is made that recovery of the expenditure is unlikely, the relevant capitalized amount is written
off to statement of profit or loss,

SATLL.
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4.2

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Development and production expendifure - noles 5.4 and 9

Joint operations where the Company has carried cost working interest, on announcement of commercial discovery,
the Company initially provides for the liability related to relevant carried cost of the joint operations and then recognize
corresponding development and production expenditure; on the basis of best estimates available from the shared
cost statement of the relevant joint operation. An adjustmeni is made based on the finalized cost agreed with the
operator.

Investment in associates - notes 5.8 and 11

- The Company uses the equity method of accounting for the entities over which # has significant influence. initial

accounting in respect of acquisition under the applicable financial reporting framework invoives identifying and
determining the fair values {o he assigned to the investee's identifiable assets and liabilities, including goodwill or
bargain purchase gain, if any. Classification of the investment as an associate requires the management making
significant judgement with respect to the relevant activities of the investee entities. Purchase price allocation also
involves significant estimation/ judgement in respect of determining fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities
inctuding goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Taxation - notes 5.14 and 28

in determining tax provision, the Company takes into account the current tax laws and decisions taken by appeliate
authorities. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect o situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probabie that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treaiment. Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income
tax department at the assessment stage, the Company measures its tax balances either based on the most fikely
amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty and discloses its differing view on items of material nature as contingencies,

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance - notes 5.10.1 and 16.3

The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") allowance for financial assets requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior {e.g. the likelihood of
counter parties defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

- Development of ECL models, including the various formutas and choice of inputs;

- Determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measured on a lifelime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a coliective basis;

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarics and, economic inputs, and their effect on
Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure At Default (EADs) and Loss Given Default (LGDs}; and

- Selection of forward-locking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic
inputs into the ECL models,

Provision for decommissioning cost - notes 5.12 and 25

Provision is recognized for the future decommissioning and restoration cost of oil and gas wells, production facilities
and pipelines at the end of their useful lives and involves estimates related to future expected cost, discount rate and
timing. Estimates of the amount of provision recognized are based on current legal and constructive reguirements,
technology and price levels. Provision is based on the best estimates, however, the actual outflows can differ from
estimated cash outfiows due o changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, technelogy, prices and conditions,
and can take place many years in the future. The estimated timing of decommissioning may change due to certain
factors, such as reserve life, a decision to terminate operations or change in legisiation. The carrying amount of

provision is reviewed annually and adjusted to take account of such changes.

A



4.8

4.9

During the vear, the Company revised its estimates of decommissioning cost, reserve life, discount and infiation
rates. This has been freated as change in accounting estimates, applied prospectively, in accordance with IFRIC
Interpretation 1 "Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities".

Fellowing line items would have been affected had there been no change in estimates:

Rupees
Provision for decornmissioning cost would have been higher by 4,064,344
Property, plant and equipment would have been higher by 1,307,360
Development and production assets would have been higherby . . ... 1460,241
Qperating expenses would have been higher by 1,296,743
Total comprehensive income would have been lower by 1,296,743

Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves - notes 5.4 and 9

Oil and gas reserves are ah important element in calculation of amortization charge and for impairment testing of
development and production assets of the Company. Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are inherently
imprecise, require the application of judgement and are subject to future revision. Reserves are estimated by
reference io available reservolr and well information, including production and pressure trends for producing
reservoirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, fo similar data from other producing reservoirs. All
reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new information, such as from
development, drilling and production activities or from changes in economic factors, including product prices, contract
terms or development plans.

Changes In estimaies of reserves, affects the amount of amortization recorded in the financial statements for
development and production assets.

lmpairment of non financial assets including development and production assets and related property, plant
and equipment - notes 5.5,6,7, 8and 9

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable amount is estimated.

E&E assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that carrying amount may exceed
the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at which a determination is made that as to
whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the Company has right to explore has expired or will
expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed, substantive expenditure on further exploration and
evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any other event that may give rise to indication that E&E assets
are impaired.

Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is performed
whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate that carrying
amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such circumstances depend
on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable guantities of hydrocarbons, the production profile
of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the
production costs, the confractual duration of the production field and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons
produced. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows largely independent of other assets or CGUs. The CGU applied for impairment test purpose is generaily
based on a number of fields grouped as a single cash generating unit where the cash flows of each field are inter-
dependent.

The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to
the future net cash flows expected to be derived from such assets, An impairment toss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amouni. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit
ot loss. The impairment foss is aliocated to the assets in CGU on a pro rata basis.
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Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also reversed
as a credit in statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amorization, if no mpairment loss had beean
recognized.

Employee benefiis - notes 5.13, 26 and 27.3

The Company operates an approved gratuity fund for ifs regular and contract employees. The obligation at the date of
statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows. Calculation of
gratuity obligations require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes increase in
remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assetls and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to
current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions. The assumptions used vary for
the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

The Company alse has a policy whereby its regular/contractual employees are eligible to encash accumulated leave
balance at the time of retirement / contract renewal / resignation up to a maximurm of 90 days. The benefit obligations
in respect of compensated absences are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions. The assumptions usad
vary and they are determinad by independent actuary annually.

Provision against financial assets not subject to ECL model - notes 5.10.1 and 16.3

As referred in note 3.3, the SECP has deferred appiicability of ECL model in respect of financial assets due directly /
ultimately from Government of Pakistan (GoP) till December31, 2024 in respect of circular debt. Accordingly, the
Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debis and investmenis that are due directly / ultimately from GoP in
respect of circular debt to assess whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as per requirements of IAS
39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' at each reporting date.

The Company has overdue receivables on account of inter-corporate circular debt. These overdue balances are
receivable from oil refineries and gas distribution companies. The Government of Pakistan (GoP} is committed,
hence continucusly pursuing for satisfactory settlement of inter-corporate circular debt issue. However, the progress
is slower than expected resulting in accumulation of Company's debts. Inter-corporate circular debt in Pakistan arises
due to delayed payments in the energy sector supply chain; GoP either directly or through its direct/indirect ownership
of entities within energy sector supply chain is at the core of circular debt issue. The Central Power Purchase Agency
(CPPA), a government owned entity, is sole power purchaser for the Country and the circular debt is a shortfall of
payments primarily by the CPPA, however, in case of gas distribution and transmission companies the shortfal aiso
occurs because of a delay in receipis of subsidies from the GoP for supply of gas to cerain domestic / industrial
CONSUMers.

Settiement of the Company's receivables is slower than the contractual terms primarily because circular debt is a
macro economic level issue in Pakistan and its level at any given time is dependent on policies andfor priorities of the
(GoP, the level of subsidies offered by GoP fo certain domestic and industrial consumers, exchange rate fluctuations,
global crude oil prices and certain other systemic issues within energy sector (tariffs, losses, non / delayed
recoveries),

The Company's assessment of objective evidence of impairment with respect to over due amounts on account of
inter-corporate circular debt takes into account commitment made by the GoP, contractual rights fo receive
compensation for delayed payments and plans of the GoP to address the issue of inter-corporate circular debt.

The Company has contractual right and is entitied to charge interest if payments from customers delayed beyond
credit terms, however, the Company recognizes interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers or investments
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognized will not ocour
when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is when the interest on defayed
payments is received by the Company.

R4 0.



i

4.12

5.1

5.2

Stores, spares & loose tools - notes 5.9 and 14

The Company reviews the stores, spares and loose tools for possible write downs / provisions on an annual basis.
Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items with 2
corresponding affect on the provision:

MATERIAL ACCQUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments o [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statements 2

- ‘Making Materiality. Judgements’) from July 1, 2023. Although amendments did not result in- any changes to the -

accounting policies themseives, they impact the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require disclosure of ‘material’, rather than 'significant’ accounting policies. The amendments also
provide the guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide
useful entity specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial
statements.

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognized at acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company's
management. These assets are subsequently measured using the cost model, which is cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses {if any), except for freehold land and capital work in progress, which are stated
at cost less impairment foss {if any).

The cost includes the cost of replacing paris of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition
criteria are met. Depreciation is charged using the straight line method when assets are available for use over the
useful life of the underlying assel. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probabie that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initiaily recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on derecognition of
an item of property, plant and eguipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amounts of the asset and is recognized in as other income in the staternent of profit or loss.

Capital work in progress is transferred to the respective item of property, plant and equipment when available for
intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recegnition. Following initiai recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. Costs
associated with routine maintenance of intangible assets are recognized as an expense when incurred. However,
costs that are directly attributable to identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the performance of
intangible assets beyond the original specification and useful life is recognized as capital improvement and added to
the ariginat cost of the software. The cost of intangible is amortized at 33% per annum on a straight line basis.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any adjustment to the usefu
life is recognized prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

Exploration and evaluation asseis (E&E Assets)

The exploration cost of all those joint operations is accounted for under the “Successful Efforts” method. Under the
successful efforts method of accounting, all property acquisitions, exploratory/evaluation drilling costs are initially
capitalized as intangible Exploration and Evaluation {E&E) assets in well, field or specific exploration cost centers as
appropriate. Costs directly associated with an exploratory well are capitalized as an intangible asset until the drifiing

_of the well is completed and results have been evaiuated. Major costs include employee bengfits, material, chemnical,

fuel, well services and rig operational costs. All other exploration costs including cost of technical studies, seismic
acquisition and data processing, geciogical and geophysical activities are charged in the statemeant of profit or loss as
exploration and prospecting expenditure. Pre license cost are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when they
are incurred.

Intangible E&E assels relaling to each exploration license / field are carried forward, untit the existence or otherwise
of commercial reserves have been determined subject to certain lmitations including review for indications of
impairment. If commercial reserves have heen discovered, the carrying value after any impairment loss of the
relevant £&E assets is then reclassified as development and production assets and if commercial reserves are not
found, the related costs are written off in statement of profit or loss. E&E assets are not amortized prior to the
conclusion of appraisal activities.

Development and production asseis (D&P Assets)

During exploratory phase under carried cost working interest holding, relevant working interest of the Company in
various concessions is carried by its relevant partners in the respective Joint operations, in accordance with the
related Petroleum Concession Agreements. Consequent to the declaration of commercial discovery by the operator
and approval by the Director General, Petroleum Concessions (DGPC), the Company has right to increase s
working interest up to 25% and the resulling consideration is payable to relevant joint operation partners in these
Joint operations, according to the provisions of the related Petroleum Concession Agreements.

The carried cost payable to joint operation partners comprise of the cost of the successful wells and expenditure that
are attributable to the commercial discovery. The c¢ost is directly recognized as development and production assets
fo the extent to which the cost relates to wells. The remaining portion of the cost is charged off to statement of profit
or loss as exploration and prospecting expenditure,

Development and production assets alsc include the cost of deveioping the discovered commercial reserves and
bringing them into production, together with the capitalized E&E expenditures incurred in finding commercial reserves
transferred from E&E assets as outlined in note 5.3 above and the cost of recognizing provisions for future site
restoration and decommissioning.

Expenditure carried within each field is amortized from the commencemant of production on a unit of production
basis, over the estimated useful life of the field determined by reference to proved reserves, on a field by field basis.
Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are dealt with prospectively,
Amoriizaticn is charged {o statement of profit or loss. Amortization expense for the year is computed on all
development and production assets at year end including additions / adjustments made during the year. Changes in
the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are dealt with prospectively.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable amount is estimated.
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E&E assets are assessed for impairment when facis and circumstances indicate that carrying amount may excesd
the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at which a determination is made that as to
whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the Company has right to explore has expired or will
expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed, substantive expenditure on further exploration and
evaluation activities is not planned or budgetied and any other event thal may give rise to indication that E&E assets
are impaired.

tmpairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is performed
whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate that carrying

- amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such circumstances depend
on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of hydrocarbons, the production profitle

of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure necessary {o recover the hydrocarbons, the
production costs, the contractual duration of the production field and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons
produced.

tor impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash infliows
largely independent of other assets or CGUs. The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount
of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to the future net cash fiows expected to be derived from such asseis. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carryving amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also reversed
as a credit in profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning lability and, therefore, an addition to the
carrying value of the asset, the Company considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the asset as a
whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the IAS-36 Impairment of Assets.

Joint operations

invesiments in joint arrangemenis are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual right and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Company has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint operations in accordance with IFRS 11. The Company has recognized
its share of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred under the joint operations on the basis
of latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and where applicable, the cost statements received from
operators of the joint arrangements for the intervening period up to the statement of financial position date. The
difference, if any, between the cost statements and audited financial statement is accounted for in the subsequent
periods.

Investment in subsidiary

Investmeant in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting date, recoverable amounts are
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investment is adjusted
accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. Where impairment loss
is subsequently reversed, the carrying amounts of investment are increased to its revised recoverable amount, limited
to the extent of initial cost of investiment. Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.
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The profits or losses of subsidiaries are carried forward in their financial siatements and are not dealt within these
financial statements except to the exient of dividend declared by the subsidiaries. Gains and losses on disposal of
investment are included in other income, When the disposal on investment in subsidiary resclis in 1oss of control such
that it becomes an associate, the retained investment is carried at cost.

investment in associated company

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in the joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating polcy
- decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.. ... ... .. e

The results, assets and liabilities of the associate have been incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity methed, investments in associates are initially recognized at cost
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the associate in profit
or loss and the Company's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the associate in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from the associate is recognized as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes arising
from the foreign exchange itransiation differences. The investor’'s share of those changes is recognized in the
investor's other comprehensive income. Losses of an associate in excess of Company’s interest in that associate are
recognized only to the extent that the Company has incuired legal or constructive obligation or made payment on
hehalf of the associate. Where objective evidence of impairment of investment in associate is identified, then the
carrying amount of equity-accounted investment is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in
note 5.5.

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Joint operations’ inventory

Stores, spares & loose tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value less impairment for slow moving
items. Cost is determined on the basis of costing methods adopted by operators of respeciive Joint operations. Net
realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessarily to be
incurred in order to make a sale.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a parly to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company
losses control of the contraciual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognized at
the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or
expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liahilities are taken io the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
a) Amortized cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;

b} Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

¢) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit or loss or statement
of other comprehensive income (QOCI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
depends on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH. The Company reclassifies deld
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the dssel. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights o receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable {0 the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

{a} Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash fiows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other operating gains/(losses), together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the stalement of profit or
loss.

(b} Fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for coliection of contraciual cash flows and for seiling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOC! Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financiat asset
is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OC{ is reclassified from equity to
statement of profit or loss and recognized in other income/charges. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other incomel/charges and impairment expenses are presented as separate line #em in the
statement of profit or loss,

{c} Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOC! are measured at FVTPL. A gain oriess on a
debt investment that is subseguently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and
presented net within other operating gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises.

»
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De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset {(or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assels) is
derecognized when:

i The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

i) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either {a@) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel but has -
fransferred controt of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough
arrangement, and has neither ransferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset.

In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated lability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

mpairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses {ECL} associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTOC! The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Foliowing are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model;

- Frade debts

-« Loans, advances, and other receivables

- Cash and bank balances

- Accrued interest receivable

- Loans to subsidiaries and staff

- Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP})
- Short term investments

General approach for loans, advances, and other receivables, cash and bank balances, deposits, short term
investments, loans to subsidiaries and staff, and receivable from Government of Pakistan

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default {ie. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given defauit is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted for factors that
are specific to the counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate). As for the
exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.
Loss aliowances are forward looking, based on 12 month expected credit losses where there has not been 2
significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are based on lifetime expected losses.
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Expected credit iosses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by the risk
of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating. allowances are
recognized when there is reduction in the net present vatue of expected cash fiows. On a significant increase in credit
risk, allowances are recognized without a change in the expected cash flows, although typically expected cash fiows
do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from. 12 month to fifetime expectations.

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Company recognizes life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluatling a range of possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,

Trade debts are separately assessed for ECL measurement. The lifetime expected credit losses are estimated using
the Company's historical credit ioss experience based on payment profiles of sales till the yvear ended June 30, 2024,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. The historical ioss rates are
adjusted to reflect currant and forward-looking information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. Trade debts outstanding on account of inter-corporate circular debt is exempt from recognition of ECL
and are accounted for under IAS 38 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ which is further
described in note 3.3.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting pericd. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- aciual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expectad
to cause a significant change to the debtor's ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;
- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guaraniees;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the company for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, have granted {o
the borrower a concession(s} that the Company would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization: or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficuities; if applicable.

AL
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Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of defaul for internat credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenanis by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, inciuding the Company, in full {without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company}.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that a default has occurred if a debtor is more than 365
days past due in making & contractual payment unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more apprepriate.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment {o their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Company write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of
recovery is based on unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows to
repay the amount.

Financial liabilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"); and
— at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilittes are
recoghized initiaily at fair value and, in the case of other financial habilities, also include directly altributabie
fransaction costs, The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as foliows:

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial Hiabilities held-for-trading and financial fiabilities
designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Amortized cost
After initial recognition, other financial fiabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at amortized

cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss, when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate amortization process.

AT



5.11

5.12

-45-

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial hability is derecognized when the obligation under the liakility is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financia! liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of
the originat liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial {iabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if the
Company has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends fo settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise of term depository receipts maturing within
3 months, cash in hand, cash at banks and the related accrued interest income maturing within 3 months. Cash
equivalents are short term highly liquid investments, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Decommissioning cost

The activities of the Company normally give rise to obligations for site restoration. Restoration activities may include
abandonment and removal of wells, facility decommissioning and dismantling, removal or treatment of waste
raaterials, land rehabilitation, and site restoration.

Liabilities for decommissioning cost are recognized when the Company has an obiigation for site restoration, and
when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. The Company makes provision in full for the decommissioning
cost on the declaration of commercial discovery of the reserves, to fuifil the obligation of site restoration and
rehabilitation. The obligations for ol and natural gas production or transportation facilities, are required on
construction or installation. An obligation for decommissioning may also crystallize during the period of operation of a
well / facility through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate operations.

The amount recognized is the estimated cost of decommissicning, discounted {o its net present value at a current pre-
tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability and the expected outflow of economic
resources o setiie this obligation is up fo next thirty years.

Decommissioning cost, as appropriate, relating to producing or developing fields is capitalized to the cost of
development and production assets and property, plant and eguipment as the case may be. The recognized amount
of decommissioning cost is subsequently amortized/idepraciated as part of the capital cost of the development and
production assets on a unit of production method and property, plant and equipment over the assets usefd life
respectively. At the time of decommissioning of the field, any differences arising from settiement of the provision are
recognized in statement of profit or loss.
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While the provision is based on the best estimate of fulure costs and the economic life of the fields, there is
uncertainty regarding both the amount and timing of incurring these cosis. The Company reviews the
decommissioning provision at the reporting date. Any change in the present value of the estimated expenditure is
dealt with prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding adjustment to property.
plant and equipment and development and production assets. If a decrease in a provision is greater than the carrying
value of asset, the excess is recognized in statement of profit or loss. The unwinding of the discount on the
decommissioning provision is recognized as finance cost in the statement of profit or joss.

if the change in estimate resulis in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to the

- carrying value of the asset; the Company considers whether there is an-indication of impairment of the asset as a

whole, and if so, test for impairment in accerdance with the IAS-36 impairment of Assets.

Employee benefits
Employees gratuity fund

The Company operates approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The investments of gratuity
funds are made through approved trust funds. Employees are entitlted to benefits under gratuity fund from July 1,
2010. Contributions are made in accordance with actuarial recommendations. Actuarial valuations are conducied by
an independent actuary, annually using projected unit credit method related details of which are given in note 27 to
the financial statements. The obligation at the date of statement of financial position is measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows.

Actuarial gains and losses {remeasurement gains / losses) on employees’ gratuity fund are recognized immediately in
other comprehensive income and past service cost is recognized in statement of profit or loss when they ocour.

Cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for the employees’ gratuity fund
eamed on employees service during the year and the interest on the net liability / (asset) in respect of employee’s
service in previous years. Caiculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Calculation of gratuily obligations require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes increase
in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to
current values. Calculations are sensitive {o changes in the underlying assumptions. The assumptions used vary for
the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Employee compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employess in accordance with the rules of the
Company. Each employee can encash the un-utilized leave balance up to 90 days based on last drawn gross salary
at the time of resignation, contract renewal / termination.

Befined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contribution is
made both by the Company and the employee to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. The Company's
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

JRKIAS -
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Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the applicable rates of taxation afier taking into account
tax credits and tax rebales, i any, adjusted for payments o the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for payments on
account of royalty and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Income fax expense is recognized
in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates o items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

The Company recognizes provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax provision in

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
instances where the Company's views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the
Company considers that its view on #ems of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as
contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position hability method in respect of all
temporary differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, un-used tax losses and tax
credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are substantially expecied to apply to the period
when the differences reverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
income except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

Deferred taxation is recognized taking into account availability of taxable profits. The management uses assumptions
about future best estimates of the availability of future taxable profits based on available information.

Offsetting deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current fax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Group taxation

The Company has opted for group taxation regime and thereby o be taxed as a one fiscal unit along with its whoily
owned subsidiaries under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Current and deferred income taxes are recognized by
each entity within the Group in their respective statement of comprehensive income, regardless of who has the legal
rights or obligation for the recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax authorities. However, tax liability / receivable
is shown by the Company based on annual tax computation, who has the legal obiigation to pay or right of recovery
of tax from the taxation authorities. Balances hetween the group entities on account of group tax is shown as other
receivabie / liability by the Company.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present, legat or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seitle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of such obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markat assessment of fime
value of money and risk specific to the labitity,
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A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a resuit of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company,; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises
from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o
setile the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Hevenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good to a customer. Revenue associated with the sale of crude oil, gas and liquefied
petroleum gas is recognized at-transaction price that is allocated to that performance obligation.. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good to a customer. A good is transferred when the customer obtains control of that good or service. The
transfer of control of crude oil, gas and liquefied petroleum gas coincides with title passing to the customer and the
customer taking physical possession. The Company principally satisfies its performance obligations at a point in time
and recognizes revenue relating to the performance.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price, net of government levies. Transaction prices of crude oil and gas are
specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the government authorities based on agreemenis with
customers, relevant applicable petroleumn policy, decision of Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet
or Petroleurm Concession Agreements. Prices of liquefied petroleum gas are approved by the appropriate authority of
operator keeping in view the ceiling price notified by Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA), Effect of adjustments, if
any, arising from revision in sale prices is reflected as and when the prices are finalized with the customers and/or
approved hy the Government of Pakistan {GoP).

Bilings are generally raised by the end of each month which are payabie within 30 to 45 days in accordance with the
contractual arrangement with customers. Amounts billed or received prior {0 being eamned, are deferred and
recognized as advances from customers. The Company based on s assessment has not identified a significant
financing component in i#ts current contracts with customers because payment terms of 30 to 45 days are explicitly
specified and delay in setflement of invoices does not result in a significant financing component.

Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested or loan issued to subsidiaries and exchange gain,
interest income of financial assets at amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognized in statement of profit or loss. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For cradit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carnying amount of the financial asseis.
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established. Foreign currency gains and
losses are reported an a net basis.

The Company has contractual right and is entitled to charge interest if payments from customers delayed beyond
credit terms, however, the Company recognizes interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers only to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognized wili not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is when the interest on delayed payments is
received by the Company.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings (if any), unwinding of discount on provisions or Hability and
bank charges. Mark up, interest and other charges on borrowings are charged to profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

FILL -
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Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions and translafions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded st the ratés of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction. All
monetary assets and liabilittes denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rate of
exchange ruling on the staternent of financial position date and exchange differences, if any, are credited / charged fo
statement of profit or loss for the year.

Foreign operations

The transactions of foreign operation are translated at rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. All
monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange
rate prevailing at the date of statement of financial position and the resulting currency translation differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate reserve in equity until the disposal of
foreign operation, upon which these are reclassified from equity to statement of profit or foss when gain or loss on
disposal is recognized.

Dividends and reserves

Dividend distribution and appropriation of reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which
these are approved.

Earning per share

The Company presenis basic and diluled earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or ioss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liability unless payment is not due within twelve
{12) months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Reserves

The Company has a policy to set aside out of the profits of the Company such amount as the Company think proper
as a reserve or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the board of directors, be applicable for meeting
contingencies, or for any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied, and pending
such application may, in the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in
such investments, (other than shares of the Company) as the board of directors may from time to time think fit.
Reserves are reviewed periodically and adjusted as necessary by the board of directors.

DJITRL -
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Note e Rupees {"000}--w-mmereemen
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
QOwned fixed asseis 8.1 162,152 52,360
Share in joint operations' fixed assets 6.2 23,644,312 24 593,240
Share in joint operations’ capital work in progress 6.3 3,407,167 3,875,864
27,213,631 28,53?,4@47
Owned fixed assets
O.fflce Fun'a;ture and Cor.nputer Vehicles Total
.......... equipment Cfixtures . equipment | AR . .
Rupees {'000)
As at July 1, 2022
Cost 36,030 35,591 51,617 11,836 135074
Accumulated depreciation {22,444) {22,041} {37,312} (11,474) {93,271
Net book value 13,586 13,550 14,305 362 41,803
Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 13,586 13,650 14,305 362 41,803
Additions 10,552 8,832 1,882 21,842 42,908
Disposals
Cost 1,176 - 894 - 1,870
Accumisiated depreciation {1,154} - (656) - {1810y
(22) - (38) - {60)
Depreciation charge {6,848) {5,000 (8,337) (1,108} {22,291)
Ciosing net book value 17,268 17,182 6,812 21,098 62360
As at June 30, 2023
Cost 45,408 44 223 52,805 33,678 176,112
Accumulated depreciation (28,138) (27.041) (45,993} {12,580) (113,752)
Net book vaiue 17,268 17,182 6,812 21,008 62,360
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 17,268 17,182 6,812 21,098 62,360
Additions 112,349 - 21,1156 9,167 142,831
Adjustrnents - {496} - {125) (621}
Disposals
Cost 1,404 - 3,456 - 4,881
Accumuiated depreciation {1,234) - {2,960} - {4,194)
(170 - {4986) . (667}
Depreciation charge {23,185} {5,429) (7.210) {5,726) {41,550)
Closing net book value 106,262 11,257 20,221 24,414 162,153
As at June 30, 2024
Cost 156,351 43,727 70,464 42,720 313,261
Accumulated depreciation {50,089} {32,470) {50,243) {18,306) {151,108}
Net book value 106,262 11,257 20,221 24,414 162,152
Annual rate of
depreciation {%) 20-50 15 33 20

WHIES.



e

e,

swsen

o

o
g

8.2

Share in joint operations’ fixed assets

As at July 1, 2022

Cost :
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated tmpairmint
Net book vaiue :

Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value
Additions / {adjusimenis)
Adiustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers from CWIP -
Disposals :

Cost :
Accumulated depreciation
Accurnuiated Impairment

Depreciation charge -
rmpairment charge
Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2023

Cost :
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impairment

Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book value

Additions / (adjustrments)

Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers From CWiP

Depreciation charge

Impairment charge

Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2024

Cost :
Accumulated depreciation
Accurnulated Impairment

Net book value
Annual rate of depreciation (%)

SO

-22-

Leasehold Plant and Pipeli Office Furniture Vehic Decommission Total
land egquipment pelines equipment  and fixtures emales ing cost ota
Rupees {'000)

54,895 47,914 964 8,450,718 360,823 7T 589 184,208 964,096 57,997 483
(41,950) (24,171,588) (4,588,221) (297.,496) (72,782} (172,119) (551,808) {29.906,971)
(12,945) (3,171,301 {770,997) {30,271 {3.816) (3,196) (76,163} (4,068,689}

- 20,572,085 3,080,500 23,056 1,091 8,984 336,127 24,021,823
- 20,572,065 3,080,500 23,056 1,091 8,984 336,127 24,021,823
- (359,695} 30,998 28,221 1,185 40 752,594 453,353
- (46,304) {1,288} - . - - (47,592}
- 2,456,697 420,303 - - - - 2,877,000
- 332,712 - - - - - 332,712
- (274,782) - - - - - (274,782)
“ (57,930} - - - - - (57,930
- (1,884,102} {509,826) (8,497} {378) {2,326) (105,923) (2,611,052)
- (85,002} (12,517) (2.624) (149) - - £100,292)
- 20,553,658 3,008,170 40,156 1,759 5.698 982,798 24,503 240

54,895 49,632,950 8,900,731 379,044 78,884 184,339 1,716,690 60,947,533
{41,860) (25,880,918} (5,108,047} (305,983) (73,160} (174,445 {657.72¢) (32.243,242)
(12,945) (3,198,373} (783,514) (32,895) {3,965) {(3,196) (76.163) (4.111,081)

- 20,663,659 3008170 40,156 1,759 6698 982 798 24 593 240
- 20,553,659 3,008,170 40,156 1,759 6,698 982,798 24,593,240
- 1,354,072 187,957 34,320 1,431 - 73,671 1,651,450
- {631,963} . - - - {664,068) 1,296,031}
“ 1,261,820 622,564 - - - - 1,884,384
- (2,367,516} (637,376) (17.977) {1,864} {767} {214,008} (3,139,504}
- {34,720) {14,009) (498) - - - (49,227}
- 20,135,352 3,267,308 56,001 1,326 5,931 178,396 23,644,312

54,895 51,616,878 9,711,252 413,364 80,315 184,339 1,126,293 63,187,336
{41,950} (28,248,433} (5,646,423) {323,969) (75,024) {175,213) {871,733} (35,382,746}
{12,545} (3,233,083} (797,623) {33,383} {3,965) {3,196) (76,163} {4,160,278)

- 20,135,352 3,267,306 56,001 1,326 5,931 178,396 23,644,312
4-33 4-33 4-33 20 15 20 4.33
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2024 2023
Note —remememees Rupees {'004)----mmmrmemn

Share in joint operations’ capital work in progress
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,101,149 3,587 696
Cost incurred during the year 1,411,903 3,393,976
Transferred {0 development and production assets - {3,523
Transferred o share in joint operations’ fixed assets {1,884,384) {2,877,000)

3,628,668 4,101,149
Accumulated impairment - - SRR S e B32 {224,501} - (225,285}
Balance at the end of the year 3,407 167 3,875,864

Total capitalized cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 223.8 million as at June 30, 2024
(2023: Rs. 235.2 million).

2024 2023
Note wwnnmmeneeRUPEES ("000)--mmmmmrnonas

Movement in accumulated impairment
Balance at the beginning of the vear 225,285 221,501
{Reversal} / charge for the year {3,784) 3,784
Balance at the end of the year 221.501 225285
Allocation of depreciation
Operating expenses 32 3,138,504 2,611,052
General and administrative expenses 35 41,550 22,291

3,181,054 2,633,343
Allocation of impairment
Operating expenses 32 45,443 104,076

As the Company is a non-operator, property, plant and equipment other than owned fixed assets are not in the
possession of the Company and are operated by joint operations in which the Company has working inierest.

2024 2023

INTANGIBLE ASSTES - SOFTWARES

Cost 169,556 116,589
Accumulated amortization (123,965} {114,926)
Net book value 45,591 1,663
Opening net book value 1,663 7.872
Additions 52,967 446
Disposals

Cost - -

Accumulated amoriization - -

Amortization charge for the year {9,039} {6,655}
Closing net book value 45,591 1,663
Annual rate of amortization (%) 33% 33%

NHTGL



EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Balance at beginning of the year
Expenditure incurred

Cost of dry and abandoned wells
Transfer to development and production assets

Baiance at end of the year

XRFTBL -

54

MNote

2024

e Rupees ('000)

4,438,429 5,775.066
40,523 442 770
4,478,952 5,217,836

- (185,804) - (7.160)] -
(313,010) (1,772,247)
(498,614) (1,779.407)
3,980,338 4,438,429
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DEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION ASSETS

2024 Cast Amortization Impairmant Carrying amaunt
: As at Additions De.:?justment ot Transfors As at As at Charge As at As at Charge As at As at
Pasticulars Working Interest Julby 1, 2023 Cost hd June 3¢, 2024 July 1, 2023 for the year June 3G, 2024 July 1, 2023 forthe year June 30, 2024 June 30, 2024
) Rupees {1000} Rupees (000, Ruypees (000 Rupess {080}
Produging ficlds-Juint operations
Baein [ 306,192 | - - - - 356,79 108,792 B 108,792 - - -
Binck 22 (il tetds) 259,905 ! 4,157 - - - 264,082 204758 2,201 206,91% 55,187 1,855 57,143
s 81,707 5317 ¢ - - - 787,024 478,387 17,3983 £96,380 - - -
3812 ¢ .o 228 (1,987) - 2,066 1457 13 1,884 B . -
138602 - - - - 136,607 415272 - 115,273 21,528 - 1328
Siveen 3,422,952 - {2,106} {50,046) - 3,370,808 2551270 19,343 2,870,713 604,063 - 04,083
Zamzarma 2R 00 4,766,455 - (25} (4,272} “ 4,762,181 3.726.263 9,579 3.736,842 1846730 - 1516710
baeak 25.00% 1,449,138 10,581 8,958 (8,582); . 1,458,714 2T e 1903 284,283 1882878 11,180 1,101,055
d 2250% 587844 9,541 465 (33433352 - 544,018 300,008 49,232 358,240 - - -
dshsan 25 6% 43,208 - - « - 69,203 1333 - 1,923 67,270 - 67,270
Ghanda 1,616,438 881,802 - - 452,881 2,851,120 1,275.598 303,603 1.578,70% - - -
449,656 - - - - 449,656 245573 - 249,973 199,642 - 199,682
8,674,834 665,185 {212,476} 14,883} 432 422,182 5861900 467,092 6,145,982 - - -
s} 3,859,468 24,088 2,286 {23,885} - 3,861,937 2752704 257,520 3,620,224 - - -
puskhas {al feids) 7,297,742 1,184,937 {212,454} {80,763} 23,890 8,213,087 5,786,683 1,138,682 6,326,348 . - -
Chaohar 251,248 - - {61} - 251,187 159,176 40 153,218 91,685 - 91,855
Nashpix 5529.430 284,713 - {33,176} 42054 6,033,072 3,172,179 47,048 349,227 - - -
Sirdhoro 1.06%,313 581,663 82,450 {112,891} 214681 1835416 610,550 137,535 742,085 . - - 1,087,321
Meehar 4,343 458 22,383 {71,837 - 825,833 §,125,047 2,256,178 130,394 2,966,432 852,482 199,821 1,458,103 1,100.452
dhakrn 10,107 - - - - 10,147 10,079 - 10,079 28 - 28 -
Guddl 153,277 - a7 {3,135} - 140,229 125,154 2,851 128,065 L - - 12.234
Halan 463,378 23 {34} (ta.713} - 848,674 502641 7,420 508,881 - - - 38,813
Giambat Salth 208,950 - (104} {H12,707} 313010 2,017,148 897,226 132,788 1,630,014 - - - 1,187,434
Bitrizien 310,524 65,855 (45,043} {3,497} - 318,049 143,028 56,124 498,182 - - - 118,687
Tando Allan Yor {ail Goelds) Jase2? 40,854 11232 (27,2024 184,137 803,449 236,141 24,164 260,305 - - “ 343,444
Shab Bandar 59,017 10,771 328 (326} - 69,783 59,016 - 59,016 - - - 18,772
Khewart 207,382 175,290 (101,681 {14,852} 58,308 328,848 46,554 65,021 1%1,585 a - “ 217,262
Dhak Suttan 1,764,834 - - {12032} - 1,752,902 1,008,390 284,682 1,362,982 - - - 489,830
Driscamprasiening cost 4,500,642 315,436 ¢ {887 472} - 4,516,655 2,524.808 795,884 3,320,672 244,364 1 232,309 536,871 650,210
Sub total producing tiekds 52,383,188 4,843,757 {543.126) {1,446,362) 2,814,537 58,081,575 35,761,669 S097.TH 40,858,398 4,242 864 805,066 4.753.230 12438247

“This

whades Teveridl 9f decommssonmg Eos! amauntng Rs. 588 millon direatly maky against related Beld gssels under pravisions of IFRIC 1. Changes in westng decomprissioning. restorstion and simlar ixbilbes.
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Develeping tiskis~joint operations

26~

20624 Cost Aimortization Imparment Carrying amount
. X As at Additions M Adms"."e!“ Q.f . Ag at As at Charge As at As at Charge Azt As at
Farticulars Working fnterest July 1, 2023 Cost Juza 20, 2024 July 1,2023 far the yaar Juna 30, 2024 Juiy 1, 2023 faf the year June 30, 2024 dune 30, 2024
) Rupees {090} Rupges {1091 Rupees (600) Rupaes ('000)
Beveloping finlds-Joint oporations
Blokar 825633 § - 1825,633) - - - 108,644 {198,644} - -
Tasnche Allzsh Yar fadt fioids) 184,138 - - {184,128} - - - - - - - -
dandi 3,577 - - 1577 - - - 3877 - 35 -
Mty {2.807} - - . (2,807) - . . - - {2,807}
94,771 - - {13,888} 40,891 - - 0624 i 50,524 30,967
- 54,863 - - - 54,863 - - - - - 54,8683
1,404 18,928 {323 - {432) 11,271 - - - . - - 11,274
plaihas (ail firlds} 23,600 96,943 - - {23.600) 94,942 - - - - - 96,842
Fhipra (@ findds) 12,039 456,419 (21,688} - - 441,771 - - - - 441,771
MNazbps 1,515,568 145,711 - - {742.054) 913245 - “ . - . 219,245
Garmibal Bouth 634,777 - - - - 634,777 - - - - : - 834,177
Blonk-22 16,534 - - - - 15,534 - - - 15,534 i 15,534 -
Suthora 214,881 333,785 - - {214,681} 331,766 - - - - - 333,736
Shands 452,851 - - {452,881} - - - - - i - -
Koneweats $2.441 - - . (58.308): 34,133 - - - - i - 34133
Decommissionng cost 112,524 - - - - \ 112,624 - . - 7,204 - 7.294 105,230
Sub total doveloping fiokds 4,180,361 1,092,669 {22,015) {13,880) (2,501,128} 2,738,507 - - - 185,87% {198,644} 77,229 2,558,278
Total 36,564,029 5.935.426 863,142) 11.460.241) 33010 $0,788,082 38,761,889 5,097,731 40,859,398 4,434,737 395,422 4,831,159 15,897,828

Davaiaping felds comprise of cost of walls and related axpenditure which are under davelopment! under deilling and . hence, no amortization thereon has beea charged

THRTAL -
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DEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION ASSETS

“Thi il i

DATES -

1ol decommissioning tost smoustng Re 123 mition directly madea aqaingt rdated fiold assets usdar provisions of IFRIG 1 - Changes in eesting docomaussioning. sestoration and seailar liatilities

2023 “ost Amortization fmpairment Carrying amount
: £ at ot ) A“‘”S‘m”f:n'::‘ Feanstare As at As ot GCharge As at s at Charge As at asat
Particulars Working interest July ¥, 2022 o d S June 30, 2623 July ¥, 2622 for the year June 30, 2023 Juty 1, 2022 for the year June 30, 2023 June 30, 2027
Rupees (080} Rupees (500) Rupees (900} Rupaes 1000}
Producing fields-Joint sperations
25.00% 306,792 - . - - 106,787 106,792 - 306,782 - - - -
22.50% 259,805 - - - - 259,905 204,718 - 204,718 55,187 - 55187 -
AbmadalFarwat 17 50% 719472 2,238 - - - 781,707 637,512 41478 578,387 - - - 102,728
Tt 17.50% 3,831 - (19 - - 3,812 1782 87 1,887 - " - 1,945
Fazarani 136,602 - - - - 136,802 115,273 - 118,273 21,028 - 21328 1
Sawan 3.420,32% 2631 - - - 3422852 2,523,016 28,352 2,651,370 604,083 - 604,063 187,519
Zamzama 4,774,426 15,660 {2,124} {21,493} - 4,766,459 3711562 15,301 3,726,283 10%6,730 - 108,720 22,868
E 1,404,708 96,628 £62,390) - - 1,448,138 21211 5,187 277378 1,089,575 - 1,088,875 #,688
520,844 145,130 {102,131} - - 567,844 237,483 71,525 300,608 - - - 258,838
Aehrar 69,203 - i - - - £9,203 1333 - 1,833 67,270 - 67,278 -
Chanda 1.48765,425 - - - - 1616438 1,166,439 168,618 1275893 - - - 341,338
Gambnt 442,403 7,253 1 - - - 449,856 242720 7.2583 249,573 139,882 - 193,882 i
Taita B 6,253,875 19,5832 ; %341 142,262} 255,348 £,674,534 5272414 383,436 5,661,300 - - - 1,012,734
Khépre ( 3.245,89% 469,855 (5,245} - 148,867 3,859,468 2,413,364 248,350 2.762,704 - - 1,096,764
Kiirpur$aas {ai 25.00% 6,200,828 1,063,366 {114,136} - 143,304 7,281,743 5,136,448 30,235 5,786,883 + - " 1,511,060
Chaehar 25.00% 251.86% - - {613) - 281,248 158,060 118 189178 91,855 - 91,555 Fat
Nashps 15.60% 5.029,483 - {3} - - 5,029,480 2,734,902 437,277 3,172,178 - - - 1,887,301
injhoro 22.50% 830,290 78051 - {2,337) 163,610 1,069,313 472,602 § 137,848 $10,650 . - - 458,763
Klghat 25.00% 4,372,464 15,945 (38.891) - - 4,349,458 1,045,130 540,442 2356178 671,218 187,264 B5g a8z 1,234,798
Jhakio 22 50% 10,167 - . - - 10,107 10,079 - 10,079 28 - 28 -
Gudda 22.50% 154,239 28 - {1,681) - 163,277 114,855 ¢ 5.29% 125,154 - - - 28,123
Botar 750 65,845 - {2437} - - 563,378 [ERTL N 28,510 50250 - - 40,737
Gambat South 25 00% 1,734,530 - - {53,887) 335,907 2,016,950 702,527 194,699 897,226 - - 1119724
Bitrisim 22.50% J12.907 123 {3,203} - - 0934 124,232 22,796 143,028 - - - 187,908
Tando Allsh Yae (2l fisids 22.50% 258,518 §1.506 - {709) 25311 34627 LR w67 236,341 - - 168,386
Shah Bandar 250% 59,017 - - . - 59,017 57,030 1,886 59,016 - - “ 1
Bhwart 22.50% 209,763 - {2,381} - - 207,382 £770 39,784 46,554 - - 160,828
Dhok Saltan 23.00% - - - - 1,764,954 1764954 . 1.408,290 1008290 - - - 756,564
Dlecommizsioning cust 3.062,347 1,660,708 £139.083) 7.293 4,550,692 1,861,536 $63.272 2,524,808 231821 12.443 74,364 1821820
Sub total producing flolds 48,287,712 3,822,756 {389.442) t261.845) 2,843,994 52,38%.468 31,022.498 4,739,174 35,761,669 4,049,157 T19w707 4,248 364 12,372,635
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Deveteping ticlds-Joint operations -
2023 . Cast Amortization mpairmant Carrythy amount
s . Ag at s - DEAd]us(r_ne!n n'f Transfers Asat As at Charge Ag at As ot Charge As at Asat
Partieulars Working Interest July 1, 2022 v a Cost b June 3¢, 2023 July 1, 2022 tor tha year June 34, 2023 July 1, 2022 for the year June 30, 1023 June 30, 1623
: P £0003 Rupees 000} Rupees {005} Rupees {008
Develeping ficdds-loint aperations
25.00% i - 825,033 - - - 825,032 - . - . 108,644 108,544 716,389 ;
Tanda Allsk Yar (21 fields) 22.50% 25,311 184,137 - - {25,311) 184,138 - - - - - - .08 !
Kandra 25.00% 3577 - - - - 3577 . - . 3577 - 3,577 -
22.50% {2,807} - - - - {2,807) - - - - - - {2,807}
07942 6,828 - - - 93,771 - - - 50,824 - 50,824 43,947 ¢
rn 255,368 | 1,104 {17} - (258,249} 1,404 - - - - v - 10
. 129,781 ! 23,508 - B 138,784} 23,680 N « - « B - 23,600 3
156,287 5.61% - - {148,867} 13,025 - - - - - - 13.039
572,561 442,087 - - - 1,515,568 - - - - - - 1,515,568
970584 - - - {235,807} €34,777 - - - - - - 634,777
18,834 - - - - 15,834 - - - 15,534 - 16,534 -
s ¢ 1£3.010 244,681 - - {163,010} 234,681 - - - - - - 214,681 ¢
! Chards - 452,881 - - - 452,881 . . . . . . 452,881 |
Kheswvar 108,700 - {16,259} - - 92,441 - - - - - - 97,441 ¢
Dieommissioning cost . 124,495 ] - - {11871} - 112,524 - v - 7,284 - 7.294 105,230 ¢
Suh total developing Helds : 2820480 2636872 {18.277%) {11,871} (1,068.224) 4,180,861 - B " 17,229 0E,544 185,873 2,594,958
ey Tutad - 48,208,174 479,828 {325,725) {273,215} 1,775,769 56,564,029 31,022,498 4733174 45,761,689 4,126,188 308,352 4.434,737 16,367,623
$3  Devsopng Felds comprise of cost of welis and related exponditire which ate arder developmaent under drilling and, honce, no amortization thareon has been charged
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Mole 2024 2023
wamnrnpmsanseen-RUPEES {'VGD)omemmomaneneas
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Investment In subsidiaries - at cost
Inter Slate Gas Systems (Provaie) Lisvted (18GSL) 101
Shares issued by ISGSE 5,294,912 17
Advance against issue of shares 1,649,329 525,089
§,%44,241 5818.95"
Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) 102 30,000 30,800
6,974,241

Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGSL) was incorporated on August 4, 1996 in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repeaiad by
Companies Act,-2017} as a private limited company. The Company has a shareholding of 100% with 529,491 231 {2023 100% with 529,491,231} equity shares of -
Rs. 13 each heid in ISGSL. Significant projecis being pursued by the ISGSL include;

- Pakistan Stream Gas Pipeline (PSGP) Project {formerly known as North South Gas Pipeling);
- Turkmenistan - Afghanistan - Pakistan - India {TAP!) Gas Pipeline;

- kan Pakistan (IP} Gas Pipeline Project; and

- Strategic Linderground Gas Storage (SUGS) Prolect

2024 2023

Movement in investment in ISGSL during the year is as follows conmomenme e RUPEES (FON}-mmmmmnmaammannre
Shares issued by ISGSL

Biatance at the beginning of the year 5,294,912 3.401,265%

Shares issued against advance during the year . 1.BO3BEY

Batance al the end of the year 5,294,912 5,284,012
Advance againsi issue of shares

Balance at the baginning of the year 525,069 2,329 895

Shares issued against advance during the year - (1,893,550

Advance disbursed for issue of shares 1,124,260 88,825

Balance at the end of the year 1.649,328 525 069

6,944,241 egiogp!

Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL} was incorporated in Pakistan as a public company on December 11, 2015 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 {repealed by the
Companies Act, 2017).The Company has a shareholding of 100% with 1,500,003 (2023:100% with 1,500,003) equity shares of Rs. 10 each held in PLL.

Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL} was merged into PLL with PLL being the suraving entity with effect from January 1, 2021, The 1,500,000 equily shates al
Rs. 10 each of PLTL were transferred to PLL.

During the year ended June 30, 2024 management assessed the investment in ISGSL for impairment n respect of triggering events as specified by IAS 36
applicable 1o the non-current assets. An impairment test has been carried out by the management to defermine the recoverable amouni of non-current asseis of
ISGSL due to changes impacting the projects being pursued by ISGSL on account of non-availability of necessary financing, implementation delays and
infernational sanctions on iran ieading to significant project delays efc.

For the purpose of determining the recoverable amount, the management performed impairment assessment during the year ended June 30, 20624 using the vaius-
in-use (ViU) madel. In assessing the vaiue in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value, using a discount rate that is based weighted
average cost of capital of the Company adiusted for the industry average gearing and market sensitivity {beta equity). The discount rate applied o cash flow
projections is 15.8% per annum. The project's recoverable amount i-e VIU based on management cash flow forecasts is Rs. 18,255 milion which is delerminad o
be higher than the carrying amounti. In view of foregoing and legal opinion oblained by ISGSL, management has concluded that thera is no need 1o recognize an
impairment [oss in the financial stalements

2024 2023
Note e Rupees {'008)--

LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
Unquoted Company
Foreign QOperation - Pakistan International Oil Limited (PIOL)

Cost of investment (6,000,000 {2023: 3,560,000) fully

paid ordinary shares of USD 10 each) 111 13,534,700 5431700
Post acquisition fosses brought forward (875,719} (2.039.571)
Share of loss for the year - net of tax 11.2 {94,635} (297 1143
Effect of ranslation of investment (295,958) 1,460,002
(390,593) 1.163.792
Post acquisition losses carry forward {1,266,314) B75 719
Closing balance as at june 30 12,268,388 5555 007

WFT QY.
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 Pakistan International Gil Limited {PIOL) is a company engaged in the extraction of ol and natural gas and is registered as a imited Lability company in the Emi

30-

2024 2023
Note s Rupees (000)---mmmovmmmmenn

Pakistan Minerais (Private) Limited - PMPL
Cost of investment 113 41,637,955 36,569 203
Post acquistion profits brought forward 13,634,057 -
Share of loss Tor the year - net of tax {2,173,333} {386,040}
Share of other comprehensive (loss} 7 income for the year - net of tax (1,003,132} oo taernouy
Tolal {loss) / profit for the year 114 (3,175,465} 13,634,657
Past acquisition peofil carry forward 10,457,592 13,634 057
Closing balance as at June 30 52,095,547 50,203 280

£4,363,935 55752241

of Abu Dhabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi Global Market, Each consortium company {investors) which includes the Company, Mart Peticieum Company limile
(MPCL), Pakistan Petroleum Company Uimited (PPL) and Oit & Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL) each having a 25% aquity stake in PIOL. The
concession agreement between PIOL and Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC) was signed on August 31, 2021 and the Offshore Blogk 5 was awarded {0
POL. During the year, the Company has made equity contribution amounting to USD 25 million; Rs. 7,103 miliion {2023: USD 10 milion; Rs 2,226 million}.

The loss for the pericd mainly relates fo exploration and evaiuation expenses incurred by PiOL.

The Company has invested in the project company, i.e. Reko Dig Mining Company (Private} Limited (RDMC) through Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited (PIMPL;
an enlity incorporated in Pakistan. RDMC is engaged in the mineral exploration aciivities in Pakistan, PMPL holds an indirect working interest of 26% (8.33%. of
gach SOE) in the RDMC through offshore hoiding companies namely Reko Dig Holdings Limited and Reko Dig Investments Limited (hereinafter referred o as
“Holdcos™). RDMC is incorporated in Pakistan and Hoidcos are incorporated in Baitiwick of Jersey. The Company's equily interest in PMPL is 33.33% with an
effective interest of 8.33% in RDMC. The SOEs have representation on the Boards of Holdcos and RDMC through PMPL. Till 30 Jurne 2024, the Company has
invested Rs 0.4 million (2023 Rs 0.4 miition) for 4,000 ordinary shares of PMPL and also made advance agamst fulure issue of shares of Rs 41,638 midlion {2023
Rs 36,569 million}

During the year and as at year end, based on directions from GoP, the SOEs are in the process of discussing and evaluating the terms of a polential transachion
wilh & Sovereign foreign investor with respect to divestment in the Reko Dig Project and advisors were appointed through PMPL {6 assist in s regard The
divestment and its conditions will reguire significant approvals including from the Federal Cabinet of GoP, Board of Direclors and shareholders of the SOEs and
other investors of the Reko Dig project. The managment expects the recoverable amount 1o be higher than the carrying value of investment in PMPL.

The 10ss for the period mainly relates to PMPL's share of loss in its associated Company, Reko Dig Hoidings Limited (RDHL) white the other comprehensive 1053
relates 10 loss on retransiation of PMPL's share of invesiment in foreign operation i-e RGHL

Summarized financial information for associates

The share of loss of PMPL. and the bejow summarized financial information is based on the audited financial statements of the associate for the year ended June
30, 2024 whereas share of 1055 of PIOL and the below summarized financlal information is based on the audited nancial siatements of the associate for the year
endad December 31, 2023, adjusted for transactions and evenis up {o June 30, 2024 based on management accounis, in USD. converled info PKR al closing
exchange rale.

PMPL PHOL
2024 2023 2024 2023
---------- Rupees {000} -~eem nmeneeneen RUpRES [DGO) rmomeeee

Summarized statement of financial posgition
Current assels 266,181 120,521 35,633,2M 14.080.086
Non-current assets 168,804,655 167,171,543 20,723,848 B 845 BER
Current liabilities {198,436) {8,590} {7,289,6468) (701 806}
Non Current Habilities {12,886,616) £16,710,030; - -
Met asseis 155,987,790 150,573,444 43,073,551 22223922
Reconciliation te carrying amounts:
Opening net assets 150,573,444 - 22,223,822 8,663.954
Issued share capital - 120 28,412,000 8904 800
Advance against issue of shares 14,943,742 109,671,153 - -
Loss for the year {6,520,000) (1,158,120 (378,537) {1.185.43%
Other comprehensive (loss} / income $3,009,396) 42,060,294 -
Retfranslation of investment - - {1,183,834) 5,843807

155 987,790 150573 444 49,073,551 22223577
Company's percentage shareholding in the associales 33.33% 33.33% 25% 25
Company's share in carrying value of net assets 51,995,930 50,161,148 12,268,388 5855 981
Others - exchangs rate difference on equity contributions 99,617 12142 - e

52,095,547 5 203,260 12,268,388 5 555 GR1

Summarized statement of comprehensive income
Total comprehensive {Joss) / profit for the year (9,529,396} 40,902,171 (378.537)
Share of comprehensive (loss}/ profit (3,178,465} 13.634.067 {94.634)

-
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RECEWABLE FROM GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN {GoP)

2024 2023
MNon -
Note Current Total Current Non - Current Total
Current
v e =R UPEES {000} Rupees (000 ) rimimiieais
Receivable from GoP 12.1

Principal amount 5,489,913 58,409,218 64,899,131 - 64,899,131 54 899 131
Accrued nterest 6,999,956 - 6,999,956 5,548,325 - 5,548,325

13,489,869 58,409,218 71,899,087 5,848 325

64 896131 70.447 456

This represents receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) against the loan from the National Bank of Pakistan (NBP}
availed by GoP through the company, for a tenor of seven years at markup rate of KIBOR + 0,20%. in order to fuffill the commitment
of GoP towards the Government of Balochistan (GoB} for acquisition of equity stake in the Reko Dig Project. The principal amount
is inclusive of all related expenses i.e. transaction cost, out of pocket expense incurred by the company. Accordingly, the receivable
from GoP as well as related finance income has been apportioned into current and non-current assets.

Movement in principal amount and interest accrued is as follows
Principal Amount;

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Principal amount received during the year
Batance at end of the year

Accrued Interest:
Balance at beginning of the year
Interest accrued during the year

Interest on loan from NBP directly repaid by GoP
Balance at end of the year

LONG TERM LOAN TO SUBSIDIARIES AND STAFF - UNSECURED

2024 2023

64,899,131 61,895,158
- 3,003,875

64,899,131 64.899,1271

5,548,325 2,071,800
14,580,316 8,714,875
{13,128,685) (6,238,358

6,999,956 5,548,325

2024 2023
Note Current Non - Total Current Non - Current Total
Current
------------------- Rupees {'{000)------m-omeeeeee memmmemrmneeee =R UDEES (D00}

i oan to subsidiaries

Principal
Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) 131 - “ “ 1,200,000 1,395,747 2,595,747
inter State Gas Systems
(Private) Limited (ISGSL) 13.2 18,118 - 18,118 107,966 - 107,966

Accrued Interest
Fakistan LNG Limited (PLL) - - - 304,462 1,238,526 1,542,988
inter State Gas Systems 1,268 - 1,268 82,886 - 82,8846
{Private) Limited (1SGSL)
L.oan to staff 13.3 41,730 103,167 144,897 25,904 72683 88 687

61,116 103,167 164,283 1,721,218 2,706,956 4428174

[ 0.
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2024 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 2,595,747 3.706,538
Repayment by PLL during the year (2,595,747} {1,040,291;
Adjustment of group tax benefit - {70,500
Balance atend of the year . - 2,585,747

The Company had provided advances to PLL for operational activities related to LNG imports and also to fulfill the guaraniess set
forth in the LNG import contracts. On November 22, 2017, the Company agreed o convert the entire amount of advances into an
interest-bearing loan, as agreed upon in the term sheet signed by both parties. On October 19, 2018, both parties renegotiated the
loan repayment schedule in a term sheet amendment, with the loan now payabie to the Company over a period of three years uniil
March 2021. The rate of interest on the loan was set o six (068) months KIBOR plus 2% as of the date of the transaction.

The loan repayment timeline was adjusted again in 2022 with PLL paying Rs. 20C million towards the principat and Rs. 50 million
towards the interest every two months thereon. The culstanding loan amount at beginning of the year along with interest accrued
thereon has been fully repaid by PLL.

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 107,966 270,302
Repayment by ISGSL during the year - {77,383
Adiusiment of group tax benefit {89.848) (84,953)
Balance at end of the year 18,118 107,066

This represents amount paid fo ISGSL under a loan agreement signed by the Company and ISGSL on August 9, 2018 as per the
direclive of the ECC dated December 15, 2018, wherein ECC directed the Company o fund all expenditure on the Government
mandated projects being undertaken by the ISGSL. The loan carried an interest rate of annual KIBOR + 0.1% effective from the date
of disbursement. Loan along with interest was repayable in a single buliet payment due on December 14, 2020.

The facility was entered into in line with ECC decision, however, as a secondary arrangement secured by the way of lien, charge.
first and preferred right/interest on any of the assets/properties whether movabie or immovable, rights, interests, gross revenues.
profits, receivables and properties whether existing or acquired In future wherein the 1SGSL has any ownership, right or interest
ISGSL can not dispose of any of the properties and assets as mentioned hereinabove, except with the prior written consent of the
Company.The management expects that amount will be settled in the next financial year.

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 98,587 31,083
Loan disbursed during the year 90,660 87179
Repayment received during the year {44 350% (19,675}
Balance at end of the year 144,897 98.587

JRATAL -
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2024 2023

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS - SHARE IN
JOINT OPERATIONS' INVENTORY

Stores, spares and loose tools 5,430,932 5.206.060

impairment for slow moving and obscleie slores, spares

and loose tools 4.1 {495,707} {495,707}
5935225 4,850,360

Movement of provision for slow moving, obsolete ~ ~ ~~ ~ 7~~~ ’ o
and in transit stores

Balance at beginning of the year 495,707 495 707
Impairment charge for the year - . -
Balance at end of the year 485,707 495 707

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are distinguishable upon usage

2024 2023

---------------- Rupees (000)rmrrrs
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued inlerest receivable on bank deposils 321,394 137.567

This represents interest accrued on local currency bank deposits carrying mark-up at the rate ranging between 20.51% to 20.65%
per annum (2023 14.5% to 18.5% per annum) and fareign currency deposits carrying mark-up at the rate of 2.2% per annum
(2023 nii}.

2024 2023

srmmanammmreee-RUPERS {F0G0}----mmememenn
TRADE DERTS

Unsecured - considered good 222,951,132 191,708,855
Unsecured - considered doubtful 197,927 195,700

223,149,059 191,605,559
Provision for doubtiul debls (197,927) {196,700}

22295132 ___ 191708850

Trade debis mnclude overdue amount of Rs. 261,237 million (2023 Rs. 166,972 million) on account of Inter-corporate circular debt
from gas companies comprising of Hs. 143,623 million {2023 Rs. 116,506 milicn) and Rs. 57 614 million {2023 Rs. 50,467
miflion) overdue from related parties, Sui Southern Gas Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited respectively. The
managemeant of Company considers this amount to be fully recoverable becausse Government of Pakistan has been assuming the
responsibility o setle the nter-Corporate circular debt in the energy seclor. The Government of Pakistan {GoP) is committed,
haence continuously pursuing for satisfactory setilement of inter-corporate circular debi issue. however, the progress 1s slower than
expected resulting in accumulation of Company's rade debis. The Company recognizes interest / surcharge, if any. on delayed
payments from customers only to the extent that it is highly probable thal a significant reversal in the amount of income
recognized will not ocour when the uncertainty associated with the interest / surcharge is subsequently resolved, which 15 when
the interest/ surcharge on delayed payments is received by the Company. As disclosed in note 3.3 1o these financial statemnts.
SECHE has deferred the applicability of ECL model t December 31, 2024 on financal assets due directly ! ultimately from GoP m
consequence of the circular debt.

Total amount due from related parties as on June 30, 2024 is Rs 216,981 million (2023 Rs 182,859 million) and maximum amount
dug at the end of any month during the year was Rs 218,511 milkon (2023: Rs 182.859 milion). For party wise details refer note
40,

2024 2023

Movement in provision for doubiful debts

Balance at beginning of the year 196,760 538 704
Provision during the year 1,227 -
Reversal of pravigion - {343,004}
Balance at end of the year 197,927 196‘?06”

NINV/IZ
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2024 2023
ADVANCES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND SHORT TERM hote e Rupees {000} owmmneonns
PREPAYMENTS
Secured
Advances against salary {¢ staff 19,568 24,301
Unsecured and considered good .
Advances 1o suppliers 2,021 | 3083
Receivabie from ISGSL - related paty A I . - oL 150006
Payment of security services on behalf of subsidiaries 335 3L, 231 t
2,356 i53.284
Short term prepayments
Software maintenance fee 12,387 11,308
Insurance 4,601 8,782
16,988 20,090
38912 197885

This represents the funds provided to ISGSL by the Company under stop-gap arrangement, as per the directives of ECC, to meet
the funding requirements of ISGSEL. This Is interest free and recelvable on demand from ISGSL
2024 2023

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

tnvestment held at amortized cost

Locat currency term deposits with banks 63,065,628 28.258.016
Foreign currency term deposits with banks 4,733,426 -
67,798,054 28,258,016

investment in term deposit receipts placed with the commercial banks. The breakup is as under.

2024 2023

Credit rating Rating agency Rate e Rupees {000} e
Local currency term deposits maturing within three months
A1+ VIS 19.00% 8,000,000 000,000
A1+ PACRA 19.05% 30,000,000 8.000,000
A1+ PACRA 19.10% 25,000,000 12,000,000
interest accrued 65,628 258,016

63,085,628 28,258,016
Foreign currency term deposits maturing within three months
At PACRA 7.0% - B8.5% 4,676,005 -
interest accrued 57,421 -

4,733,426 -

Total investments 67,799,054 26258016

This include Hs 10,000 million (2023: Rs 5,000 million} which is subject to restriction as the amount is reserved against funded
mining project reserve which is further explained in note 21.5.

AT -



19

3.1

19.2

19.3

20

0.1

“35.

Note
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Local Currency
-Cash in hand
-Cash at banks - savings accounis 191
Foreign Gurrency
-Cash at banks - savings accounts 182

2024 2023
B ettt LU V] -1 T R L1117 M
185 41
3,122,915 7,332,145
2,557 -
3,125,667 7,332,186

These carry mark-up upto 20.50% - 20, 70% per annum (2023 12.258% - 20.00% per annum)

These represent foreign currency deposit with commercial bank amounting to USD 2,189 (2023 USD nil} and carry mark-up at

the rate of 2.20% per annum.

2024 2023
Note  eenvsumsssnan] Rupees {'000)-mrmrresraeres
Cash and cash eguivalents
Term deposit receipts {TDRs) 18.1 66,303,825 28,258,016
Cash and bank balances 19 3,125,667 7.332.156
Accrued interest receivable on bank deposits 15 321,394 137.5687
69,750,886 35727763
Less: TDRs reserved against mining project reserve 21 {10,000,000; {5.000,000;
59,750,886 30,727,769
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
remmmeemeeeme M ipmMbEr Of shares----------—-- B 1 1172 1YY S N 1]} R LR
4,500,000,000 4,500,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 45,600,000 45.000,000
I1ssued, subscribed and paid up capital
2024 2023
remmmmmmm e NUMDEE Of Sharg§aueeuscuns
Qrdinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid
2322121233 2322121233 i cash 23,221,212 23,221,212
2,322,121,233 2.164,316,981 Weighled average shares
The movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital is as folows:
2024 2023 2024 2023
«««««««««««« Number of shareswe wreeetcee Rupees (000)---r-camemeemeen
At July 1 2,322,921,233  2,132,756,107 23,224,212 21,327 581
Crdinary shares of Rs 10 each paid in
cash issued during the year - 189,365,128 - 1,893,651
At June 30 2,322,121,233 2.322.121.233 3.a0t.212 | 23221212

AR
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Government of Pakistan (GoP) holds 100% shares. Of these shares, two nominee directors hold one gualification share.
each. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. GoP as hoider of these shares is
entitled to dividend as declared from time fo time and are entitled to vote at general mestings of the Company.

During the vyear, the Pakistan Sovereign Wealth Fund Act, 2023 became effective. Under the said Act the GoP's
shareholding in the Company stands transferred to the Pakistan Sovereign Weaith Fund (PSWF). Accordingly, the GoP s in
the process of taking necessary actions required to record the transfer of the shares to PSWEF.

Economic Coordination Commities (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, in i#s decision on Case No ECC-145/25/2015 dated
December 18, 2018, in respect of the "Funding of Expenditure of Inter State Gas Systems Private Limited’, approved that the

~ Company is to fund all project activities of ISGSL as a 100% subsidiary company and all Government investments {e.g. from

GIDC) in projects being undertaken by ISGSL shall be routed through the Company. Pursuant to the foregoing, the Finance
Division vide its Office Memorandum No. F. 4{2} CF-VI2007 dated October 24, 2017 instructed ISGSL fo issue shares {o the
Company being its Parent Company and going forward the Company is required issue the shares in the name of the
President of Pakistan through Secretary M/o Energy (Petroleum Division) in relation to the Governmeant's investment in
ISGSL's projects. Accordingly the increase in share capital of the Company represents Government's investment in ISGSL
being routed through the Company.

2024 2023
Note  ermeremreeeas Rupees ('000)----------m-
RESERVES
Other reserves
Foreign currency transtation reserve 21.2 1,229,238 1,451,207
Foreign currency transiation reserve - associated company 213 13,016,966 14,020,098
14,248,204 15,471,304
Capital reserves
Assets acquisition reserve 21.4 5,000,000 5,000,000
Mining project resaerve 215 20,000,000 1| 20000000
25,000,000 25,000,000
39,246,204 40,471,304

The Company has appropriated and created these reserves in accordance with the principles of prudence.
This represents the translation reserve net of related tax of the retransiation of the investment in the associated company.
This represents accumulated balance of translation effect of a foreign operation in Rupees of associated company.

in view of the Company's business expansion, i is intended to acquire sizable production reserves for which a separate
asset acquisition reserve has been established. The Company plans to continue to build up this reserve in future years.
Accordingly, this reserve is not availabie for distribution to shareholders.

This reserve is created in view of the future funding requirements for the Reko-Dig project. These reserves are to be funded
for which the Company plan to accumulate the reguired funds over a period of four years starting from year ended June 30
2023. This reserve is not available for distribution to sharehclders. Refer note 18.2 for funds earmarked against the reserve

2024 2023

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Due 1o the joint operators 22.1 6,133,871 6,175,325
Current portion shown under current liabilities {1,903,482) {1,867 523)

4,230,383 4,507,802
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22.1  This represents long term liability on account of the Company's carried interest of 5% in the exploration expenditure of
various joint operations. This expenditure is incurred by the joint operation partners up to the date of commercial discovery,
and the amount will be adjusted in five egual annual installments, against the Company's share of commercial production n
each respective joint operation.

2024 2023
Note e Rupees ({000} --rmrmmrmsmnmae
Balance at beginning of the year 6,175,328 5,036,503
Unwinding of long term liability 33 261,286 137.133
Payments netofexchangeloss . (330,494)  (396,714)
Additions / adjustments during the year 277,932 207779
Discounting of long {erm fiahility 22.2 359,825 (519,532}
Unrealized exchange {(gain) / loss on revaluation {610,004) 1,710,156
8,133,871 8,175.325
22.2  Longterm liabilites in US Dollars have been discounted at a rate of 5.39% (2023: 5.85%).
23 LOAN FROM NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (NBP)} - SECURED
2024 2023
MNote  Current Non - Total Current Nor - Total
Current Current
------------------- Rupees ((000)--—-errecvocannen e ALY | 11N (L 1101 R
Long term loan 23.1
Principa!l amount 5,489,913 58,408,218 54,899,131 64,899,131 64,889,131
Accrued Interest 5,999,956 - 6,999,956 5,548,325 - 5,548,325
13,489,869 58,409,218 71,889,087 5,548,325 64,859,131 70,447,455

231 This represents the long term finance facility obtained by the Company from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) to setile the
short term finance facility obtained by the company on behalf of the GoP in order to fulfill the comimitment of the Government
of Pakistan (GoP) towards the Government of Balochistan (GoB) in relation to Reko Dig project. The loan carries interes!
calcutated at 8-month Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) + 0.20% effective from the date of disbursement. The loan
was availed for a tenor of seven years (inclusive of a two-year grace period) with effect from December 31, 2022 and is
repayable in equal semi annual instaliments of principal amount starting from June 30, 2025. The loan is secured against a
GoP guarantee and letter of comfort.

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 70,447,456 -
Draw down during the year - 64,899,131
Interest accrued during the year 14,580,316 5,548,325
Repayments during the year {13,128,685) -
Balance at end of the year 71,899,087 70,447 456

24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / (ASSET)

Deferred tax (asset) / liabiity 24.1 {5,849,021) 315880

24.1  Movement in the deferred tax liability:

Batance at the beginning of the year 315,880 2,579,808
Credited to the statement of profit or ioss 38 {8,076,727) (2,839,448}
{Credited) / Debited to statement of other comprehensive income (88,174) 375,430

{5,849,021) 315,880

HIFY
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Deferred tax comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:

Accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Development and production expenditure

Unwinding of long term labiiity {carried interest)

Effects of iransiation of investment in a foreign associate

Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of;-

tmpairment of stores, spares and loose tools
Provision for decommissioning cost

Unrealized exchange loss

Work in progress

Expenditure of exploration and prospecting
Provision for windfali levy on oil / condensate
Remeasurement of employees’ retirement benefits
Net impairment loss on financial assets

Share of loss from associate

Deferred tax has been calculated at the current effective tax rate of 50% (2023 50%).

PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST

Provision for decommissioning cost
Provision for decommissioning cost

Balance at the beginning of the year

Provision made during the year

Revisions due {o change in estimates

Revaiuation exchange {loss) / gain

Unwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning cost

Provision made during the year is distriputed as under

Share in Joint operations’ fixed assets
Share in Joint operations’ fixed assets - CWIP
Deveiopment and production assets

Note

251

252
253

33

6.2
6.3

Revisions due io changes in estimates during the year are distributed as under

Share in joint operations' fixed assels

Share in joint operations’ fixed assets - CWIP
Development and production assets
Operating expenses

Significant financial assumptions used were as follows:

Discourt rate per annum
tnflation rate per annum

6.2
8.3

32

2024

7,367,064 7,330.655 |
6,168,913 5,275,558 |
215,237 525,794 |
409,746 483,735
14,160,960 13,615,743
(247,854) (247,854}
(2,324,652) 658,643
(2,165,787) (1.956,638)
(145,718) (198,285}
(2,458,761) (2,070,487
(11,786,230) (8,642,719)
{55,692) (41,507)
(98,964) (98,350)
(726,323) (702,668}
(20,009,981) (13,299,863)
{5,849,021) 315,880
12,047,359 14,408,445
14,408,445 8,240,516
887,107 2,497 657
(4,064,344) (714,814
(421,261) 3,461,250
1,237,412 923,438
12,047,359 14,408,445
73,671 752,594
. 84,958
813,436 1,660,105
887,107 2,497 857
(1,296,031} (47,592
(11,329) (1.649)
(1,460,241} (273.815)
(1,296,743) (391,758
{4,084344)  (714574)
6.8% ~9.97%  7.5% ~114%
2.07% 5.81%



26

26.1

-39-

Mote
DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Accumuiating compensated absences 26.1

Accumulating compensated absences

Present value of defined benefit obligation at

beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Payments made during the year A
Remeasurement of accumulating leave absences

Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year

The movement in liability recognized in the statement of financial
position is as foliows:

Liability at beginning of the year
Expense for the year

Payments o the fund during the yvear
Liability at end of the year

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss:

Current service cost
Net interest cost
Remeasurement of accumulating leave absences

The remeasurement loss arising from:

Experience Adjustments

Principle actuarial assumptions:

Valuation discourt rate {%;)
Salary increase rate (%)

Sensitivity analysis

Defined Benefit Obligation
1% increase in discount rate
1% decrease in discount rate
1% increase in salary rate

1% decrease in salary rate

2024 2023
---------------- Rupees {"'000)-rr-reornrammomes
51,631 45 537
48,537 64,797
7,450 5,480
4,903 5,250
. (28,815) (51,794)
22,556 21,804
51,631 45,5637
45,637 64,797
34,909 32,534
{28,815) (61,794}
51,831 45,537
7,450 5,480
4,903 5,250
22,556 21,804
34,909 32,534
22,586 21,804
2024 2023
B e T oTc0y 1 2=V (- TR
14.00% 15.75%
13.00% 14.75%
2024 2023
--------------- Rupees (000} wmsaisnnin
51,631 45 537
47,560 42 182
56,241 49,338
56,194 49,298
47,535 42,164

Expected employee benefit cost to be recognized in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost
Interest expense

Description of risks to the Company

The compensated absences plans expose the Company to the following risks:

For the year
June 30, 2025
Rupees {('000)

10,276
7,228

17,504

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate 7 government bongs

any decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Salary increase / inftation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase
where benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely 1o have an impact on liability.

AATEL-
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27.2

27.3

40

- Mortatity risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected e, the actual life expectancy

is longer than assumed.

+

Note

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors due to joint operations
Accrued liabilites

_ Currentaccount with subsidiary - ISGSL. 271
Current account with subsidiary - PLL 27.2
Payable to gratuity fund 27.3

Payabie to provident fund
Sales tax payable

Other payables

Levies payable

Royalty payable

Provision for windfall levy on il / condensate 27.4

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the caloulation.

2024 2023

---------------- Rupees ((000)--~nrommmrrmraen
7,083,427 3,905,427
213,132 202,388
284,794 476,867
- 2,538,997
71,018 66,050
5,215 4,200
685,645 822,487
- 5,086
12,524 13,7143
1,080,348 888,657
23,572,460 17,285,437
33,008,563 26,207,297

This amount is the net of the advance tax paid by the Company on hehaif of ISGSL and the amount recoverable from
the Federal Board of Revenue {FBR} on behalf of ISGSL under group taxation.

This amount is net of the advance tax paid by the Company on behalf of PLL and the amount recoverable from the

Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) on behalf of PLL under group taxation.

Gratuity fund

The amount recognized in the statement of financial position is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net fiability at end of the year

The movement in liability recognized in the statement
of financial position is as follows:

Liability at beginning of the year

Expense for the year

Remeasurement loss recognized in other comprehensive income
during the year

Contributions to the fund during the year

Liability at end of the year

The movement in the present value of defined benefit
ohligation is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year
Current service cost

interest cost

Benefits paid

Remeasurement of defined henefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year

SRFILA-

2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Rupees ('000)--r=r-rrrmrmreae-
369,692 292,733
{298,674) (226,673}
71,018 66,060
66,060 68,539
42,648 37,225
28,369 28,835
{66,060) {68,539}
71,017 66.060
292,733 224 062
43,111 32,696
37,608 28,380
{35,967) {13,470}
32,208 21,074
369,692 292733
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2024 2023
---------------- Rupees (000} wwvuvuvimnn

The movement in the fair value of plan asseis is as follows:
Falr value of plan assetls at beginning of the year 228,673 166,623
Contributions 66,060 55 785
Payment by employer on behalf of plan - 12,754
Expected return on plan asseis 38,071 23,851
Benefits paid {35,967} {13,479
Remeasurement of plan assets 3,837 {7.761)
Fair value of plan assels at end of the year 298, 674 226,673
Detail of plan assets
Cash at bank 15,687 140,370
Term deposiis 282,987 86,303

298,874 226,673

Funds coverad were invested within limits specified by regulations governing investment of approved retirement funds
in Pakistan. The gratuity plan is a defined benefit final salary plan invested through approved trust fund. The fund is
governed under Trusis Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companies Act, 2017, the Income Tax Ordinance.
2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002. The frustees of the fund are responsible {o plan administration and investment
The Company appoints the frustees. All trustees are employees of the Company.

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss:

Currernt service cost 43,111 32,696
Net interest cost (4863} 4,528
42,648 37,228

Amounts recognized in statement of other comprehensive income:;

Remeasurement loss recognized on defined benefit obligation 32,206 21,074
Remeasurement {gain) / loss recognized on plan assets {3,837} 7,761
28,369 28,835

The remeasurement loss arising from:

Experience Adjustments 28,369 28835

Financial Assumptions R .
28,369 28,835

Principle actuarial assumptions:

Valuation discount rate (%) 14.00% 15.75%

Salary increase rate (%) 13.00% 14.75%

Mortality Rates Adjusted SLIC 2001-2005

2024 2023

Sensitivity Analysis

Befined Benefit Obligation 369,692 292,738
1% increase in discount rate 337,352 267 012
1% decrease in discount rate 407,651 322930
1% increase in salary rate 407,923 323,346
1% decrease in salary rate 336,458 266,314

ﬁi%?gﬁﬁ; N
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Expected defined benefit cost {o be recognized n statement of profit or loss

Current service cost
Interast expense
interest income on plan assels

Expected contributions fo gratuity fund

Description of risks to the Company

The gratully plans expose the Company to the foliowing fisks:

any decrgase in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

For the year

ending

June 30, 2025
Rupees {'000)

60,846
50,396
145,840}

65,402

71,018

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate / government bonds,

Salary increase / inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expecied salary increase,

where benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an impact on liability.

i

is longer than assumed.

l

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the aciuat life expectancy

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calculation.

investment risk - The risk of occurrence of losses relative to the expectad return on any particular investment.

2024 2023

Note  seevmmcsmiminnns Rupees {{000)---mwrmrmermmmmmnrere
Provision for windfall levy on oil / condensate
Balance at beginning of the year 17,285,437 11,403 5485
Provision made during the year 5,287,023 5,881,882
Balance at end of the year 2914 23,572,460 17,285,437
PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,836,207 4571974
Income tax paid during the year (30,760,201) (33,023,266}
Adjustment f (Recoverable) from FBR on behalf of PLL
under group taxation 2,705,142 (1,821,189
Adjustment / (Recoverable) from FBR on behalf of ISGSL
under group taxation 17,114 (284,794
Provision for current taxation for the year 38 43,725,702 39,193,482
Frovision for taxation - prior years 38 {5,864,765) -
Balance at the end of the year 18,659,199 8,836,207

WFTLY
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29.1

29.1.1

2912

2913

28.1.4

A3

The Honourabie Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP} through its decision dated NMovember 28, 2023 and writlen order
issued on January 08, 2024, dismissed Civil Petition filed by the tax authorities and has decided the matter of depletior
allowance in favour of the Company. Pursuant to the decision having attained finality, for the purpose of calculation of
depletion aliowance in accordance with Rule 3 of Part 1 of the Fifth Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, e
royally amount is not to be deducted when astablishing the wellhead value. Accordingly, the Company has reversed the
tax expense amoeunting o Rs 5,153 miliion bocked in pricr years in respect of depletion allowance from {ax years 2004
to 2021.

2024 2023

Contingencies

Relating to carried cost liability 28.1.1 2,323,297 2,507,151
Sales tax contingency 20.12 18,177,837 18,177,837
20,501,134 20684987

This represents contingencies in respect of 5% carried cost of the discovered fields where Declaration of
Commercialities {DOCs) have not yet been submitted at the year end and for those Development and Production
leases where the Company's estimates varies with those of the operator.

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued a show cause notice to the Company in respect of non-applicability of
zero percent sales tax on crude/condensate supplies from 2008-10 to 2013-14 as per SRO No. 548(1)/2008, which
inciudes the condition of "import and supplies thereof.” The Company disputed the notice on the grounds that it does
not import crude 7 condensate and filed writ petition with Isiamabad High Court. Singte bench of high court allowed
petition on ground of jurisdiction. FBR chalienged the order in appeal which was allowed and remanded back 1o single
bench of High Court for decision on merits. Petition is pending. The estimated tax contingency has been calculated
based on the sales tax amount invoived, penalty, and default surcharge.

The tax authorities had amended the assessments of the Company for the tax years 2003 to 2023 raising an aggregate
demand of Rs. 27,659 million, which primarily relates to depletion allowance, devetopment and production expenditure,
decommissioning cost, super tax, unrealized exchange losses, rebate on donation and tax credits under sections 51,
85 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company had paid the demanded amounts upto tax year 2020 under
protest to avoid penalties under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 and has initiated appeliate proceedings against the
disallowance which are pending at different appellate forums. In the above demanded amount, Rs 5,153 million was
disallowed on account of depletion allowance. However, the matter has been decided in favor of the Company which
has been further explained in note 28.1 to the financial statements.

Contingency with respect to imposition of Windfall Levy on oil / condensate

The Company is a working interest owner in Tal, Mirpur Khas, Khipro, Mehar, Mubarak, Tando Allah Yar, Gurgalot,
Sinjhoro, Bitrism, Khewari and Nim Blocks whose Petroleum Concession Agreements {PCAs) were exacuted under the
framework of Petroleum Policies 1994 and 1997.

Subseguently, in pursuance to the option available under Petroleum Policy 2012, the Company along with other
working interest owners signed Supplemental Agreements (SAs) with the Government of Pakistan (Gof) for
conversion of eligible existing and future discoveries under aforesaid PCAs to the Petroleum Policy {PP), 2012. Under
the said arrangement, price regimes prevailing in PP 2007, PP 2009 and PP 2012 in terms of PP 2012 shall be
applicable, correlated with the spud dates of the wells in the respective policies starting from November 27, 2607, The
conversion package as defined in the SAs included windfall levy on natural gas only.

NV TR



29.1.5

2916

2817

-44-

On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy {Petroleum Division) notified amendments in Petroleum Policy 2012
after approval from the Councll of Common Interests {CCI} dated November 24, 2017 which included imposition of
Windfall Levy on Qil / Condensate (WLO). The said nofification required the Supplemental Agreements already
executed for conversion from Petroleum policies of 1994 and 1897 to be amended within 90 days, failing which the
worling interest owners will not remain eligible for gas price incentive. Directorate General Pefroleum Concessions
(DGPCY, on January 3, 2018, required ali exploration and production companies to submit supplemental agreements to
incorporate the aforementioned amendments in Petroleum Concession Agreements {PCAs) signed under 1994 and
1997 policies, for execution within the stipulated time as specified above or to forgo the incentives available for gas
pricing.

~ Based on legal advice, the Company is of the view that terms of the existing PCAs as amended to-date through the
supplemental agreemenis already executed cannot unilaterally be amended by the GoP through introduction of
amendment nor can the GoP lawfully require and direct that such amendments be made to include imposition of WLO
retrospectively and nor the GoP unilaterally hold and direct that the gas price incentive to which the Company is
presently entitted to and receiving under the conversion package as enshrined under the supplemental agreement
stands withdrawn or the Company ceases to be eligible for such incentive in case of failure to adopt the unilateral
amendments in the existing PCAs. Accordingly, the aforementioned amendments as well as the subsequent lefters

requiring implemeantation of the amendments are not enforceable or hinding upon the Company.

The Company along with other joint operation Partners has challenged the applicability of WLO against the backdrop of
supplemental agreemenis already executed pursuant to PP 2012 in the Honorable 1slamabad High Court which has
granted stay order against the CCl decision dated November 24, 2017 on imposition of WLO. It is perlinent {o note that
all writ petitions on subject matter have been consolidated by the Honorable High Court. The Petitions are pending with
date in office.

The cumulative impact of Windfall L.evy on cil (WL0O} since application of incremental gas prices up tili June 30, 2024
amount o approximately Rs 33,889 million (2023; Rs 27,602 million). As mentioned above, the Company based on the
advice of legal counsels, is confident that it has valid grounds to defend the aforesaid issue in the Court and that the
issue will be decided in its favor, However, without prejudice to the Company's legat contention and as a matter of
prudence, the Company has booked provision of Rs, 23,572 million to prospectively account for the impact of WO
from the date of the SRO i.e. December 27, 2017 till June 30, 2024. The provision has been adequately disclosed in
note 27.

Unitization of Salamat / Adam Wesi Field Reserves

A reservoir communication study by an independent third party, is currently in progress to determine reserve volume
estimates and level of communication between Salamat field {operated by UEPL; GHPL Working Interest (W1}, 25%)
and Adam West field (operated by PPL; GHPL Wi Nil}. If reservoir communication betweaen the fields is proved then
subject to final results of the study, agreement of concerned parties and Director general petroleum concession's
(DGPC) approvat, financial exposure may arise equivalent to revenue from additional production from the reservoir to
be offset by royalty /f OPEX / tax and other related expenses incurred.

Other contingencies

As part of the investment in Pakistan International QOil Uimited (PIOL), each associate of the consorfium companies
including GHPL have provided, joint and several, parent company guarantees to Abu Dhabi National O Company
{ADNOC) and Supreme Council for Financial and Economic Affairs Abu Dhabi, UAE o guarantee the obligations of the
associate, PIOL. The exposuwre against the said guarantee as at year end amounts to US$ 120 million (2023 USS 185
miition).

On December 17, 2018, Altock Refinery Limited (ARL) filed a wiit petition against the Company before Isiamabad High
Court and has disputed and withheld amounts invoiced to it prior to the signing of sales agreement i.e. March 13, 2018
on account of adjustment of premium or discount as announced by Saudi Aramco for deliveries to Asian customers /
destinations under the sales agreemeant. The amount withheld and disputed by ARL amounts to Rs 411 million {2023
s 411 milion). The Company believes that the debit notes / invoices have been raised in accordance with the sales
agreements signed with the GoP and no provision is required in this respact,

JWAHL-
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Note s Rupees {{800)---r-rm-mrmmmr
Commitments

Minimum work commitment 29.2.1.1 8,910,653 3224789

This represents the Company's share in the minimum work commitments relating to non-operated joint operations
under respective PCAs and the Company's own capital budgst.

As part of the Shareholders Agreement with the consoriium partners in PIOL, associate, the Company has commitied

td invest up to US$ 100 million in PIOL during the next five years from August 31, 2021, out of which US$ 80 million has -~

been invested till June 30, 2024 (2023: US$ 35 miliion). The remaining amount of US$ 40 million {2023: US3 65 million)
will be invested in subsequent vears

As per the Joint Venture Agreement, for reconstitution of the Reko Dig project referred in note 11.3, the Company has
entered intc a JV agreement with stakeholder under which it has committed US$ 398 million, adjustable for infiation, 1o
fund its contributing interest of all cost and expenses of the project The Company has also provided a corporate
guarantee in this respect.

2024 2023
S - 1PV U1 ) WO
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Local
- Natural gas 71,875,903 69,380,609
- Crude oil 55,461,064 48 803,085
- Liquefied petroleum gas 15,118,435 13,298,801
Export
- Crude oil 9,562,939 7,686,164
152,118,341 138,168,759
Government levies:
- Sales tax {13,312,662) {12,218,066}
- Excise duty (516,811) {573,080}
- Petroleum development levy {361,791) (341,950}
{14,191,264) {13,133,096)
137,927,077 126,035 663

Contract Habilities

The Company has recognized the foliowing confract liabilities related to contracts with customers of liquefied petroleum
gas (LPG)

Movement in contract liabilities

Balance at beginning of the year 1,708 67.353
Advances received during the year 5,405,345 5,236,309
Transferred o revenue during the year (6,303,551} (5,285,854}
Balance at end of the year 103,502 1,708
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2024 2023
Note  wecmencesnenans Rupees {'000)----r--ormreeae-
ROYALTY AND OTHER LEVIES
Royalty 311 15,033,185 13,864,305
Windfall levy 31.2 1,367,409 1,398,382
16,400,594 15,262,778

Royalty and other levies charged by the Government of Pakistan (GoP).

OPERATING EXPENSES

Joint operation's operating expenses 321 10,880,023 10,973,859
Depreciation 8.4 3,138,504 2.611,052
Amortization of development and production assels 3 5,097,731 4735174
Impairment 322 441,865 412,428
Decommissioning cost actualized during the year 25 50,983 65,970
Reversal due to change in decommissioning cost estimaies 251 {1,296,743) {391,758)
18,323,363 18,410,828

It represents the Company's share in operating expenses of joint operation mainly comprising of personnel cost, field /
contract services, repair and maintenance, workovers, travelling etc.

2024 2023
Note  cemescensvminnns Rupees {'000)-—rreememneee
Impairment
tmpairment on property, plant and equipment 8.5 45,443 104,076
tmpairment on development and production asseis g.2 396, 422 308,352
441 866 a12 42%

During the current year, the Company carried cut impairment testing of s joint operations assets, as required under 1AS 36 -
‘Impairment of Assets’ to assess whether there is any provision required on these assets. Based on the assessment
management has made a provision of impairment on property plant and equipment, development and production assels as
specified in above note.

The Company considers the relationship between international oif prices. production profiles, petroleum reserves and
carrying value of #s joint operation investments, amongst other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. As at
Junie 30, 2024, the estimates of future production profiles of producing / discovered fields within the Joint operations,
respective CAPEX and price estimates have revised based on latest information, indicating a potential impairment.

For the purpose of carrying out impairment testing, each joint operation has been considered a separate cash generating
unit and the recoverable value of the each joint operation investment has been separately determinaed and compared with
the respective carrying value of the assets of that joint operation. The test was performed based on the estimate of the
recoverable value of the CGU. The calculation involved estimates and judgements, such as estimation of volume of oil and
gas recoverable reserves, future oil and gas prices, costs and discount rate.

In assessing the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted {o their present value, using a discount rate of
15.19% (2023 15.16%) per annum. As a result, impairment loss of Rs 442 million is recognized which has been
respeciively allocated to the property plant and equipment {PPE) and development and production {D&P) assets of the CGU
as disclosed in note 32.2 to the financiat statements,
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FINAMNCE INCOME / {COS8TS)
Finance Incomse

Finance income from financial assets

Return on bank deposits

Return on term deposit receipts

interest on long term receivable from GoP
interest on ioan 1o subsidiaries

Finance income from non financial assets
Gain on long term liabilities due to discounting
Finance Income

Finance Cost

Unwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning cost
Loss on long term labilities due to discounting

Unwinding of discount on long term liabilities

Interest on long term loan

Bank charges

Finance cost

MNet Finance income
EXPLORATION AND PROSPECTING EXPENDITURE

Cost of dry and abandoned wells
Prospecting expenditure

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
Travelling and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance

Rent

Communications

Utilities

Training and seminars

Printing and stationery
Advertisement

Entertainment

Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration and tax services
Fee and subscription

Software maintenance fee
Insurance

Business development
Corporate social responsibility
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation

Security services

GOthers

HRIL

Note

12

221

25
221
221

23

3561

355

35.6

6.1

3,765,724 2,863,833
7,679,189 3,958,113
14,580,316 5,548,325
43,910 267,661
26,074,139 12,638.132
- 519,532
26,074,139 13.157.664
(1,237,412} (923.436)
(359,826} -
(261,288} (137,133
(14,580,316} (5,548,325
(7,059} (1,377
(16,445,899} (6,610,271}
9,628,240 6,647,393
185,604 7,160
998,628 440,743
1,184,232 447 903
988,805 946,049
20,392 10,274
11,406 7.439
15,427 15,427
2,331 1850
23,330 14,484
11,755 23,812
5,008 2,552
7,859 8,484
4,464 4,209
63,306 14,502
9,897 8,450
5,950 5,244
87,242 41,867
19,475 10,845
255,542 272,475
30,000 70,250
9,039 6,855
41,550 22.291
6,871 4,250
5513 5,006
1,625,162 1494115
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351 It inciudes Rs, 109.107 million (2023 Rs. 94.004 million) in respect of post employment benefits.

35.2 The aggregate amounis charged in these financial statements for the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer
and Executives are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupees {'000}

Short term employee benefits
Managerial remuneration 75,448 80,704 620,477 471,980
Bonus - 35.2.1 12,088 23803 96322 196,128

Post employment benefits -
Company’'s contribution to -
Provident fund 3,223 2,582 25,436 19,480

Gratuity henefit 4,393 7473 36,125 58,108

Qther long term employment -

henefit 5,318 3,495 43,734 27174

Reimbursable expenses 411 220 3,817 2,380
100,851 98,377 825,911 775,250

Number of persons 1 1 63 93

Executive means an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve
hundred thousand rupees in a financial year

35.2.1  Bonus comprise of accruals of budgeted bonus payments for the year ended June 30, 2024,
35.3 Key management personnel

Key management personnel comprises chief executive, chief financial officer, company secretary and senior general
managers of the Company.

2024 2023
wnmmsnnasnamnannRUDBES {'000)mumramaneranmnn
Managerial remuneration 167,541 134,104
Bonus - 35.2.1 26,858 53,258
Post employment benefit 16,891 22,187
Gther tong term employment benefit 14,809 7.721
Reimbursable expenses 607 220
223,706 217 480
35.4 Fee paid to non-executive directors for attending the Board of Directors meetings amounted to Rs. 38.4 million
(2023: Rs. 37.7 million).
2024 2023

355 Auditors' remuneration and tax services

Statutory audit fee 5,219 4,278
Report on consolidated financial statements 505 414
Report on compliance of Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules 2013 168 138
Decommissioning certification 1,178 965
Cut of pocket expenses 615 504
Tax services 2,211 150
9,887 6,450
35.6 This represents donation paid to Saylani Welfare International Trust for provision of ration bags to needy and

deserving citizens.

WATEL
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39
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OTHER EXPENSES Note

Exchange loss - net
Windfall levy on oil / condensate

OTHER INCOME
Other income from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of fixed assels
Contract renewal fee
others

TAXATION
Current

Charge for the current year 28.1
Charge / (Credit) for prior year

Deferred

Credit for the year 24

Reconciliation of tax charge for the yearn:

Accounting profit
Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 50% (2023: 50%)

Tax effect of:

impact of provision of decommissioning cost
Depletion allowance

income chargeable to tax at reduced corporate rate
Prior years charge

Effect of change in {ax rate

Interest on loans from subsidiaries

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year Rupees
Weighted average ordinary shares MNumber
Earnings per share - basic Rupees

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Company.

SRAITL -

2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Rupees {{000}-—oremmmmmnne
572,134 5,274,568
5,287,023 5881882
5,859,157 11,158,480
422 328,571
31,500 -
8,674 21
40,596 328,592
43,725,702 39,183,482
(5,864,765) 84,953
37,860,937 39,278,435
{6,076,727) (2,639,448}
31,784,210 36,638,987
100,934,210 85,799,421
50% 50% .
50,487,105 42,899,711
- 2,480,468
(9,019,811) (8,304,691
{153,635} (511.,924)
(9,509,349} (57.118)
- 257,006
- (104 .468)
{18,682,895) (6,260,725}
31,784,208 36,638,987

69,150,000,000

49,160,434,000

2,322,121,233

2,164,316 9561

29.78

2271
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following detail shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. it does not include fair value information as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of
fair value as the current financial assets and liabilities are short term and some financial assets are also interest bearing. Further, the financial assets due directly / ultimately from
GoF carries contractual right and entittement to receive interest on late payment and is exempt from ECL accounting / disclosure as disclosed in note 3.3. The non current
financial assets are also interest bearing.

Carrying amount
2024 2023
sssmmmmmmmmeme s RUDEES {TO00)mmmssmmieae

i

—

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets classified as amortized cost:

Receivable from GoP 71,899,087 70,447 458
Short term investment 67,799,054 28,258,016
Loans / advances to staff 164,465 122,888
Loan to subsidiaries 19,386 4. 329,587
Trade debis- net 222.951,132 191,708,859
Other receivables 335 150,231
Accrued interest receivable 321,394 137,567
Cash and bank balances 3,125,667 7,332,188
' 366,280,520 302,486,791
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities classified as amortized cost:
L.oan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBF) - secured 71,898,087 70,447 456
Long term liabilities - 6,133,871 6,175,325
Trade and other payables 7,586,568 7,130,942
' 85,619,526 83,753,723

SURRTAS -
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Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of the company's financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external credit ratings of counterparties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency Limited (PACRA) and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS}. The counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been assessed by reference
to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any defaults in meeting obligations.

Rating 2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Rupees {000} sss
Trade Debts
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due from associated companies 216,914,840 184,538,453
Others : 6,036,491 7,170,407
: 222,951,131 191,708,859
Advances and other receivables
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due from associated companies 19,721 4,479,818
Others : 164,465 122,888
; 184,186 4,602,706
Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP)
Counter parties Without external credit rating 71,899,087 70,447 456
Bank Balances
Counter parties with external credit rating A+ 3,122,915 7,332,145
Short term investments
Counter parties with external credit rating At+ 67,799,054 28,258,016

Accried Interest receivable
Counter parties with externai credit rating Al 321,394 137,567

Sy
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interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used fo discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government
yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assats
are long term financial instruments with floating rate, there is no significant difference in market rate and
the rate of instrument, fair value significantly approximates to carrying value.

Determination of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Mon - derivative financial assets

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure
purposes,

Non - derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present vaiue of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Financial risk factors
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of
capiial. Further guantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The Board's audit and risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit and risk management
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad
hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and
risk management committee,

WAL
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40.2 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
debts, loan io subsidiaries, short term investmentis and its balances at banks.

Trade debis

Trade debis are essentially due from oll refining companies, gas distribulion companies and. power
generation companies and the Company does not expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations.
Majority of sales to the Company’s customers are made on the basis of agreements approved by the GoP.

Sale of crude oil and gas is at prices specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the
Government authorities based on agreements with customers or relevant applicable petroleum policy or
Petroleum Concession Agreements. Prices of liquefied petroleum gas are determined by the Company
subject to maximum price nofified by OGRA.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of frade debts other than circluar debt. Trade debis that are due directly / ultimately from due from
the GoP till June 3G, 2024 are tested fror impairment as per policy disclosed in note 3.3 to the financial
statements.

Others

The credit risk related to balances with banks, in term deposits and saving accounts, are managed by
investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that have a credit
rating of at least A. While bank balances and investments in term deposits are alse subject o the
requiremenis of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial as the counter parties have
reascnably high credit ratings.

The credit risk on advances to suppliers and loan to subsidiaries is minimal as the Company has long
established relationship with the entities. Subsidiaries are mainly state owned enterprises, and
management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the
Company. The Company esiablishes an allowance for impairment that represents s estimate of incurred
losses in respect of loan to subsidiaries.

2024 2023

Short Long Short Long

Term Term Term Term Credit rating Agency
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA A-1+ AAA PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA A-1+ AAA PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited A-T+ AAA A-1+ AA+ PACRA
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAR VIS
MCB Bank A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAA PACRA
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA A1+ AAA VIS
Bank of Punjab A-1+ AA+ A-1+ AA+ PACRA

UWpAFZL.
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40.2.2

Exposure to credit risk

B4~

The Company's maxémﬁm exposure to credit risk for the components of statement of financial position at June 30, 2024 and 2023 is egual 10 the carrying amounts of financial assets as given below:

2024 2023
Bttt - 1] ¢ =12 (1111 ] S ——
Raecaivable from Government of Pakistan {GoP) 71,899,087 70,447 456
Loan to staff 144,897 98,587
Trade debis - net 222,951,132 161,708,859
Loan to subsidiaries 19,386 4,328,687
Advances to staff and other receivables 19,802 174,532
Acerued interest receivable 321,394 137,567
Short term investments 67,799,054 28,258,016
Cash and bank balances 3,125,667 7,332 186
i 366,280,520 302,486,790
The Company has maintained saving accounts with different banks having credit rating as mentioned below:
Credit rating Rating agency
At PACRA 2,083,418 5,934,981
At VIS 1,042,054 1,397 164
3,125.472 7,332,145
Credit ratings for short term investments disciosed in note 18.1 to the financial stalements.
Impairment losses
The aging of irade debts at the reporting date is as foliows:
: 2024 2023
Gross Debts impaired Gross Debts Impaired
cumrsnenmnnnnenf R L REES {'000) Rupees (000} msmmmnsirmne
Not past due : 19,000,818 - 20,998,596 -
Past due up to three manths 16,022,034 - 17,235,829 “
Past due three to six months 16,634,335 - 18,303,562 -
Past due more than six months 171,491,870 197,927 135,363,571 196,700
: 223,149,058 197,927 151,905,559 186,700
Party wise aging of tradé debts other than related parties at reporting date is as under;
2024
i Past Due
Party name Not past due Up to three Three to six More than six impaired balance Total
months months months
Rupees ("000)
Attock Refinery Limitéd 5,090,686 213,141 - 207,099 {72,500} 5,438,428
National Refinery Limited 167,676 121,223 - 9,116 {3,116) 288,899
Others : 250,960 48,217 56,026 33,563 {79,600} 309,165
5,609,323 382,581 56,026 248,777 {161,216) 6,036,491

AL
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2023
Past Due
N i ired bal Total
Party name ot past due Up to three months || Three to six months i | More than six months mpaired batance ota
Rupees ('060)
Attock Refinery Liméted: 5.736,594 866,113 - 207692 (77,2173 8,732,482
National Refinery Limited 117,774 37679 {11,358) 163,593 (19,554} 288,133
United Energy Pakistan Limited - - - - - -
Othars 197,963 {113,560 1,911 162,178 (88.701) 149,791
: 6,052 331 780,232 (2,448) 533,463 {196,172} 7.170.408
Party wise aging of trade debts of related parties at reporting date is as under:
2024
Past Due
Party name Not past due Up to three Three to six More than six Impaired balance Total
months months months
Rupees ('000)
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 3,143,468 3,673,828 5,104,710 48,835,132 - 60,757,138
Sut Southern Gas Company Limited 7,281,486 9,971,849 11,386,733 122,264,952 - 150,905,020
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,908,099 1,010,058 1,207 539 {1,793) 2,918,111
Pakistan Refinery Limited 518,372 322,283 85,639 6,305 {6,308) 926,294
Enar Petroleum Refining Facility 78,440 - - {29) - 78,410
il & Gas Development Company 530,407 626,498 - 133,847 (28,612) 1,262,140
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 31,224 34,935 21 1,347 - 687,527
13,491,496 15,639,453 16,578,310 171,242,092 {38,710 216,914 641
2023
Past Due
P : | ired bal Total
arty name Not past due Up to three months {| Three 0 six months ||More than six months paed baiance
Rupees {'000)
Sui Northerm Gas F’ipeiif_\es Limitad 3,307,653 4,257 583 4,793,414 41,415 754 B 53,774 404
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 8,536.440 10,203,659 13,087,237 93,214,623 - 125,041,988
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,944 201 1,060 {5,865) 6,308 () 1,945,705
Pakistan Refinery Limited 538,337 793,186 348,060 (402} - 1,679,185
Enar Petroleum Refining Facility 76,165 - {3,384) 3.358 - 76,138
O & Gas Development Company 519,490 1,114,488 - 191,682 (522) 1,825,118
Fakistan Petroleumn Limited 23,979 78,558 93 548 {1,179} - 195,606
: 14,846,265 16,448 597 18,313,010 134,830,109 {(523) 184 538 453

As explained in note 16,1 to the financial statements, the Company belleves that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts past due from Sul Northem Gas Pipelings Limited and 8ul
Southern Gas Company Limited and loan to subsidiaries. Trade debls are sssentially due from oil refining companies, natural gas and liquefied petroleurn gas transmission and distribution companies. the
Company Is actively pursuing for recovery of debts and the Company does not expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations. impact of ECL on financial assets not covered under exemption as
explained in note 3.3 has been recorded in note 16.3 to the financial statements. Loan to subsidiaries are receivable from wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, GoP is ultimate owner of these
subsidiaries therefore ECL has not been assessed in respect of these loans.
Expected credit loss on loans, advances. deposits and other receivables is calculated using general approach (as disclosed in note 5.10.1). As at the reporting date, Company envisages that defaull risk on
account of loans, advances, deposits and other receivables is immaterial based on historic trends adjusted (o reflect forward looking information.

Bank balances and invesiments in terns deposits are also subject to the requirements of IFRS ¢ the identified impairment loss was immalerial a5 the counter parties have reasonably high credi ratings.

SORTL L.
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403 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk.that the Company will not be able to meet ils financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities to
close out market positions due fo dynamic nature of the business. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
fiabitities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Since the Company has sufficient assels against its
liabilities, and being a subsidiary of the GoP it does nol have any significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of tiﬁe Company's financial assets and liabilities based on June 30, 2024, is summarized below:

2024 Effective yield / Markup/ Interest Non markup/

T
Interest Rate bearing Interest bearing otal
: % s L (11 - T-L R g 11 1]
FINANCIAL ASSETS -
Maturity up 1o one year
Loan to staff : - - 41,730 41,730
Trade debts - net : - - 222,951,132 222,951,132
Raceivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR+(.2 13,489,869 - 13,488,869
Staff advances and other receivables . “ 17,882 17,882
Loan o subsidiaries - 1ISGSL KIBOR+0.1 19,388 - 19,386
L.oan to subsidiaries - PLL KIBOR+2 - “ -
Accrued inferest receivable 14.5 - 18.5 321,354 - 321,394
Short-term investments 20.25-21.18 67,799,054 - 67,799,054
Bank balances _ 6.25 - 20.0 3,122,915 - 3,122,815
: 84,752,618 223,010,744 307,763,362
Maturity after one year:
Loan to staff : - - 163,167 103,167
Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR+0.2 58,409,218 - 58,409,218
Loan to subsidiaries - PLL KIBOR+2 - - -
58,409,218 103,167 58,512,385
: 143,161,838 223,113,912 366,275,747
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one yeér
Trade and other payab!és - - 9,151,308 9,151,300
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan {NBP} - secured KIBOR+0.2 13,489,869 - 13,489,869
Current portion of long term liabilities - - 1,903,482 1,903,482
: 13,489,869 11,054,790 24,544,659
Maturity after one year:
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan {NBP)} - secured KIBOR+{0.2 58,409,218 - 58,409,218
Long term habilities ' - - 4,230,388 4,230,389
58,409,218 4,230,388 62,838,607

71,889,087 15,285,179 87,184,266
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Effective vield/ Markup/ Interest Non markup/
2023 Interest Rate bearing interest bearing Total
% B e oK (o111 B 11011 SRR
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up to one year
L.oan to staff - - 25,904 25,904
Trade debts - net - - 191,708,858 191,708,859
Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR+0.2 5.548,324.54 - 5,548,325
Loan, advances and other receivables - B 171,469 171.469
Loan to subsidiaries - ISGSL KIBOR+0.1 190,852 - 160,852
Loan to subsidiares - PLL KIBOR+2 1,504,482 - 1,504,482
Accrued inferest receivable 14.5-18.5 137,567 - 137,667
Short-term investments | 20.25-21.15 28,258,018 - 28,258,018
Bank balances 6.25-20.0 7,332,145 - 7.332.145
42,971,367 191,906,233 234, 877.680G
Maturity after one year: -
Loan to staff - - 72,683 72,683
Receivable from Government of Pakisian (GoP) KIBOR+0.2 64,899,131 64,899,131
Loan to subsidiaries - PLL KiBOR+2 2,634,273 - 2,634,273
67,533,404 72,883 67,606,087
110,504,771 181,978,916 302 483,687
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one yeaf
Trade and other payablés - - 5907997 5,907 997
Loan from Nationa! Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - secured KIBOR + 5 5,548,325 - 5,548 325
Current portion of long term labilities - - 1,667,523 1,667,523
_ 5,548,325 7,575,520 13,123,845
Maturity after one year:
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - secured KIBOR+0.2 64,899 131 - 64,899,131
Long term Habilities - - 4 507 802 4 507 802
64,899 131 4 507 802 68,406 933
70,447 456 12,083,322 82,530,778
: 2624 2023
OFF BALLANCE SHEET ITEMS JESOTRRTRRRU . 751 YT o 11111 ) TOOO e ——
8,910,653 3,224,789

Capital expenditure commitments
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fiuctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market prices comprise three type of risks; interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include trade debts, balances held in banks in saving and term deposits.
long term liability in respect of carried interest and payable {0 joint cperation partners,

Interest rate risk

interest / mark-up rate risk management is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to

"~ changes in interest rate. The Company does have interest bearing financial liability i-e fong term loan. The Company

does not hedges any of its interest bearing liabilities. Moreover, the Company has invested in fixed interest bearing
securities in the form of short term deposit receipts as mentioned in Note 20.1. Further the Company has bank balances
in deposit accounts that carry variable interest rates, as mentioned in Note 21.1.

40.4.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and
payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Pakistani rupee {Rs.) is the funcitional currency of the Company and as a result currency exposure arise from
fransactions and balances in currencies other than Pakistani rupee. The Company's potential currency exposure
comprise;

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items.
- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below;
Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the Company are periodically restated to Pakistani rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the
statement of profit or loss. The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk
managemert strategy.

Transactional exposure in respect of hon functional currency expenditure and revenues

Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurred by the Company in currencies other than the functional currency.
Certain sales revenue is earned in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company. These currency risks
are managed as a part of overall risk management strategy. The Company does not enter into forward exchange
contracts.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Company's exposure to the risk in changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the trade debts, long term
liability in respect of carried interest and payable to joint operation operators. At the date of statement of financial
position, the net foreign currency exposure aggregates to USD 37.07 million (2023 USD 1.97 million).

N INV/Y/
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2024 2023

FINANCIAL ASSETS s USD [('000)-mssmrawmncran
Short term exposure
Trade debts 10,317 37,171
Short term investments {11} g
Cash and bank balances 110 -

10,416 37171
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Short term exposure
Due to joint operation operators S L - 7 ¢ B C {13837y
Long term liabilities (carried interest) {6,839) {5,823)

{32,288) {19,460)
Long term exposure
L.ong term liabilities {carried interest) {15,199} {15,740}

{47.487) (35,200)
Net exposure to foreign currency risk {37,071} 1972
The following significani exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date rate
2024 2023 2024 2023
{Pak Rupees)

US Doltars - USD 283.17 248.04 278.33 286.39

Foreign currency sensitivity

A 10% strengthening of the functional currency against USD at June 30, 2024 would have reduced profit befere taxation
by Rs. 1,031.8 million (2023: reduced profit by Rs. 56.46 million}. A 10% weakening of the functional currency against
USD at June 30, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in parficular interest rates, remain constant, The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30,
2023,

Capital management

The Company's cbjective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to remain as a going concern
and continue to provide return for GoP. The operations of the Company are solely financed from iis equity. Long term
ioan from NBP is obtained by the Company on behalf of GoP in relation to Reko Dig project for which corresponding
receivable is also booked,

The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assets
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to GoP and / or issue new shares.

Reconciliation of movement of Habilities to cashflows arising from financing activities

The reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cashflows arising from financing activities is as follows

Long term loans L.o ng t t?rm Short tfarm Total
liabilities borrowings
Rs ('000)

As at July 1, 2022 - (5,036,503 {63,966,965) {69,003.468)
Cash flows (66,848,287) 396,714 66,848,287 396,714
Other non cash movements (3,595,169) {1,535,537) {2,881,322) {8,016.028)
As at June 30, 2023 (70,447 456) (6,175,325) } (76,622.781)
As at July 1, 2023 (70,447,458) {6,175,325) - (76,622,78%1)
Cashfiows 13,128,685 330,494 - 13,459,178
Other non cash movement {14,580,316) {289,040} - {14,869,356)
As at June 30, 2024 (71,899,087) {6,133,871) . (78,032,958)

KL,
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TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company is wholly owned by Government of Pakistan. Therefore, all entiies owned and controlled by the
Government of Pakistan are related parties of the Company. Other related parties comprise subsidiaries, directors.
major shareholders, companies with common directorship, key management personnel and gratuily fund. The
Company in normal course of business pays for electricity, gas, airfare and telephone charges fo entities controlled by
Government of Pakistan which are not material, hence not disclosed in these financial statements. Amount due from
and due to these underiakings are shown under receivables and payables. Significant transactions of the Company
with related parties and balances cutstanding at the period end are as follows:

2024 2023

Subsidiary companies

Shares held in subsidiary companies 5,324,912 5,324,912
Advance against investment in shares 1,649,329 525,069
Long term loan to subsidiary
Non - current portion - 2,634 274
Current portion 19,386 1,695,313
Interest Income on loan to subsidiaries 48,910 267,861

Pakistan LMNG Limited (PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary and common directorship

Loan as at June 30 - 2,595,747
Loan repaid during the year 2,595,747 1,040,291
Loan adjusted during the year against group tax benefit “ 70,600
Payment of security services on behalf PLL 335 231
Benefit payable to PLL under group taxation - 2,536,097
Interest receivable - 1,542,988
interest Income 46,266 258 341
interest received 1,589,255 257,338

Interstate Gas Systems (Private} Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary
and common directorship

Advance against issue of shares 1,649,329 525,069
Advance received by 1ISGSL from Government of Pakistan against

issue of shares to the Company 4,124,260 88.825
Loan as at June 30 18,118 107,966
Loan repaid during the year - 77,383
Loan adjusted during the year against group tax benefit 89,848 84,953
interest receivable 1,268 82,886
Amount paid to ISGSL under stop gap arrangement 200,900 150,000
Amount paid back by ISGSL under stop gap arrangement 350,000 -

Receivabie from ISGSL under stop gap arrangament - 150,000
Benefit payable to ISGSL under group taxation 284,794 476,867
Interest income 1,268 9.519
Interest received - 11,441
Interest on loan adjusted during the year against group tax benefit 84,262 -

AL
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Pakistan International Oif Limited {(PIOL)- Associated Company - 25% share
holding of the company and common directorship

Cost of investment
Share of loss in associate

Pakistan Minerals {Private} Limited {PMPL}- Associated Company -
33.3% share holding of the company and common directorship

Cost of investment
Share of loss in associate
Major shargholders
Government of Pakistan {(100% share holding)
Dividend paid
Long term receivable from GoP
Non- Current Portion
Currend Portion
interest accrued on long term receivable from GoP
Related parties by virtue of GoP holdings and / or common directorship

Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited

Sale of crude oil - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited

Sale of natural gas - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Sui Southern Gas Company Limifed

Sale of natural gas - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Enar Petroleum Refining Facility

Sale of crude oil - net
Trade debis as at June 30

Pakistan Refinery Limited

Sale of crude oil - net
Trade debls as at June 30

OH and Gas Development Company Limited

Receivable as at June 30

Payable as at June 30

Expenditure charged by joint operation partner

Cash calls paid against joint operation partner expenses

AILL.

2024

13,534,700
{84,635}

41,637,955

(2,173,333)

7,600,000

58,409,218
6,489,913
6,999,956

13,859,841
2,918,111

19,617,853
60,757,139

38,834,448
150,905,020

689,737
78,410

2,993,277
932,598

1,262,140
2,947,002
6,241,912
5,911,869

2023

6,431,700
{297,110}

36,569,203
(386,040)

5,660,000
70,447 456
64,899,131

5,548,325

9,980,006
1,845,705

17,173,129
53,774,404

40,684,004
125,041,999

667,608
76,136

3,227.555
1,678,185

1,825,118
2,041,207
5,009,029
5,218,579



42

43

44,

44.1

44.2

-82-

2024 2023

Pakistan Petroleum Limited

Receivable as at June 30 67,527 195,906
Payable as at June 30 1,068,361 702,965
Expenditure charged by joint operation partner 1,494,458 1,554,740
Cash calls paid against joint operation partner expenses 1,603,272 1,662 877

- National Bank of Pakistan

Balance of bank accounis

- Local Currency 505,153 925777
- Foreign Currency 30,611 “
Balance of Investment

- Foreign Currency 4,676,005 -
Interest earned during the year

- Bank Account 373,024 289,432
- investment 57,421 -
Long term loan 71,899,087 70,447 456
interest accrued on long term loan during the year 14,580,316 5,548,325

Other related parties

Contribution to gratuity fund (refer note 27.3) 66,060 55,785
Remuneration to key management personneg! (refer note 37.3} 223,706 217,490
NUMBER OF EMLPOYEES 2024 2023
Number of employees as at year end 81 73
Average number of employees employed during the year 77 68

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

invesiments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and rules formulated for this purpose.

GENERAL

Capacity and production
Production for the year

Product Unit 2024 2023

Gas MMSCF 66,857 71,458
Gil Barrels 2,863,274 2821611
LPG Metric ton 76,832 73,494

Due to the nature of operations of the Company, installed capacity of above products is not relevant.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees uniess otherwise stated.

NAFpL
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44.3 Corresponding figures have been reciassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate presentation of
events and transactions for the purpose of better presentation in accerdance with the acceunting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

45 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting heid on fé@ﬁ@@’g. Z;Z@Zf The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.

SIFILL
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Chief Executive Officer Director
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Independent Audiior's Report

To the members of Government Holdings (Private} Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

. Opinien e

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Government Holdings
(Private) Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2024 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Rasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 33.1.2 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the
matter of non-accrual of any financial obligations, including penalty under the terms of Gas Sale
Purchase Agreement with National Iranian Oil Company ~ an Iran state owned enterprise. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

AL E, FERGUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network

7g-East, and Floor, Blue Areq, Jinnah Avenue, P.O.Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: vo2 (51) 2273457-60/2604034-37: Fox: +02 (51) 2arrg24; <unvunpoc.com/pis

#KARACHI] "LAHORE 7 [SLAMABAD
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a materiai misstatement of this other information, we are required fo
reporf that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017(X1X of 2017) and for such intemnal control as management
determines is necessary to enabile the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controi relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
‘exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We rernain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
JehanZeb Amin.

Chartered Accguntants
Islamabad ‘

Date: February 28, 2025

UDIN: AR202410083FBMmsSQy;j
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS tPRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Capital reserves

Other reserves

Unappropriated profit

Advance against issue of shares
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE HOLDING COMPANY

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
TOTAL EQUITY :

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term liabilities :

Loan from National Bank of Pakistan {NBP) - secured
Provision for decommissioning cost

Lease Hability

Deferred employee benefits

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long term liabilities

Contract lizbilities .

Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - secured
i.=ase fiability - current portion

Payable fo Government under ITFC Agreement
Provision for taxation

TOTAL LIABILITIES :
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

2024 2023
Note rereeevmvmnenRupees {'000)----m--—-
23 23,221,212 23,221,212
24 25,000,000 25,000,000
24 14,974,226 16,183,456
273,126,037 175,087,882
233 1,649,329 525,069
337,970,804 240,017,820
337,970,804 240,51 7.620
25 4,230,389 4,507,802
29 58,409,218 64,899,131
27 12,047,359 14,408,445
7.4 154,488,228 169,165,917
28 151,939 118,013
229,328,133 253,099,308
30 51,625,915 42,314,083
25 1,903,482 1,667,523
34.2 103,502 1,708
28 13,489,869 5,548,325
7.1 17,075,368 16,252,001
31 120,668,279 113,898,102
32 15,420,171 4 586,480
220,287,086 184,268,222
449,615,219 437,367,530
787,586,023 677,385,180
33

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

Ch_ief Executive Officer

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use asset

Intangible assets

Exploration and evaiuation assels
Development and production ascets
Leng term loan - unsecured

Leng term investment in associates
investment in joint venture

Receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP)

Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools - share in joint
operations’ inventory .
Current portion of long term loan - unsecured
Stock in trade

Trade debts - nat

Recoverable from fax authorities

Advances, recgivables and shori term prepaymérits

Receivable from the Government of Pakistan {GoP)
Accrued interest receivable

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

2023

Mote -----mesmelind Rupees ("000)mveammuma:
. B 29,494,366 30,800,143
7 80,962,165 1 101,663,596
8 CATAME | 3,799 |
9 3,980,338 || - 4438429
10 15,097,525 || - 16,367,623
44 10 103187 || . 72,883
111 64,363,935 || - 55.759,241
12 1,570,024 1,592,996
13 | 58,409,218 64,899,131
26 37,284,165 23,912,934
g 301,312,019 . 299510575
15 " '5,935,225 4,800,359
14 41,730 25804
16 | 2,614,235 || - 8483425
18 | 321,928,960 | - 292,967,128 |
19 9,164,542 g 587 829 |
20 2,522,975 1,125,878
13 13,489,869 5,548,325
ST 1,094,372 - 298,255
- 21 79,964,839 31,427,558
22 49,517,257 23581917
‘486,274,004 377,874,575
787.586,023  677,385.150

Director



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Royalty and other levies
Operating expenses
'GROSS PROFIT

Exploration and prospecting expenditure

General and administrative expenses

Capital work in progress written off during the year
Net impairment loss on financial assets

Arbitration income / {(expense) - net

Other income

Other expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance income
Finance cost
Finance inome — net

Share of loss of associate accounted for
under equity method .

Share of loss of joint venture accounted for
under equity method

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share- basic and diluted (Rupees)

34

35

38
39
8.5
18.3
40
42
41

37
37

L

12

43

44

2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ RUpees {'000)-mmmcmmmm
350,693,774 237543745
' (16,400,594) (15,262,778)
(209,278,051)  (117,227,860)

T125,015,129 105,053,107
(1,184,232) (447,903)
(2,814,765) (2,420,210)
- (278,668)
(1,227) 343,004
19,028,049 (190,112)
157,324 417,498
(9,856,456)  (66,635,881)
130,343,822 35,840,835
33,476,483 14,331,039
(24,747,880)  (14,007,988)
8,728,603 323,050
(2,267,968) (683,150)
(41,643) (35,433)
136,762,814 35,445,302
(31,700,694)  (24,480,735)
105,062,120 10,964,567
105,062,120 10,964,567
105,062,120 10,964,567
45.24 5.07

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

AT

Chief Executive Officer

Director



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

PROFIT FbR THE YEA_R .
5 B Othe'r'compfehehsiv;e i.n.cbm'e / (loss) for the yéar““ SRR
lterns that will not be sub;sequentiy reclassified to
consolidlated statement of profit or loss:
Remeasurement loss on employees’ retirement benefits 30.5

Taxation

items that will be subsequent!y reclassified to
consolidated staternent of profit or loss:

Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate -
net of tax

Share of effect of translation of investment in a foreign
associated company of the associate

effects of translation of investment in foreign joint

venture - net of tax

Other com'prehensive (loss) / income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Chief Executive Officer

------------

: Nbie :

2024

2023

105,062,120 10,964,567
(42,145) (39,240)
18,180 18,237
(23,965) (21,003)
(221,968) 1,087,234
(1,003,132){ | 14,020,097
15,871 347,347
(1,209,229) 15,434,678
(1,233,193) 15,413,675
103,828,926 26,378,242

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Attributable to owners of the Holding Company

Share Capitat Other Reserves Capital Renserve
: Foreign - . Unappropriated .
lssue'rcf. A’dva?ce General Gurrengy Committed LKG project . Asset As_s.e‘ts_ M"?mg L profits Total Equity
subgcribed  against issue reserve translation suliay reserve reserve insurance acquisition project - .
and paid-up of shares ¥ ' reserve reserve resarve
reserve
Rupees {'000}
Halance as at July 1, 2022 21,327,561 2,329,868 2,284 625 748778 20,846,247 25,000,000 3,000 000 5,000,000 o IR 137,813,444 218,560,582
Totai comprehensive income for the year : ' _

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 10,964,567 10,564,567

Other comprehensive income / (losé) for the year - - - 15,434 678 - - - ~ - {21.003) 15,413,675
Totat comprehensive income for the year - - . 15,434,678 - - - - 10,943 564 26,378,242
Transactions with owners of the Holding Company

Contributions :

Advance recelved against issue of shares - 88,825 - - - - - - - 88,825

tssue of shares 1,893,651 (1,893,651} - - - - - - - - - -

Transfer of reserves to unappropriated profits - - {2,284,626) - {20,946 247} (25,000,000} (3,000,000} . - 51,230,874 [

Transfer of profits to Mining project reserve - - - - - - - - 20,000,000 (20,200,000} -

1,893,651 {1,804 826} {2,284 628) - (20,948,247} (25,000,000} {3,000 000 - 20,000,000 - 31,230,874 88,825

Distributions . .

Interim dividend 2023: Rs. 2.15 per share - - . - - - - - {5,000,000) (5,000,000}
Total contributions and distributions- net 1,893,651 {1,804,826) (2,284,626} - (20,946 247) (25,000,000; {3,000.000) - 20,000,0_0’0' 26,230,874 {4,911,175)
Balance as at June 30, 2023 23,221,212 525,069 - 16,183,456 - - 5.000,000 20,000,000 175087 882 240,017 619
Balance as at July 01, 2023 23,224,212 525,069 ~ 6,183,455 - . - 5,000,000 20,000,000 175,087,882 240,817 619
Total comprehensive income for the year ) .

Profit for the year - - - - “ - - “ - 105,062,120 05,062,120

Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - {t,209,229} - - - - - _ 123,965} (1,233,193}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - {%,209,229) - - . - - 105,038,156 103,828,928
Transactions with owners of the Holding Company .

Contributions . )

Advance received against issue of shares - 0 124,280 | - - - . - - - H - 4124260 |

: - 1,124,260 - - - - - - - - 1,124,260

Distributions .

interim dividend 2024: Rs. 3.01 per share - - - - - B - - {7,000,000) {7,000,000}
Total contributions and distributions- net - 1,124,269 - v - - " - . {7,000,000) {5,875,740)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 23,221,212 1,649,329 - 14,974,226 - ~ 5,000,000 20,000,000 273,126,037 337,970,804
The annexed notes from 1 1o 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

* Chief Executive Officer Director



[rESn——

GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAT!N(‘ AC"E‘MTI&S
Profit before taxat

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of development and prociuctlon assets s :
" Depreciation on joint operations fixed assets

Depreciation on right of use assels

{Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
impairment loss- iran-Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
impairment on development and production assets
Depreciation on owned fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Share of loss of associate

Dry hole wells

Provision for employee benefits

Unwinding of discount on provision for
decommissioning cost

Unwinding of discount on long term fability
Discount of tong term liability

Unrealised exchange {gain) / loss

Share of loss from joint venture - net of taxation
Provision for windfall levy on cil / condensate
Reversal due to change in decommissioning
cost estimates

Net impairment loss on financial assets
Interest on delayed payment

Interest expense on long term loan
Interest expense on lease liability

Interest income

Changes in working capital:

Increase in stores, spare and loose tools - share in
joint operations’ inventory

(Increase) / decrease in stock in trade

Increase in trade debts

Increase in recoverable from tax authorities

Decrease / (increase) in advances, receivables and

short term prepayments
increase / {decrease) in trade and other payables
increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Long term loan disbursed to staff
Loan repayments by staff

Income tax paid

Employee benefits paid

Interest paid on delayed payments

Net cash (used) / generated from operating activities

AFTSL

Page10of2

o 2024 2023
T 1T - U ; 1775 9-Y-Y-0 L)1 1) E———
136,762,814 35,445 302
S 36 5,097,731 4,739,174
S 3 30504 2611052
36 10,701,431 10,701,431
42 (452) 337,989
6.5.1 - 278,668
38.2 45,443 104,076
36.2 396,422 308,352
39 62,333 37,982
35 9,855 7,324
2,267,968 683,150
38 185,604 7,180
288305 184,237 153,827
27.1 1,237,412 923,436
251 261,286 137,133
251 359,826 (519,532)
2,200,618 55,129,662
12.1 41,643 35,433
41 6,287,023 5,881,892
36 (1,296,743) (391,758)
18.3 1,227 (343,004)
37 - 47.510
37 14,580,316 5,548,325
37 8,249,367 7,337,880
37 {33,476,483) (13,811,507}
157,298,480 115,390,956
{1,134,864) (667,603)
5,869,190 7,237,162
(30,280,627} {20,137,883)
423,287 {250,092)
(1,397,100) (871,834)
3,375,277 (16,000,998
101,794 (55,645)
{23,043,043) {30,756,893)
134,255,437 84,634,063
14 (60,660) 87,179
14 44,350 (19,675)
32 (34,148,864) (34,671,804)
288305 (223,658) (198,221)
37 - (47 510}
99,836,505 49,784,032
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CASH FLOWS FRO&“! iNVESTING AGT!VinES

Capital expenditure Lo Lo

Receipis from Government of Pak;stan : : :
Proceeds from dlsposai of property plaﬂt and equ:pment
Investment in associate

Interest received .
{Purchase) / sale of short term mvestmems

‘Net cash used in mvestmg actw:ties “
CASH FLOWS FROWM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance received against issue of shares 23.3
Repayment of short term borrowing

Proceeds from long term foan 29
Repayments against long term liabilities 25.1
Pividend paid

l.ease rentals paid 7.1
Receipts from Government under ITFC 31
Payment to Government under ITFC 31

Net cash used in financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Effects of exchange rates changes on cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESERVED AGAINST
MINING PROJECT RESERVE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MARKED WITH LIEN FOR
BANK GUARANTEE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 222

ApFILL

a0 -

Chief Executive Officer

Note

2024

.------------------Rupees {1000}~

Page 2of 2

(7,549,729) (8,603,225)
113,128,685
4,286 338,110
{12,171,753) (4,494 ,172)
18,896,167 8,263,182
(9,687,6686) 10,000,000
2,616,980 5,503,895
1,124,260 88,825
- (63,966,965)
{13,128,685) 63,966,965
(330,494) (396,714)
(7,000,000} (5,000,000)
(24,274,749) (21,319,049)
17,887,410 5,743,542
(11,117,233} (12,410,603)

(36,839,492)

(33,293,999)

65,614,092 21,993,928
{31,020 -
47,136,188 33,311,802
(5,000,000) (5,000,000)
{331,200) (3,169,542)
107,388,060 47,136,188

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

7 -
Director
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GOVERNNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Constitution and ownenshlp

These consol!ciaied financial stalements comprse of Government Holdings {Private) Limited {"the Holding
Company") and its subsidiaries, Inter State Gas Systems {P{wate) Limited (ISGSL) and Pakistan LNG Limited
(PLL) (collecti vely referred to as "the Group“) : .

1.2 Government Hoidmgs (Pr;vate} Lfmlled .

Government Ho]dsngs {Private) i.:mlted {the “Holding Company } was incorporated in Pakistan as a private
imited company on January 15, 2000, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act,
2017). The Holding Company's registerad office is situated at 7th Floor, Petroleum House, Ataturk Avenue, G-
5/2, Isiamabad. The main objectives of the Holding Company are to:

a)

b}

Acquire shares of the companies or interest of Government of Pakistan (GoP) in the existing and new
oil and gas concessions, sither by payment or by issuance of shares, credited as fully paid, or other
securities, as the Holding Company may think fit and to hold and enjoy all interests, rights, contracts
and privileges vested in, or connected with, the title of such shares; and

Take over, acquire, renew, unitize, and hoid any expioration, prospecting, development and production
concessions of whatever nature or otherwise acquire any estate or interest, develop resources of work,
dispose off or otherwise turn to account land or sea beds in any part of the world containing or thought
to contain petroleum or any other oil in any form, and to search for or participate in the exploration for
petroleum or any other oil in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas, or any
substance used or which may be capable of use, and to organize, equip and employ expeditions,
experts and other agents to carry out drilling and other exploratory operations, and to establish and
operate oil and gas wells and other undertakings for the exiraction of any of the aforesaid substances.

13 As of the date of consolidated staternent of financial position, the Holding Company has the following
investments:

a}

b}

Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary

The Holding Company has 100% sharehoiding in the Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGSL)
under share subscription agreement, The main objective of the ISGSL is to carry on the business of
importing,  processing, purifying, buying, storing, supplying, transporting, transmitting, seling and
exporting natural gas and other natural gas products whether as such or in a liquid state, for lighting,
heating, motive power, power generation or for any other purpose whatsoever. TAP! Pipeline Company
Limited (TPCL), the joint venture of ISGSL is registered in the Isle of Man as a limited liabiiity company
and its head office is situated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. TPCL is principally engaged to carry out
the business of developing, engineering, funding the construction of, procuring the equipment
engineering and other services for construction and operation of, constructing owning, operating and
providing maintenance for the proportion of TAPI Pipeline running from the borders of Turkmenistan
and Afghanistan to the border of Pakistan and India.

Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary

The Holding Company has 100% shareholding in Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL), a public company
incorporated on December 11, 2015 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Currently Companies Act,
2017). The principle activity of PLL is to import, transport, market and distribute Liguefied Natural Gas
(LNG). PLL has achieved its commercial operation date on January 04, 2018. With effect from January
01, 2021 PLL merged with Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) pursuant to completion of all legal

_ requlrements with PLL being the surviving entity.
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5 was signed on August 31, 2021.

P
Pakistan International Oil Limited (PIOL) - foreign operation - 25% shareholding

The Hoiding Company,_along wzth other consortium members i.e. Mari Petroleum Company Limited

- (MPCL), Pakistan Petroleum. Limited (PPL) and Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL)

have. established an znﬁep@ndent ent:ty named Pakistan International Oil Limited {PIOL} with each
consortitim company having a 26% equity stake in the entity. PIOL is engaged in the business of

' - extraction of oit and natural gas and is regastered as a limifed liability company in the Emirate of Abu

Dhabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi Global Market on July 15, 2021. The exploration concession
agreement between PIOL and Abu Dhabi National Ol Company (ADNOC) in respect of Offshore Block-

Pakistan Minerails (Private) Limited - PMPL - 33.33% shareholding

The Holding Company has invested in the project company, i.e. Reko Dig Mining Company {Private)
Limited (RDMQ) through Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited (PMPL), an entity incorporated in Pakistan
with initial subscribed share capital of 12,000 shares with par value of Rs 10 each in accordance with
the agreements for collective representation of the Company, Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and Qil
and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL), together called the State Owned Enterprises
(SOEs). RDMC is engaged in the mineral exploration activities in Pakistan. PMPL holds an indirect
working interest of 25% (8.33% of each SOE) in the RDMC through offshore holding companies namely
Reko Dig Holdings Limited and Reko Dig Investments Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Holdcos”).

RDMC is incorporated in Pakistan and Holdcos are incorporated in Bailiwick of Jersey. The Company's

equily interest in PMPL is 33.33% with an effective interest of 8.33% in RDMC.

The Group has interest in certain joint operations / concessions as non-operator. Geographical locatien of
concessions / blocks is as under:

Operator Concession / Block Working interest {%) Province
. Al-Haj Baska North 4.15 Balochistan & KPK
- Hycarbex Yasin 5 Sindh & Balochistar
- KPBV Makhad 2.5 KPK
Tallahasse Karak North 2.5 KPK
MOL Tal 5 (Exp) ~ 15 (Dev)* KPK
MPCL Bolan / Zarghun South 17.5 Balochishtan
MPCL Wali West 2.5 KPK
MPCL Sharan 2.5641 Balochishtan
MPCL. Nareli 2.5641 ™ Balochishtan
MPCL Mach 2.5641 ** Balochishtan
MPCL Dhadhar 2.5641 ** Balochishian
OGDCL Bitrism 5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dav)* Sindh
OGDCL Guddu 5 {(Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Sindh & Punjab
OGDCL Gwadar 2.5 Balochistan
OGDCL Jhakro 225 Sindh
OGDCL Khuzdar South 25 Sindh & Balochistar
OGDCL Khuzdar North 2.5 Balochistan
QGDCL Khewari 5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)* Sindh
OGDCL Kotra 5 (Exp} ~ 20 (Dev)* Balochishtan
OGDCL Nashpa 5 (Exp) ~ 15 (Dav)* KPK
OGDCL Nim 5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)* Sindh
OGDOCL Orakzai 4.66 KPK
OGDCL Pasni West 2.5 Balochistan
OGDCL Pezu 2.64 Punjab & KPK



Operator

OGDCL .

OGDCL .
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL

oGDCL - -

OGDCL

L OGDheL.

OGDCL
OGDHCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OPPL
PEL
PEL
PEL
POL
POL.
POL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL. -
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPRL
PPL
PPL
UEp
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
Paige

Concession / Block

Ranipur
Chanda . = .~
Sinjhor .
Tirah

Tando Allah Yar

Gurgaiot
Zin

) : U”a S
. Sujawal South

Chah Bali
Khewari kast
Suleiman
Zamzama
Block 22
Kandra
Mirpur Mathelo
Pariwali
Minwal

North Dhurnal
Bela West
Dhok Sultan
Gambat South
Hisal
Mazarani
Chachar
Nausherwani
Shah Bandar
Sirani
Musakhel
Punjab

Sui North
Kalat West
Shaigalu
Badin Hl
Gambat
Khipro
Kuhan
Mehar
Mehran
Mirpur Khas
Mubarak
Sawan

" Murgha Fagir Zai

* Exp- Expioratory phase
* Dev- Development phase
* Inclusive of carried W! of respective provincial holding company during exploration phase

030

Working interest (%)

: |
5.(Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*

25
5 (Exp) ~ 17.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp).~ 22.5 (Dev)*

5 (Exp)*
5 (Expy

BG4 R

2.5641 **

2.5641 =

2.5641 **

2.5641

25

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)”
5 (Exp)*

17.5

17.5

2.5641 **

25

25

25

25

12.5

25

25

25

25

2.5

2.5

2.5641

2.5641 %

2.5641 =

25 (Dav)*

5 (Exp)*

5 {Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
25 {Dev)*

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
225

5 {Exp)*

Province

Sindh

KPK

Sindh

KPK

Sindh

Punjab & KPK
Balochistan

- Punjab -

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Punjab
Punjab
Punjab
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Sindh
Punjab
Sindh
Sindh
Balochisian
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
Punjab
Balochistan
Balochistan
Balochistan
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh & Balochistar
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

These consolidated f_'inan:cial 's'iat@ments have beén pre?éred in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and zf_eporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise

: Q_ _ Internai:bnai Financiat R'eport%ng Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting

. Standards Board (JASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

* - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and direciives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for
certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
gconomic environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Pakistan Rupee (PKR/ Rupees/ Rs} which is the Group's functional currency.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New or amendments / interpretations to existing standards, interpretations and forthcoming

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:
Effective date (annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after)

pr

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS Y Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments) January 1, 2024
iFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2024
IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates January 1, 2025
IFRS 17 tnsurance Confracts January 1, 2026
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) January 1, 2026
IFrR3 9 Financial Instruments; Classification and measurement of Financial January 1, 2026
Instrument

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations in future
pericds will have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements other than in
esentation / disclosures.

20
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4.1

5.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, JASE has also issued the following
standards and ;ni’erpretat on, whnch have not been noilfued locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at June
30, 2{}24 : . .

: I?RS 1. Firstwtnme Adoptzon of intematlonal Fmancxai Repor&mg Standar{is

IFRS 18 . Presentation and Disclosure in -Financial Statements
IFRS. 19 ¢ _ Submdzanes wuthout Pubhc Accountabil Hity: Dlsclosures
IFRIC12 - Service concess&on az‘rangememts

Standards and amendments-to-apprbved- accounting standards that are effective -

There are certain arrangements and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
applicable on the Group frem July 1, 2023, however, these do not have significant impact on the Group's
financial reporting.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.0. 67(1)/2023 dated January 20,
2023, in partial modification of its previous S.R.Q. 1177 (1)/2021 dated September 13, 2021, has notified that
in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in respect of
circular debt, the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
maodet shall not be applicable til December 31, 2024, provided that such companies shali follow relevant
requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ in respect of above referrad
financial assets during the exemption period. Earfier to the S.R.O. 985(1)/2019 dated September 2, 2019,
SECP in a press release dated August 22, 2019 communicated that {FRS 9 needs to be lcoked into from
Pakistan perspective where phenomenon like circular debt need to be given due consideration. It was noted
that concerns expressed by companies regarding practical limitations in determining ECL on debts due from
GoP, due to uncertain cash recovery patterns of circular debt, carry weight. Public information regarding
expected settlement of circular debt by GoP in coming years may result in subsequent reversals of
impairment losses recognised in 2019. Financial assets due from GoP include those that are directly due from
GoP and that are ultimately due from GoP in consequence of the circular debt. In accordance with the
exemption granted by SECP, ECL has not been assessed / recognised in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately from GoP which includes trade debts amounting to Rs. 293,763 million (2023: Rs.
263,190 million) on account of inter-corporate circular debis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumnstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future pericd affected.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the management has made the following
estimaies, assumptions and judgments which are relevant to these consolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment - notes 5.1 and 6

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, usefui life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation on property, plant and equipment. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In
making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources available with the Group. Any change in the
estimate in the future might affect the carrying amount of the respective items of property, plant and

quipment, ith corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Investment in associates - notes 5.7 and 11

B~

Exploration and evaluation asseis -notes 53 and 8

The Group’s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure resulis in certain items of
expenditure being capitalised for an area of interest where it is considered likely to be recoverable by fuiure

- exploration.or sale or where the activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment

of the existence of reserves. This policy requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions as
to future events and circumstances, in particular whether an economically viable extraction operation can be
established. Any such estimates and assumptions may change as new information becomes available. If,
after having capitalised the expenditure under the policy, a judgment is made that recovery of the expenditure

is_uniikeiy, the relevant Capjtas_ised amount is written off to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for the entities over which it has significant influence. Initial
accounting in respect of acquisition under the applicable financial reporting framework involves identifying and
determining the fair values to be assigned to the invesiee’s identifiable assets and liabilities, including goodwill
or bargain purchase gain, if any. Classification of the investment as an associate requires the management
making significant judgement with respect to the relevant activities of the investee entities. Purchase price
allocation also involves significant estimation/ judgement in respect of determining fair values of identifiabie
assets and liabilities including goodwill ar bargain purchase gain.

Development and production assets - notes 5.4 and 10

Joint operations where the Group has carried cost working interest, on announcement of commercial
discovery, the Group initially provides for the liability retated to relevant carried cost of the joint operations and
then recognise corresponding development and production expenditure; on the basis of best estimates
available from the shared cost statement of the relevant joint operation. An adjustment is made based on the
finalised cost agreed with the operator.

Taxation - notes 5.17 and 43

In determining tax provision, the Group takes into account the current tax laws and decisions taken by
appellate authorities. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. Instances where the Group's view differs from
the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage, the Group measures its tax balances
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty and discloses its differing view on items of material nature as
contingencies.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance - notes 5.13.1 and 18.1

The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") allowance for financial assets requires the use of
compiex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g. the
likelihood of counter parties defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and choice of inputs;

- Determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL. basis and the qualitative assessment:

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a coliective basis;

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and their
effect on Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure At Default (EADs) and Loss Given Default (LGDs); and

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models.

OATLY



a7

4.8

4.9

_Prowsaon for decamm:sssenmg cost - notes 5.15 an% 2/

" Provision is fecogmsed for the futu;fe decommassson ng. and reszoratlorz cost of oil and gas wells, production

facilities and- pipelines at.the end of their useful Iwes and i involves estimates related to future expected cost,
discount rate and timing. Estimates of the amount of provision recognised are based on current legal and
constructive requnrements technology and price levels. Provision is based on the best estimates, however,
the actual outflows can differ from estimated cash outflows due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future. The estimated
timing of decommissioning may change due to certain factors, such as reserve life, a decision to terminate

.. operations. of change inlegislation. The carrymg amount. of provision is reviewed annually and adjusted to -

take account of such changes.

During the year, the Group revised its estimates of decommissioning cost, reserve life, discount and inflation
rates. This has been treated as change in accounting estimates, applied prospectively, in accordance with
IFRIC interpretation 1 "Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Simitar Liabilities".

Following line #tems would have been affected had there been no change in estimates;

Rupees 000"
Provision for decommissioning cost would have been higher by 4,064,344
Property, plant and equipment would have been higher by 1,307,360
Development and production assets would have been higher by 1,460,241
Operating expenses would have been higher by 1,296,743
Total comprehensive income would have been lower by 1,296,743

Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves for amortisation of Development and Production Assets -
notes 5.4 and 10

Oil and gas reserves are an important element in calculation of amortisation charge and for impairment
testing of development and production assets of the Group. Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are
inherently imprecise, require the application of judgement and are subject o future revision. Reserves are
estimated by reference to available reservoir and well information, including production and pressure trends
for producing reservoirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, to similar data from other producing
reservoirs. All reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new
information, such as from deveiopment, drilling and production activities or from changes in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms or development plans,

Changes in estimates of reserves, affects the amount of amortisation recorded in the consolidated financial
statements for development and production assets.

Impairment of non financial assets including exploration and evaluation assets/expenditure,
development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment - notes 5.5, 6, 9 and 10

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverabie
amount is estimated.

Exploration and Evaluation (E&E) assels are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at
which a determination is made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the
Group has right to explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed,
substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any
other event that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

RK%;
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4.1

A

fmpairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the deveiopment and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of

- hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
_ necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
- and the net selling price of the hydracarbons produced. For impairment testing, assels are grouped together

“into the smiallést group of assets that generate cash inflows largely independent of other assets or Cash

Generating Units {CGUs}. The CGU applied for impairment test purpose is generally based on a number of

fields grouped as a single cash generating unit where the cash flows of each field are inter-dependent.

The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by
reference {o the future net cash flows expected to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The impairment loss is allocated to the assets in CGU
on a prorata basis.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that wouid have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee benefits - notes 5.16, 28 and 30.5

Defined benefits plans are provided for employees of the Group. Provident fund contribution plan and gratuity
fund plan are structured as separate legal entities managed by trustees where as accumulating compensated
absences plan is managed by the Group. These calculations require assumptions to be made of future
outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increases in remuneration and pension benefi levels, the
expected long term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current
values. The assumptions used vary for the different plans as they are determined by independent actuaries
annually. The amount of the expected return on plan assets is calculated using the expected rate of return for
the year and the market related value at the beginning of the year. Service cost primarily represents the
increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for benefits earned on employees service during the year
and the interest on the obligation in respect of employee's service in previous years, net of the expected
return on plan assets. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Provision against financial assets not subject to ECL model

As referred to note 3.3, the SECP has deferred applicability of ECL model in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately from Government of Pakistan (GoP) till December 31, 2024 in respect of circular debt.
Accordingly, the Group reviews the recoverability of its trade debts and investments that are due directly /
ultimately from GoP in respect of circular debt to assess whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment as per requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' at each
reporting date.

The Group has overdue receivables on account of inter-corporate circular debt. These overdue balances are
receivable from oil refineries and gas distribution companies. GoP is committed, hence continuously pursuing
for satisfactory settlement of inter-corporate circular debt issue. However, the progress is siower than
expected resulting in accumuiation of Group's debts. inter-corporate circular debt in Pakistan arises due to
delayed payments in the energy sector supply chain; GoP either directly or through its direct / indirect
ownership of entities within energy sector supply chain is at the core of circular debt issue. The Central Power
Purchase Agency (CPPA), a government owned entity, is sole power purchaser for the Country and the
circular debt is a shortfall of payments primarily by the CPPA, however, in case of gas distribution and
transmission companies the shortfall also occurs because of a delay in receipts of subsidies from the GoP for
supply of gas {o certain domestic / industrial consumers.

-
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Settlement of the Group's receivables is slower than the contractual terms primarily because circular debt is a
macro economic level issue in Pakistan and its level at any given time is dependent on policies and / or

- priorities of the GoP, the level of subsidies offered by GoP to certain domestic and industrial consumers,
. exchange rate fluctuations, global crude ol prices and certam other systemic issues within energy sector

(tanffs losses, non / delayed recoveries).

; The Gfoup s assessment of objectlve ev&deﬂoe of lmpa;rment with respec:i to over due amounts on account of

inter-corporate circular debt takes into account commitment made by the GoP, contractual rights to receive
compensation for delayed payments and ptans of the GoP to address the issue of inter-corporate circular
tiebi . _ .

The Gr‘oup has cont;actuaf r:ght and is entstted to charge nierest |§ payments Trom customers delayed beyoad
credit terms, however, the Group recognises interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers or
investments only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is
when the interest on delayed payments is received by the Group.

Stores, spares & loose tools - nofes 5.10 and 15

The Group reviews the stores, spares and ioose tools for possible write downs / provisions on an annual
basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items
with a corresponding affect on the provision.

Accounting estimates related to capital work in progress and lease are disclosed and explained in notes 5.8
and 5.9 respectively.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The Group adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statements
2 'Making Materiality Judgements') from July 1, 2023. Although amendments did not result in any changes to
the accounting policies themselves, they impact the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial
staterments. :

The amendments require disclosure of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant accounting policies. The
amendments also provide the guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful entity specific accounting policy information that users need to understand
other information in the financial statements.

The material accounting policies set out below have been appiied consistently to ail periods presented in
these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognised at acquisition cost, including any costs directiy attributable to bringing the assets
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group's
management. These assets are subsequently measured using the cost model, which is cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses (if any), except for freehold land and capital work in progress, which are
stated at cost less impairment loss (if any).

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met. Depreciation is charged using the straight line method when assets are available
for use over the useful life of the underlying asset. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefiis
embeodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss
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- An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part.initial y recognised is derecognised upon
g dlsposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
“on derecognition of an item. of property piant and equipmeént is determined as the difference between the

sales proceeds and the carrying’ amounts of the’ ‘asset and is recognised in as other income in the
consolidated statemeni of profat or Ioss

- An assets ¢arrying amount is written ciown smmedtateiy to. its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
_ amount is greater than li:s est:mated recoverab!e amount.

: Captta% work in progfess iS transferred to the respectwe ltem o? proper’ty plant and equipment when available

for intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.
Costs associated with routine maintenance of intangible assets are recognised as an expense when incurred.
However, costs that are directly atiributable to identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the
performance of intangible assets beyond the original specification and useful fife is recognised as capital
improvement and added to the original cost of the infangible assets. The cost of intangible assets is
amortised over the estimated useful life on a straight line basis.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any ad;usiment to the
useful life is recognised prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

Exploration and evaluation assets (E&E Assets)

The exploration cost of all the joint operations is accounted for under the “Successful Efforts” method, Under
the successful efforts method of accounting, all property acquisitions, exploratory / evaluation drilling costs
are initiaily capitalised as intangible Exploration and Evaluation (E&E) assets in well, field or specific
exploration cost centers as appropriate. Costs directly asscciated with an exploratory well are capitalised as
an intangible asset until the drilling of the well is completed and results have been evaluated. Major costs
include employee benefits, material, chemical, fuel, well services and rig operational costs. All other
exploration costs including cost of technical studies, seismic acquisition and data processing, geological and
geophysical activities are charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as exploration and
prospecting expenditure. Pre license cost are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when
they are incurred.

Intangible E&E assets relating {o each exploration license / field are carried forward, until the existence or
otherwise of commercial reserves have been determined subject to certain limitations including review for
indications of impairment. If commercial reserves have been discovered, the carrying value after any
impairment loss of the relevant E&E assets is then reclassified as development and production assets and if
commercial reserves are not found, the related costs are written off in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
E&E assets are not amortised prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities.

Development and production assets (D&P Assets)

During exploratory phase under carried cost working interest holding, relevant working interest of the Group in
various concessions is carried by its relevant partners in the respective joint operations, in accordance with
the related Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs). Consequent fo the declaration of commercial
discovery by the operator and approval by the Director General Petroleum Concessions (DGPC), the Group
has right to increase its working interest up to 25% and the resulting consideration is payable to relevant joint
operation partners in these joint operations, according to the provisions of the related PCAs.

i
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The carried cost payable to joint operation pariners comprise of the cost of the successful wells and
expenditure that are attributable to the commercial discovery. The cost is directly recognised as
development and production assets o the exient to which the cost relates to wells. The remaining portion of

- the costis charged off to, conso!sdated statement of profit or loss as exploratncn and prospectlng expendiiure.

Deveiopment and productxon assets also mciude thm cost of deveiopmg the discovered commercial reserves

and bringing them into’ production, together with the. capitalized E&E expenditures incurred in finding
commercial reserves transferred from E&E assets as outlined in accountmg pelicy 5.3 above and the cost of
recognising prows ons for fuiure site restoratson and decommussnon ng

Expendt%ur@ carrted w:thm each ﬂeld is amomsed from the commencement of productton on a uﬂit of
preduction basis, over the estimated useful life of the field determined by reference to proved reserves, on a
field by field basis. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field deveicpment costs are
dealt with prospectively. Amortisation is charged fo consolidated statement of profit or loss. Amortisation
expense for the year is computed on all development and production assets at year end including additions /
adjustments made during the year. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field
development costs are dealt with prospectively.

impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asseis recoverable
amount is estimated.

Exploration and Evaluation (E&E)assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at
which a determination is made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the
Group has right to explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed,
substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any
other event that may give rise fo indication that E&E assets are impaired.

Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbeons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons produced.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows largely independent of other assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs). The carrying value is
compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to the future net
cash flows expected to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carrying value of the asset, the Group considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the asset
as a whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the 1AS-36 Impairment of Assets.

’
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Joint arrangements

: Jomt operations

Investments in joint arrangements are classified joint operations based on the contractual right and

. obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Group assesses the nature of its joint arrangements and fo
*their class;f;catmn as joint operations in accordance with IFRS 11. The Group has recognized its share of

assets, fiabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred under the joint operations on the basis of
latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and where applicable, the cost statements received
from operators of the joint arrangements for the intervening period up to the statement of financial position
date. The difference, if any, between the cost statements and audited financial statement is accounted for in

‘the subsequent periods.

Joint venture

Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint ventures are those investments in distinct legal entities
over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Investment in foreign joint venture is translated into presentation currency at
each reporting year end. The related exchange rate difference is charged / credited to foreign currency
translation reserve.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that joint
control commences, until the date that joint control ceases.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in a joint venture, the carrying amount of that interest
(including any long term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has a constructive or legal obligation to contribute fo such losses or has

- made payments on behalf of the investee.

After application of equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
{including goodwill} is tested for impairment in accordance with |IAS 36 Impairment of assets.

Investment in associated company

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in the joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The resuits, assets and liabiiities of the associate have been incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised at cost adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition protits or
losses of the associate in consolidated profit or loss and the Group's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the associate in consolidated other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from the associate is recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes arising from the foreign exchange
iranslation differences. The Group's share of those changes is recognised in the Group’s consolidated other
comprehensive income. Losses of an associate in excess of Group’s interest in that associate are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive cbligation or made payment on behalf of
the associate. Where objective evidence of impairment of investment in associate is identified, then the
carrying amount of equity-accounted investment is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 5.5.

=
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Capital work in progress

Cap|ta work in progfess is stated at cost Iess accumulaied mpalrment iosses, if any.

: Th@ carrylng amount of the capltai work in progreas is revzewed at each reportmg date to determine whether

there ‘is any indication of impairment loss. If. any such mdlcat ion exists, the assel's recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extem of xmpazrmeat loss. lmpalrment losses are charged to consolidated

. statement of prof;t or Ioss

Lease i;abfiity and r;ght~of—use asset

'"At mceptuon of a contract. the Group assesses . whether a contract is, or centams a lease based on whether

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is avaifable for use by the Group.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penaities for
terminating the lease, if the lease term refiects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives
receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease
payments or an index or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset, or is recorded in profit and ioss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to
Zero.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs o dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight
fine method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

IFRS 16 requires the Group fo assess the lease term as the non-cancelable lease term in line with the lease
contract together with the period for which the Group has extension options which the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise and the periods for which the Group has termination options for which the Group is not
reasonably certain fo exercise those termination options.

The reasonably certain period used to determine the lease term is based on facts and circumstances related
to the underlying leased asset and lease contracts and after consideration of business plan of the Group
which incorporates economic, potential demand of customers and economic changes.

*
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Siores spares & loose foofs share in _;omt operations’ zﬂventory

Siores spares & Ioose tools afe valued at the lower of cost and net reaizsable value less Jmpaurment for slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the basis of costing methods adopted by operators of respective }omt
operations. Net r@ahsabie value signifies the estimated seiling price in the ordinary course of business less
cests r;ecessar&y to be mcur{eci in order {o make a sale.

"Stock in trade L

inventories are stated at the iower of cost and net realisabie va!ue Costs of inventories are determined on
FIFO basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs. .
of compietion and costs necessary to make the sale. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stocks,
where considerad necessary. The change in accounting policy has been applied consistently o all periods
presenied in these consolidated financial statements.

Recoverable fr_om tax authorities

This represents the amounts receivable from the tax authorities against the amount overpaid or unadjusted
against the income tax and sales tax respectively.

Advance tax is paid by the Company at imports and withheld by the prescribed persons under the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 from the payments made to the Company. At the pericd end, when the income tax liability is
computed, the over and above portion of the advance tax paid over the assessed tax liability gives rise to the
adjustable or refundable income tax.

Sales tax is paid by the Company at import stage to the authorities. At the month end, when the sales tax
iability is computed, the over and above portion of sales tax paid / accumulated over te assessed sales tax
liability gives rise to refundable sales tax,

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group
losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilittes are
derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a} Amortised cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;
b} Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
¢} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in consolidated statement of profit
or loss or consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCH). For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this depends on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for

managsng rhose assefs changes.
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Receghition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
" cash flows from the, financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substaﬂt;ally all the nsks and rewards of ownershsp

-Measurement

Af Emtjal recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of & financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), fransaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
. of.the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

{a) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss and presented in other
income / expenses, together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to consolidated statement of profit or
loss and recognised in other income / expenses. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other income / expenses and impairment expenses are presenied as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

{c} Falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Any gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and presented net within other income / expenses in the period in which it
arises.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

i} The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

i) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a} the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

JATAL.
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When the Group has fransferred Hs rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asse-it the asset as recogmsed fo. the extent of the Group's continuing

. mvo%vement m the asset

n thai case, the Group also reccgmses an assomated Itablhty The transferreci asset and the associated
liability are measured on a. basis. that refiects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing mvoivement that takes'the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carfymg amount of the asset and the maximumn amount of consideration that the Group couid

_ ?}e requnred to repay

impairment of fmanc;ai assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model;

- Trade debts

- Trade deposits

- Long term loans to staff

- Leans and other receivables
- Cash and bank balances

- Short term investmenis
- Receivable from GoP

General approach for loans and other receivables, trade deposits, long term loans to staff, Receivable
from GoP, short term investments and cash and bank balances

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
The magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability

. of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted

for factors that are specific to the counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date, Loss allowances are forward looking, based on 12 month expected
credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are
based on lifetime expected losses.

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit iosses. The probability is determined by
the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating,
allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the net present value of expected cash flows. On a
significant increase in credit risk, allowances are recognised without a change in the expected cash flows,
although typucally expected cash flows do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12
month to tifetime expectations,

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL
reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes:

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

.
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As outlined in note 19, trade debis are separately assessed for ECL measurement except for inter corporate

- circular debts.. The lifetime expected credit losses are estimated using the Group's historical credit loss

experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as weii as the forecast ds{ectjon of conditions at the reporting date, inciuding
iime value of money where appropr ate

.Significant increase ir; credit risk

The Group considers the probability of_defau_lt upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a

significant increase In credit risk on’ an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether

there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-locking information.

A financial asset is credi-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debior’s ability o meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor,

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a defauit or past due event;

- the Group for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financiai difficulty, have
granted to the borrower a concession{s) that the Group would not otherwise consider;

- Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; if
applicable.

Pefinition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable,

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that

the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
heid by the Group). Irrespective of the above analysis, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 365 days past due in making a contractual payment unless the Group has reasonabie
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

*
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Recognition of ioss aiiewance

The Group rerognsses an, lmpalrment gam or loss in the consolidated dtatement of profrt or loss for all
financial ms?ruments WIih a Gorrespond ing adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance

. aocount

Wr;te off

The Gmup wr:te off financial assets in whole or in part ‘when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts

and has concluded there is no reasonabie expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable

+ . expectation of recovery is based on unavailability. of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate

5.13.2

sufficient futtre cash’ flows o repay the amount Financial assets writter off - may still be subject to

enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

Financial Habilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories

— at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"); and
— at amortised cost.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, also include directly attributable
transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilittes depends on their classification, as
follows:

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial
fabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Group has not
designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Amortised cost

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through effective interest rate
amortisation process.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financiai liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilites only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if the Group has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Group
intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the fiability simultaneously.

>
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise of term depository
feceipts maturing within 3 months from af‘C]UISlt!Oﬂ cash in hand, cash at banks and the related accrued
interest income maturing wsthm 3-months. Cash equwalents are short term highly liquid investments, that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

' i}ecomm:ss;on;ng cost

" The activities of the’ Greup normaﬂy give rise to obhgatlons for sits restoration. Restoration activities may

include abandonment and removal of wells, facility decommissioning and dismantling, removal or treatment of
waste materials, land rehabilitation, and site restoration.

Liabilities for decommissioning cost are recognised when the Group has an obligation for site restoration, and
when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. The Group makes provision in full for the
decommissioning cost on the declaration of commercial discovery of the reserves, to fulfil the obligation of
site restoration and rehabilitation. The obligations for oil and natural gas production or transportation facilities,
are required on construction or installation. An obligation for decommissioning may also crystallize during the
period of operation of a well / facility through a change in legisiation or through a decision to terminate
operations.

The amount recognised is the estimated cost of decommissioning, discounted to its net present value at a
current pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability and the expected
outflow of economic resources to settle this obligation is up to next thirty years.

Decommissioning cost, as appropriate, retating to producing or developing fields is capitalised to the cost of
development and production assets and property, plant and equipment as the case may be. The recognised
amount of decommissioning cost is subsequently amortised / depreciated as part of the capital cost of the
development and production assets on a unit of production method and property, plant and equipment over
the assets useful life respectively. At the time of decommissioning of the field, any differences arising from
settlement of the provision are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss,

While the provision is based on the best estimate of future costs and the economic life of the fields, there is
uncertainty regarding both the amount and timing of incurring these costs. The Group reviews the
decommissioning provision at the reporting date. Any change in the present value of the estimated
expenditure is dealt with prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding
adjustment to property, plant and equipment and development and production assets. If a decrease in a
provision is greater than the carrying value of asset, the excess is recognised in consofidated statement of
profit or loss. The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is recognised as finance cost
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carrying value of the asset, the Group considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the assst
as a whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the IAS-36 Impairment of Assets.

Employee benefits
Employees gratuity fund

The Group operates approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The investments of
gratuity funds are made through approved trust funds. Contributions are made in accordance with actuarial
recommendations. Actuarial valuations are conducted by an independent actuary, annually using projected
unit credit method related details of which are given in note 32.2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
obligation at the date of consolidated statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the

estlmaied fu%ure cash outflows.
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Actuarial gains and losses {remeasurement gains / losses} on employees’ gratuity fund are recognised
immediately in consolidated other compfehenswe income and past. semce cost is recognised in consolidated

 statement of proﬂ% or loss when ihey occur

Cost primarily represents ihe increase in actuarlal preseni: value of the ob igation for the employees’ gratuity
fund earned on employees service during the year and the interest on the net liability / {(asset) in respect of

o empioyee s service in prevzous years. Caiculaticns are sens;twe to changes in the ur;deriymg assumptions.

_ 'Calculatzon of gratmty obhgatlons requsre assumpttorzs ifo be made of fu%ure outcomes which mainly includes
N mcrease in_remuneration, expected long-term return on: plcm assets and the discount rate used to convert

future cash flows to current values, Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions. The
assumptions used vary for the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Employee compensated absences

The Group provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the rules of the
Group. Each employee can encash the un-utilized leave balance up to 90 days based on last drawn gross
salary at the time of resignation, contract renewat / termination.

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contribution is
made both by the Group and the employee to the fund at the rate of 8.33% and 10% of basic salary for the
Holding Company and Subsidiary companies respectively. The Group's contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the applicable rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any, adjusted for payments to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for
payments on account of royalty and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Income tax
expense is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Group recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Group's views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and where
the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are
shown as contingent labilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the consolidated staterment of financial position fiability method in
respect of all temporary differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, un-used tax losses and tax credits can be utiised. Deferred tax is
calculated at the rates that are substantially expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on the tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income except in the
case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

ARATgY
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Deferred taxation is recognised taking into account availability of taxable profits. The management uses
assumptions about future best estimates of the availabiity of future taxable profits based on available
information. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each. reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is

- no Eonger probab!e thai: the related tax benef;t will be reahsed

. Deferred ta'x_%s_not reco_gnisjecé for. the’.temporar_y- differences ariséng. from the initial recognition of assets or

liabilities in a transaction that is not a business. combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or ioss, and differences relating to investments in associates and interest in joint arrangements to the
extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in a foreseeable future and the investor / joint operator is

- able.to controi- the timing of the reversal. of the temporary difference. In addition, deferred tax is not
- recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Offsetting deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax asseis and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current tax
assets and tax fiabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Group tax

The Group is taxed as a one fiscal unit along with Holding Company and its other wholly owned subsidiaries
under section 59AA to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised
by each entity within the Group in their respective statement of comprehensive income, regardless of who has
the legal rights or obligation for the recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax authorities. Tax Hability /
receivable is shown by the Holding Company, on submission of annual tax return, who has the legal obligation
to pay of right of recovery of tax from the taxation authorities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a present,
legal ‘or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of such
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific to the liability.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
arises from past events, but it is not probable that an cutflow of resources embaodying economic benefits will
be required to seitle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
‘transferring a promised good to a customer. A good is transferred when the customer obtains control of that
good or service. The transfer of confrol of crude oil, gas and liquefied petroleum gas coincides with title
passing to the customer and the customer taking physical possession whereas the transfer of control of
RLNG coincides with injection of Regasified Liquified Natural Gas (RLNG) into customer's pipeline
infrastructure at the tie in point through Custody Transfer Station (CTS). The Group principally satisfies its
gerformz;gg obligations at a point in time and recognises revenue relating to the performance.
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Revenue is measured at the transaction price, net of government levies. Transaction prices of crude cil, gas
and RLNG are specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the government authorities based on
agreements with customers, relevant applicable petroleum policy, decision of Economic Coordination
'Commli’zee {ECC) of the Cabinet or Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs) Prices of liguefied petroleum

' gas are approved by.the appropriate authority: of operator keeping.in view the ceiling price notified by Oil &

Gas Regulatory’ Authorlty (OGRA). Effect of adjustments if ‘any, arisihg from revision in sale prices is
reflected as and when the prsces are f nalized with the custormers and / or approved by the Government of
Pakistan (GOP)

Billings are generally raised by the end of each month which are payable within 30 to 45 days except for

" RLNG where billings are generally raised by the end of each week which are payable within 5 days in

accordance with the coniractual arrangement with customers. Amounts billed or received prior to being
eamned, are deferred and recognised as advances from customers. The Group based on its assessment has
not identified a significant financing component in its current contracts with customers because payment
terms of allowed days are explicitly specified and delay in settiement of invoices does not result in a significant
financing component.

Finance income and cost

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gain on long term labilities / provisions
due to change in estimate. interest income of financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the
effective interest method and is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. Dividend income is recognised when
the right to receive the payment is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

The Group has contractual right and is eniitled to charge interesi if payments from customers are delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Group recognises interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognised will
not’ occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is when the
interest on delayed payments is received by the Group.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on lease liabilities (if any), interest expense on borrowings (if any),
unwinding of discount on provisions or lability, interest on delayed payment and bank charges. Mark up,
interest and other charges on borrowings are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the fransaction.
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at
the rate of exchange ruling on the consolidated statement of financial position date and exchange differences,
if any, are credited / charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

AL
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Foreign operations

The transactions of foreign operation are translated at rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
All monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign. operation are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rate prevailing at the date of consolidated statement of financial position and the resulting currency
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate

.. Teserve in-equity until the disposal of foreign ope’ra_ti_on, _upbn-_which these are reclassified from equity to
- consolidated statement of profit or loss when gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

5.23

5.24

5.25

Dividends

Bividend distribution and appropriation of reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calcuiated by dividing the profit or loss aftributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable o ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liability unless payment is not due
within twelve (12) months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Reserves

The Group has a policy to set aside out of the profits of the Group such amount as the Group think proper as
a reserve or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, be applicable for meeting
contingencies, or for any other purpose fo which the profits of the Group may be properly applied, and
pending such application may, in the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the Group or be
invested in such investments, as the Board of Directors may from time to time think fit. Reserves are reviewed
periodically and adjusted as necessary by the Board of Directors.
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8 . PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

_ .Owned fixed assets :
Share in pmt operatsons ftxed assets

.24

Share ir joint operations” capital work i progsess e

Capltai work in progress

6.1 Owned fixed assets

As at July 1, 2022

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value
Year ended June 30, 2023

Opening net book value
Additions
Disposals

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Write off
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge
Closing net book value
As at July 1, 2023

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value
Year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book vaiue
Additions
Adjustments
Disposals
Cost
Accumuiated depreciation

Depreciation charge
Closing net book value
As at June 30, 2024

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Annual rate of
depreciation (%}

NVl

2024 2023

Note e Rupees {000}
8.1 210,237 98,389
62 23,644,312 24,593,240
8.3 3,407,167 3.875,864
6.5 2,232,650 2,232,650
29,494,366 30,800,143

o .fo:ce. o Fur{:l_ture _aqd : Corpputar. . Vehiclas Yotal
equipment fhxtures equipment
Rupees {'000)
56,642 59,007 110,628 37,642 263,917
(41,280) (39,060) {81,123 {32,943) {194,407}
15,362 18,946 29,503 4,699 69,510
15,362 19,946 29,503 4,689 69,510
10,691 9,275 14,552 32,518 67,034
1,515 652 22,666 8,576 31,409
(1,494 (652) (22 514) {6,576) (31,238}
21 - 152 - 173
{8,996) (7,824} (16,685) (4,477) (37.983)
17,036 21,397 27,218 32,738 98,389
65,819 67,629 102,511 63,582 298,541
(48,784) (46,232) {75,294) (30,843} {201,153)
17.036 21,397 27,217 32,739 98,389
17,036 21,397 27.217 32,739 98,389
116,543 11,485 38,411 9,167 175,616
3,870 {496) {3,970} (125} {621)
1,581 - 8,616 - 10,197
(1,411) - {7,972) - {9,383)
170 - 644 - 814
{24,674) (7,862} {20,963) {8,834) (62,333)
112,705 24,534 40,051 32,947 210,237
184,751 78,628 128,336 72,624 464,340
{72,047) (54,084) (88,285) {39,677) {254,103)
112,705 24,534 40,051 32,947 210,237
15-50 15 30-33 20
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6.2

Share in joint operatibns' fixed assets

As atJuly 1, 2022

Cost :
Accumuliated depreciation
Accumidlated Impairment
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2023

Opening net book value
Additions / {atjustmaents)
Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers from CWIP
Disposals :
Cost :
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impairment

Depreciation charge
Impairment charge

Closing net book vaiue
As atJuly 1, 2023

Cost .
Accumulated depreciation
Accurnulated lmpairment

Net book value
Year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net hook value

Additions / (adjustments)

Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers From CWIP

Depreciation charge -

Impairment charge

Closing net book value

Asg at.June 30, 2024

Cost :
Accumulated depreciation
Accumuiated impairment

Net book value

Annual rate of

epreciation (%)
SRA7% 1

B

Leasehold Plant and N Office Furniture . Decommission
. Pipelines . y Vehicles Totat
land equipment equipment and fixtures -ing cost
Rupees ("000) '
54,895 47,914,964 8450718 350,823 77.68% 184,299 . 964,096 E7.897 484 -
(41,950) {24,171,588) (4,580,221 (297,4596) {72,782) (172,119) L {551,808) {29,206 971}
(12,945) (3,171,301 (770,997} (30,271) (3,816} {3,196) (76,163} (4,068,690
- 20.572 085 3,080,500 23 058 1,681 - 8,984 336,127 _ 24 (21 823
) 20,572,066 3,080,500 23,056 1,001 8,984 - 336127 24,021,823
- {359,695} 30,998 28,221 1,195 40 752,594 - 453353
- (46,304) (1,288) - - - - (47.592)
- 2,456 697 420,303 - - - - 2,877,000
- 332712 - - - - “ 332,712
(274,782) ’ {274,782)
- (57.930) - - - - - (57,830
- {1,984,102) (509,826) (8,497} (378) (2,326) ©105,923) {2.611,052)
- (85,002) (12,517) (2,624) (149) - o . (100,292)
- 20,553,659 2,008,170 40,156 1,759 6,698 - 982 798 24 583 240
54,885 49 632 950 8,900,731 379,044 78,884 184,339 ©.1.716,890 _ 80,947,533
(41,950} {25,880,918) (5,109,047} (305,693) (73,160) (174,445) - {B57,728) - {32,243,242)
(12,945} (3,198,373) (783,614} {32,895) (3,965) (3,196) - (78,163) (4,111,061
- 20,553,659 3,008,170 40,156 1,759 5,698 - 982,798 24 593 240
“ 20,553,859 3,008,170 40,156 1,789 6,698 ' 882,798 24,593,240
- 1,354,071 187,957 34,320 1,431 - 73,671 4,651,450
- (631,963} - - - - {664,068) (1,296,031)
- 1,261,820 622,564 - . - - 1,884,384
- (2,367,516) (537,376} {17,.977) {1,864) {767) {214,005) (3,135,504}
- (34,720} {14,009} (498) - - - (49,227}
- 20,135,352 3,267,306 56,001 1,32¢ 5,931 178,396 23,644,312
54,895 §1,616,878 9,711,282 413,364 80,31% 184,339 1,126,293 63,187,336
(41,250} (28,248,433) {5,646,423) {323,970) {75,024} {175,212} (871,733) (35,382,746}
(12,945) (3,233,093) {797,523) {33,393) (3,965} {3,198} {76,163} (4,160,279)
“ 20,138,252 3,267,306 56,001 1,326 5,931 178,346 23,644,312
4-33 4-33 4.33 20 18 20 4-33
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2024 ' 2023

Share in joint operatsons capital work in progress Mote esesecenee Rupees {(000)~rmnnrawmns
Baiame at the begmﬂmg of the year S g SR © 4,101,149 3,587 895

- Cost incurred during the year -~~~ . 0 SR 1,411,803 3,393,976
~ Transferred to development and productmn &ssets T R - (3.523)
* Transferred to share in joint.Operations' fixed assets =~~~ {1,884,384) (2,877.,000)
' T T s 3,628,668 4,101,149
Accumulated impairment - o 8.3.2 (221,501) (225,285)

Balance atthe end of the year -~~~ . 3,407,167 3,875 864

- Totai capitatized cost includes asset decommissicning cost émount%ng to Rs. 223.8 milion as at June 30, 2024

(2023: Rs. 235.2 million}.

2024 2023
Movement in accumulated impairment Note mremmmeemeeRUPEES (1000)--mmommeoeoe-
Balance at the beginning of the year 225,285 221,501
Charge / fransfer for the year {3,784) 3,784
Balance at the end of the year 221,501 225,285
Allocation of depreciation
Operating expenses 36 3,139,504 2,611,062
General and administrative expenses 39 62,333 37,983

3,201,837 2,649,035
Capital work in progress
Iran Pakisian Gas Pipeline Project 5.5.1 2,232,650 2,232,650
iran Pakistan Gaé Pipeline Project
Consultancy services 6.5.1.1 2,546,571 2,546,571
Travelling and transportation expenses 83,901 63,801
Field security expenses 25,345 25,345
Tendering expenses 19,227 19,227
Rent, rates and utilities 28,288 28,288
Personnel costs and benefits 246,580 246,580
Training and capacity building 5,060 5,060
Insurance 2,919 2,919
Repairs and maintenance 27,782 27,782
Legal and professional services 11,176 11,176
Depreciation 38,409 39,409
Amortisation 8,893 8,893
Mark up on loan 28,922 28,922
Others - 11,161 11,161
impairment loss- Iran-Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project (278,668) (278,6868)
impairment loss- Gwadar-Nawabshah LNG project 6.5.1.3 (553,916) (553,916)

2,232,650 2,232,650
Consuitancy services
Engineering and Project Management (E&PM) consuliancy
Stage |
Bankable Feasibility Study 409,866 409,866
Development of Front End Engineering Design (FEED) 527,429 527,429
Detailed Route Survey 308,451 308,451
Social and Environmental Impact Assessment (SEIA) 146,485 146,485
Project Management 233,473 233,473
Other costs 130,840 130,840

1,756,544 1,756,544
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2024 2023
----------- Rupees {"000)-rmmnamanrn
Stage i
Pro;ect Management S L . R 362,351 362,351
Procurement Services of iong Lead Etems (LLI's} and S -
- Engineering, F’mcurement Construction (EPC) Contract - _ 86,960 86,960
Engineering Suppor‘t LLé SIEPC Tender _' _ . : o 216,371 216,371
GthE{ cost : _ _ : C ' 104,563 104,563
SR ' : ' 770,245 770,245
2,546,571 2,546,571

The Governments of Pakistan {(GoP} and iran signed an Inter-Governmental Framework Declaration (IGFD} for the
lran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project {{P-Project) on May 24, 2009. The Group has entered via Subsidiary Company,
ISGSL, into an lran Pakistan Gas Sale Purchase Agreement (JP-GSPA) with National lranian Cil Company (NIOC}
on June 5, 2009 which became effective on June 13, 2010 upon compietion of all conditions precedent to 1P-
GEPA. The commitments under IP-GSPA are backed by a sovereign guarantee issued by the GoF on May 28,
2010, whereas, the financial requirements were envisaged {o be met through Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
{GIDC) and Private Sector Entity (PSE) equity injection as approved by Economic Coordination Committee (ECC)
of the Federal Cabinet. '

To commence work an the {P-Project, ISGSL hired an Engineering and Project Management Consultant (E&PM)
which is a joint venture between a German based firm ILF Beratende ingenieure GMBH and Naticnal Engineering
Services Pakistan (Private) Limited (NESPAK). ILF - NESPAK submitted reports on Stage ! and Stage 1l which
have been accepted by ISGSL. Complete design of the pipeline system (Front End Engineering & Design),
feasibility study, installation of concrete markers and tender documents for the supply of equipment and
construction of the pipeline system have also been completed in a timely manner.

In accordance with the guidelines issued by the sub-committee / steering committee of the ECC, the initial capital
requirernent of the IP-Project is being funded through equity injection by the Holding Company.

Government to Government Co-operation Agreement as initialed on December 1, 2012 was endorsed hy the
Federal Cabinet on January 30, 2013. The President of Pakistan and the President of Iran inaugurated the
construction phase of IP-Project in a Ground Breaking Ceremony held on March 11, 2013.

The IP Project faced constraints, as a2 consequence of the international sanctions imposed on lran by United
Nations, United States of America and the European Union. Iran's association with the Project and risk of violating
sanctions was considered to affect potential financiers, reputable international suppliers of crucial equipment and
contractors. ISGSL believes that this has created a Force Majeure and Excusing Events situation and accordingly
the matter has been taken up with Government of Iran as per the provisions of the signed IP-GSPA. In terms of the
letter dated April 14, 2014, NIOC rejected ISGSL's Force Majeure notice on the premise that substantively, the
situations alluded by ISGSL do not constitute any ground for the occurrence of Force Majeure or £xcusing Events
under the |P-GSPA.

On February 27, 2019 NICC issued a formal notice of material breach of buyer's warranties under the IP-GSPA,
Alfter negotiation with ran, on September 5, 2019 Pakistan and Iran has signed an addendum to the IP-GSPA for
extension of fimitation period of any claims for further five years from the date of signing of the addendum. In light
of the aforesaid addendum, Iran withdrew the aforementioned notice and accordingly, the Group did not accrue any
penalty under the terms of IP-GSPA agreement with NIOC.

Also, GoP has provided sovereign guarantes to NIOC en behalf of ISGSL regarding the performance of obligations
of ISGSL under the Gas Sale and Purchase Agreement signed between NIOC and ISGSL.

SRATLL
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The management conducted an impairment assessment of the capital work in progress at year ended June 30,
2024 Based of technical and financial assessment of the project costs under CWIP and their {angibility, validity and
continued value in use to the project and the fact that the Group with the support of GoP is fully committed fo
implemeant the project in due course of time. Management concludes that all tangible costs directly related fo
technical and commercial studies,remains valid and unimpaired as at June 30, 2024,

ECC in its meeting held on October 2, 2014 approved the Gwadar-Nawabshah LNG Terminal & Pipeline project
(GNP, it was envisaged that GNP shall not only serve to meet ever growing energy needs of Pakistan but can aiso
be utilised to link up to lranian border in future and therefore Pakistan would substantially be complying with its
contractual obligations under the GSPA. As essential technical work of pipeline route has already been done for P

During the visit of President of China to Pakistan on April 20, 2015, National Energy Administration of China and
Ministry of Energy {MoE) of Pakistan signed framework agreement at Islamabad in relation to GNP. In this respect,
Chinese nominated entity i.e. China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP) submitted the technical and financial bid to
ISGSL for Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Financing (EPCF) under Government to Government
framework agreement, which was being negotiated. However, the Cabinet Committee on Energy (CCE) through its
decision taken in its meeting dated June 6, 2017 directed MoE to drop the GNP forthwith. As per the said direction,
ISGSL during 2017 discontinued the GNP and recognised an impairment loss against aggregate cost incurred on
GNP.

2024 2023
Mote = —-eeeemee Rupees ("000}--mrmmnn
Alocation of impairment
Operating expenses 36 45,443 104,076

As the Holding Company is a non-operator, property, plant and equipment other than owned fixed assets are not in
the possession of the Holding Company and are operated by joint operations in which the Holding Company has
working interest.

2024 2023

wmmemmeeme-Rupees {000} --<nnmeeen
RIGHT OF USE ASSET

Cost 144,469,320 144,489,320

Accumulated depreciation

As at beginning of the year 42,805,724 32,104,293
Depreciation charge 10,701,431 10,701,431
As at end of the year 53,507,155 42,805,724
Carrying amount at end of the year 90,962,165 101,663,596
Useful life 15 years 15 years

HFTEL .
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2024 2023
S T R 1111 M—
Lease liability .
~ As at beginning of the year 185,417,918 149,195,473
- Interest charge during the year 8,249,367 7,337,880
Lease payments during the year - (24,274,749)  (21,319,049)
" Exchange loss on reranslation - 2,172,560 50,203.614
As atend of theyear - - ' 171,565,096 185,417,918
Current portion (17,075,868)  (16,252,001)

Nor-current portion - _ _ 154,489,228 169,165,917

Wiaturity arialysis - contractual tundiscounted cash fiows
Not iater than one year 23,937,586 23,741,862
Later than one year and not later than five years 119,753,515 120,460,757
Later than five years 60,007,922 81,020,724
203,699,023 225,223,343

Lease arrangement

The Group recognises the lease for Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU), Jetty and connecting
pipelines assets located at LNG terminal. Initially lease arrangement was entered by Pakistan LNG Terminal
Limited (PLTL} through. Operation Services Agreement {OSA} with PGP Consortium Limited (PGPCL) as main
iease arrangement, additionally Terminal- Use and Regasification Agreement (TURA) was entered into by the
Group with PLTL as sub lease arrangement. Subsequent to merger of PLTL with Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) , this
lease arrangement effectively remained with PGPCL as lessor and the Group as lessee,

Under the lease contract the Group has to pay fixed lease rentals, interest rate implicit in the lease was not
availabie therefore lease liability initially measured at the present value of the lease payments using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. The Group used the discount rate of LIBOR+2% i-e 4.2% on the date of
commencement of lease toreflect the rate at which external financiers would lend to the Group for the type of asset

leased.

2024 2023
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - SOFTWARES Note ~  ———momeee- Rupees ("000}-----wunuse
Cost 189,592 136,320
Accumulated amortisation {142,476} {132,521)
MNet hook value 47,1186 3,799
Opening net bogk value 3,799 8,577
Additions 53,272 2,546
Disposals
Cost - 4,215
Accumulated amortisation - (4,215)
Amottisation charge {9,955) (7,324)
Ciosing net book value 47,116 3,799
Annual rate of amortisation (%) 25-33 25-33
EXPLORATION AMND EVALUATION ASSETS
Balance at beginning of the year 4,438,429 5,775,068
Expenditure incurred during the year 40,523 442770
4,478,952 6,217,838
Caost of dry and abandoned wells 38 {185,604) (7,160}
Transfer to development and production assets {313,010} (1,772,247}
{498,614} (1,779,407}
Balance at end of the year 3,980,338 4,438428

VAT




14 ] BEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION ASSETS
2024 . Gost Amaortization mpairmont Carrying amount
Adjustmoent of .
As i . ! P As at As at Charge Az sl As at Charge As al As ai
e Particulars Working nferast  July 1, 2073 COUtions  Adjustments D““""(’:";Ef“’”‘“g Transfers ) e a0, 2024 July 1, 2023 for the “;ear June 30,2024 July 1, 2023 for the s;(mr June 30, 2034 June 30, 2024
Rupees ('500). . Rupees {'000} Rz {004} Rupees ('009;
Producing felds-Joint operations
e Sadin 1l 25 .00% 305,792 - - - - ’ 306,792 306,782 - 306,792 - - - : -
Block-22 (ail fields) ©Z250% 259,905 4,157 - - - 264,062 204,718 2,201 208,519 §5,167 ST 1,856 57,143 -
AhmedalPamvalt 17ECH: 781,707 5,317 - - - revozd 678,987 17,393 696,380 o R - 896,644 1
Minwal T7AD 3,812 - 220 {1,967} - 2,066 1.887 & .. 1,854 - . - - 162
Mazarani 12.50% . . 135,602 - - - " 136,502 115,272 - B E-Pdic) 21,328 . 21,528 1
e Sawan 22.50% 3,422,852 - {2,106} {50,048} - 3,376,800 2,654,37¢ 18,343 2,870,713 £04,083 e H 604,082 46,024
Zamzama : 25.00% 4,766,458 - {25} (4.272) - 4,762,161 3,726,863 9,978 3,736,842 1,016,730 | - 1,018,730 8,583
Mubarak 28.00% 1,449,138 10.58% 4,858 {5,863} - 1,455,714 277,378 7.905 265,283 1,069,875 To1%,180 4,101,088 | 73378
N 22.50% . 557,844 5,541 485 {33,893 - 544,018 309,008 48,232 358240 . - : - - T 185,775
Mensan 25.00% 69,203 - - - - 69,203 1,833 - 1,933 67,2100 kS - 67,270 -
iy Chanda 17500 H 1,618,426 851,802 - - 452,881 | . 2,951,120 1,275,098 303,602 1,578,701 Lo ’ - - 1,372,419
;_ Gambat 25.00% 448,656 . - - - 449,656 249,873 - 249,873 199,682 S . " 199,682 1
i Tal {alk flelds} 15.00% 6,674,624 665,155 (R12,478) {4,883) 432 ; 71,122,762 5,681,500 457,092 6,115,992 - : - ~ 1,003,770
Khipro {ak fields} 25.00% 3,858,462 24,068 2,266 (22.865) - 3,861,937 2762704 257,520 3,020,224 Lw - - B41,713
Mirpurkhas (21! fields) 28.00% 7,297,742 1,184,937 {212,454) {80.769) 23,600 8,213,057 5,786,683 1,139,663 6,926,148 L. - - 1,286,711
« Chaghar Z5.00% . 281,248 - - {81} - 251,187 159,178 40 158,218 81,885 | - - 91,855 14
Nashpa 15 00% 5,029,480 284,713 - {33,176) 742,054 6,033,672 3,172,179 647,048 3,619,227 .- T - 2,213,845
Sinhore 22 50% 1,069,313 581,663 82,450 {+12,691) 274,681 1,835,416 630,550 137,538 748,085 . -, ’ EEE - 1,087,331
tehar 25.00% 4,349,458 22,353 {71,831 - 825,033 5,125,047 2,256,178 710,314 2,866,482 853,482 198,621 . 1,056,103 1,100,452
Jhakro 22.50% 10,107 - ~ - - 19,167 10,079 - 10,072 261 - ! 28 -
Cuddu 2750% 153,277 - 87 (13,135} B 140,235 125,154 2,851 128,005 - ) N - . 12,234
o Holan 175G 563,376 23 {34} {14,713} - 548,674 502,641 7,220 508,861 - - ’ - 36,813
Gembat South 2500% 2,016,950 - {104) (112,707} 313,010 2,217,148 897,226 132,788 1,039,014 - = - | 1,187,134
Bitrigim 22.50% 310,934 65,655 {449,043} {9,497} - 315,049 143,028 86,324 198,352 : - - - 118,687
Tando Allah Yar (zli fislds) 22 80% 344,627 20,654 11,282 1 (27,202} 184,137 803,449 236,141 24,164 260,365 - - . M 343,144
Shak Bandar 2.50% 58,017 10,771 326 {325) - £9,788 £9,016 - 49,098 - . e - 10,772
e Khewari 22 50% 207,382 178,850 {101,068%) (14,652} 58,308 328,848 46,554 65,031 111,585 - - - 217,263
Dok Sultan 25.00% 1,764,954 - - (12,032) - 1,752,922 1,808,380 284,502 1,262.982 - = - 489,430
Decomprisgioning cost X 4,580,692 813,436 {BBY,472) - 4,516,655 2,524,808 795,864 3,320,672 244,364 292,309 535,673 , £59,310

Sub total producing fields 52,383,168 4,643,757 {543.126) (1.446,362) 2,814,137 58,051,575 35,761,669 5,087,731 £0,859,398 4,248,864 504,068 4,753,830 12,438,247

*This ncludes

versal of decormmissioning cost amounting Rs. 559 miflion directly made against related fleld assets under provisions of IFRIC 1 - Changes in existing decomrnissioning, restoration and simitar Sabilities
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Developing fields-loint aperations

impairment

2024 Amaortization Carrying amount
. . As at Additions Adjustments Deizﬁz:zggn?ig Trangiers As at As at Charge As ot As at Charge  Asat As at
Particuiars Working Interest  July 1, 2623 Cost June 30, 2024 July 1, 2023 for the yaar June 30, 2024 July 1, 2023 for the yoar June 30, 2024 June 30, 2024
Rupeds {'060) — e ——— A A Rupees {000} Rupees {'000)
Developing fields-Joint eperations

Wehar 25.00% 825,033 - - - {825,033) - - - B 108,644 ‘ 108,644y .. .

Tanda Alizh Yar {all fields) 22 BO% 184,138 - - - (184,338) - - - . - 3 - - -

Kangra 25.00% 3,877 - - - - 3,577 - - - 3,577 : - BEIT -
Mim 22 50% {2,807} - - - - {2,807) - “ “ . ~ A - {2,807)
. Katea 20.00% 94,771 - « {13,888) - 80,891 - - B 50,824 R 50,424 30,067
Balan 17.50% . 54,852 - - _— " 54,363 - - - . ' b o 54,863
Tai 15.00% 1,104 10,928 (328} - (432} 11,271 - - - - - - 11,211
Mirpurkhas (w1 helds) 25.00% 23,500 95,343 . . (23,600) 98,942 - - - . . B 95,942
Hhipra (ah feids) 26.00% 13,039 450,419 {21,686) - - 441,11 . - " . - - 441,771
Nashpa 15.00% 1,515,568 145,731 - - {742,054} 919,245 - - - ~ - - 819,245
" Gamnat South Z5.00% . 634,777 - - - - G348 TTT - “ “ . .. RN T - 834,777

Bloei-22 22.50% 15,534 - - « - 15,534 - . - 15,534 : - . 15,534 -
Sinjhoro 22.80% 214,881 333,785 - - {214,881) 333,786 - - . - - : - 333,786

Chanda 17.50% 452,881 - - B {452,881} - - - - - . - - -
Khewar 22 50% 92,441 . . - {58,308) 34,133 - . - L. e - 34,533
Decommissiomng sost 132,524 - - - - 112,524 - - - 7,284 |- . 7.294 105,230
Sub total developing fields 4,180,861 1,092,669 (22,015} {13,880}  (2,501,128) 2,736,507 . . - 186,873 {108,644) .. 17,228 2,659,178
Tetal 56,564,029 5,936,426 (565,142} {1,460,241} 313,910 £0,788,082 39,761,669 5,087,731 46,850,388 . 4,434,737 396,422 - 4,831,159 15,097,528

W Developing fields comprise of cost of walis and refated expenditure which are under development/ under driliing and, hence, no amortization thereon has been charged.
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NEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION ASSETS

232,

“Thilg inciudes reversal of decommissioning cost ameunting Re. 123 mikion direstly made against related field assets under provisians of IFRIC 1. Changes in existing decommissioning, restoration and simiar liabilities

DRATES -

198,707

2023 Amortization Inipairnert Carrying amount
: s at sdisons Ad - Adjustment of Transfers Asat Asat Charge As at “asat Charge s at As at
Particulars Working interest July 1, 2022 ° Cost 9 June 38, 26323 July 1, 2022 for the year June 39, 2923 Juiy 1, 2022 - forthe year  June 30, 2623 June 39, 2023
oo o e R UBEES (P b s s Rupess (060} Rupees ('006) e RUPOES (000}
Producing fields-Joint operations |

Badin 1) 25.00% 306.792 . - - ; - 306,792 308,792 - 306,792 N . - .

Block-22 {al: fiaids) 2250% 259,905 - - ' - 259,908 204,718 - 204,718 85,187 - 55,187 -
AhemedalFanwal 17 E0% Atz 2,235 S - - 781,707 637,512 1475 678,947 . - . 02,730
Mirwal 17 50% 3,831 . (19} . N 3812 1.982 8 1,367 - - . 1,945
Mazarani 1Z.50% 134,602 . - . - 126,602 415,273 - 115,273 71,328 - 21,328 i
Sawan 22 B0% 3,420,321 2,631 | - - - 3,422,952 2,623,018 28,382 1891370 || . B04,083 - 504,063 167,518
Zarmzama '25.00% 4,774,426 15,660 {2,134} {21,493 - 4,766,459 3,711,562 . 15,301 3,726,863 | - 1,016,730 - 1,015,730 22,866
Nubarak 28 00% 1,404,700 96,628 {52,190} - - 1,449,138 272,211 ) 5,167 Figfie) | 1,089,875 - 1,089,575 81,885
Fiy "22.50% 520,844 148,139 {102,131} - - 567,844 237,482 71,525 308,008 ; - - - 258,836

KMefran 25.00% 59,203 - - - - 69,703 1,933 B 1933 [f 67,270 - &7.270 -
Chands 17 50% 1,616,436 . . . . 1,616,436 1,166,480 108,518 1z75088 0 L - - 341,338
Gambat 25 00% 442,403 7,253 - - - 448,655 202,720 7,253 249,673 D 199,682 . 199,682 § i
Tal (ail fioldls) 15.00% 6,293,675 198,532 9,341 (42.262) 255,349 6,674,824 5,212,414 159,458 4,661,900 - - - 1,012,734
Kriprs (el fields) 25.00% 3,245,991 468,855 {5,245) - 148,857 3,868,468 2,413,344 348,360 762,704 . N - 1,096,764
Mirpurihas (sl figids) 25.00% 5,200,628 1,063,966 {110,158} - 143,304 7,297,743 5,136,448 450,235 5,786,683 B . - 1,511,660
Chachar 25 00% 254,861 - - (813) B 254,248 159,060 18 159,378 91,855 - 91,855 215
Nashipa 15.00% 5,079,483 - 3 - - 5,029,480 2,734,902 37,277 372,479 - . . 1,857,301
Sirharn 22.50% 530,390 78,051 - (2,137 163,010 1,069,313 472,602 137,848 510,550 . - - . - 458,763
Mahar 25.00% 4,372,405 15,945 (38,881) - - 4,345,458 1,745,720 510,448 2,266,178 671,318 187,366 853,482 1,234,798

Jhakrn 22.50% 10,107 - “ - . 30,167 10,078 - 10,079 26 . b3 -
Guddu 22 508 154,939 2% . (1,691) . 153,277 119,855 5,298 § 125,154 - - - 28,122
Bolan 17.50% 565,615 - (2,437 - - 663,378 573,411 29,530 ! 507,641 . - - 60,737
Gambat Seuth 25.00% 1,734,930 - - (53,887} 335,807 2,016,950 702,527 194,699 | 897,228 . . . 1119724
Bitrisim 22.50% 312,507 1,231 (3,20%) . . 310,934 120,232 22,796 143,028 - - - 167,506
Tando Allah Yar (all fields) 22 50% 258,518 41,506 - (708} 25,311 344,627 215,374 20,767 236,14% - - - 168,486
Shah Bandar - 2.50% 53,017 - - - - 59,047 57,030 1,986 59,016 f p . ]
Hhawar 22 50% 209,763 - (2,381} - - 207,382 6,770 33,784 46,554 - . - 160,528
Dhok Sultan 25.00% . . - - 1,764,954 1,764,954 - 1,008,380 1,008,350 : - - - 756,564
Decpmmissioning cost : 3,062,347 4,660,105 {138,053} 7,283 4,590,692 1,861,536 863,272 2,524,508 s e 12,443 244,364 1,821,520
Sub total producing fislds 48,787,712 3,322,756 {108,448) {261,845} 2243984 52,383,168 31,022,498 4738174 9,761,669 4,049,157 4,748,864 12,372,635




—
) Develeping fieidsJoint operations .
2023 Cost Amortization impairment Carrying amount
—_— . Adjustment of . .
= Asat . . U As at As at Charga As at As at Charge -As at As at
Particulars Working Interest  July 3, 2022 Anditions Acjusiments Damm;:s:fmmng Transiers June 30, 2023 Jufy 1, 2023 for the year Juree 30, 2023 July 1,2022 fortheyear  June 30, 2023 June 20, 2023
Rupess {000} o e U QS (000) o Rupies [000) Rupess {000}
Developing fiskiswoint operations -
Mehar : 835,033 : . - 825,033 : N . . 708,644 108,584 716,588
Tande Aliah Yar {all figlds) 2531 184,737 - - {25,31%9) 184,138 - - - - w - 184,138
Kandra 3,577 - - - - 3,877 . - - - . 35 - - 1577 -
N (2,807} [ - . - 280mf - oo ’ - - . o . - . {2,807}
Katra 57,842 6,629 . - .- - 54,771 . ~ . . 56,824 - T 50,824 43,547
e Tat 245,366 1,104 BeE] - {255,349) 1,104 L. - - D SR T 1,404
Wirpurkhas (ol fields} 138,781 23,600 - . {139,781) 23,500 To- - - - o Lo E - 23,600
Knipro fal: ficldst ‘156,287 5619 . . (148,867} 13,039 - - - : P I 43,038
Naghpa 574,581 842,987 - - - 1,515 568 S. - - o - - . - 1,515,568
Gambat South 970,684 B R - (335.907} 834,777 - . . . ) - . . ) 634,777
o Biock-22 22 80% 15,534 - - . P 15,534 | . . . . - © 15534 - 8534 N
Sinyhore 272.50% 183,610 214,581 . - {163,010} 214,681 - . N - - - - o 21488
Charnda 17.50% . 452,881 - - - 432,881 . - : - - h - T - L - 452,681
Khowari 22.80% 168,700 - {16,259) - - 22441 - - -~ - . - . 92,441
Decommissioning cost . 424,455 - - {11,871} - 112,524 - - - 7,294 - N 7,284 105,230
Sub total deveioping fields : 2,620,462 2,656,872 {16,277} (11,971)  {1,068,224) 4,180,861 - - - 77,229 . 108,644 4BS,873 . 3,994,988
o i
Total 48,808,174 5,478,628 {323,728) (272,815} 1,775,768 56,564,028 3,022 498 4,739,474 35,761,669 4,126,386 ...308,352 . .. 4,434,737 16,367,623
193 Reveloping felds comprise of cost urw'meils and related sxpendilure which are under developrnent! under drilling and, hence, no amaerlization thereon has been charged
s,
s
—
.
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2024 2023
.. Noie -—-————-Rupees {{000)uwmmusnue
 LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES ©
Unguoted Company o
Pakistan International Oil Limited (PIOL) - Forsign Operation -

_Cost of investment (6,000,000 (2023: 3,500,000) fully. - e L
paid ordinary shares of USD 10 each) ' S 1117 13,534,700 8,431,700
Post acquisition loss brought forward {875,719} (2,039,511)
Share of loss for the year - net of tax 11.2 {94,635) (297,110}
Effect of transiation of investment {295,958) 1,460,802

{390,593} 1,163,792

Post acquisition loss carry forward (1,266,312} (875,719}
Closing balance as at June 30 12,268,388 5,555,981
Pakistan Minerals (Private) Limited - PMPL
Cost of investment 11.3 41,637,955 36,569,203
PPost acqusition profits brought forward 13,634,057 -
Share of loss for the year / period - net of tax 11.4 (2,173,333) (386,040)
Share of other comprehensive income / (loss)
for the year / period - net of tax (1,003,132) 14,020,097
Total {loss} / profit for the year (3,176,465) 13,634,057
Post acquisition profit carry forward 10,457,592 13,634,057
Ciosing balance as at June 30 52,095,547 50,203,260

64,363,935 55,759 241

Pakistan international Oil Limited (PiOL) is 2 company engaged in the extraction of oil and natural gas and
is registered as a limited liability company in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi
Global Market. Each consortium company (investors) which includes the Holding Company, Mari
Petroleum Company limited (MPCL), Pakistan Petroleum Company Limited (PPL) and Oil & Gas
Development Company Limited {(OGDCL) each having a 25% equity stake in PIOL. The concession
agreement between PIOL and Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC) was signed on August 31, 2021
and the Offshore Block 5 was awarded to PIOL. During the year, the Holding Company has made equity
contribution amounting to USD 25 million; Rs. 7,103 million (2023: USD 10 million; Rs 2,226 million).

The share of loss for the year mainiy relates to exploration and evaluation expenses incurred by PIOL.

S
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11.4

11.5

"shares of Rs 41,638 mm;on (2023 Rs 36,569 m;lhon}

-35.

The Hoidmg Company has invested in the project company, i.e. Reko Dig Mining Company (Private) Limited
(RDMC) through Pakistan' Minerals {Private) Limited (PMPL) an entity incorporated in Pakistan. RDMC is
engaged in the mineral exploratnon activities in Pakistan, PMPL holds an indirect working interest of 25%
(8.33% of each SOE} in the RDMC- through offshore holding companies namely Reko Dig Holdings Limited
and Reko Dig Investments Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Holdcos™). RDMC is incorporated in Pakistan

- and Holdcos are incorporated in Bailiwick of Jersey. The Holding Company's equity interest in PMPL is
133.33% with an effective Interest of 8.33% in RDMC. The SOEs have representation on the Boards of

Hoidcos and RDMC through PEV‘!PL lei June 30, 2024; the Hoidmg Company has anvested Rs 0. 04 m;ihon

During the year and as at year end, based on directions from GoP, the SOEs are in the process of discussing
and evaluating the terms of a potential tfransaction with a sovereign foreign investor with respect to divestment
in the Reko Dig Project and advisors were appointed through PMPL to assist in this regard. The divestment
and its conditions will require significant approvals including from the Federal Cabinet of GoP, Board of
Directors and shareholders of the SOEs and other investors of the Reko Dig project. The managment expects
the recoverable amount to be higher than the carrying value of investment in PMPL.

The loss for the period mainly relates to PMPL's share of loss in its associated Company, Reko Dig Holdings
Limited (RDHL) while the other comprehensive income relates to gain on retranslation of PMPL's share of
investment in foreign operation i-e RDHL.

Summarised financial information for associates

The share of loss of PMPL and the below summarized financial information is based on the audited financial
statements of the associate for the year ended June 30, 2024 whereas share of loss of PIOL and the below

summarized financial information is based on the audited financial statements of the associate for the period
endad December 31, 2023, adjusted for transactions and events up to June 30, 2024 based on management

accounts, in USD, converted into PKR at closing exchange rate.

PMPL PIOL
2024 2023 2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~~ Rupees {000} Rupees ("000)----rmeamr
Summarised statement of financial
posiiion
Current assets 266,181 120,521 35,639,271 14,080,066
Non-current assets 168,806,655 167,171,543 20,723,948 8,845,552
Current liabilities {198,430} (8,590  {7,289,668) {701,696)
Non Current liabilities {12,886,616) (16,710,030) - -
Net assets ' 155,987,790 150,573,444 49,073,581 22,223,922

URIRL-
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Reconc'hatlon to carrymg amcunts:;
Opemng net assets

" lssued share capstai

Advance’ agamst issue of shares

Loss for the year _ :
Other cormprehensive income f (loss)
Retranslation of investment - e

Group's percentage shareho!ding in the
Group's share in carrying value of nef assets
Others - exchange rate difference on

equity contributions

Summarised statement of

comprehensive income

Total comprehensive {loss} / profit for the year
Share of comprehensive (loss) / profit
INVESTMENT IN JGINT VENTURE

TAP! Pipeline Company Limited (TPCL)

Cost of investment

Post acquisition gains / (losses) brought forward

Share of loss for the pericd - net of taxation
Foreign exchange transtation gain
Post acquisition gain carry forward

Balance at the end of the year

-36-

12.1

PMPL PIOL
2024 2023 2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~ ~-Rupees ('000) Rupees {'000)-----—-
150,573,444 . 22,223,922  8.663,954
e 120 28,412,000 8,904,800
14,943,742 109 671,153 -

16,520,000)  (1,158,120) (378,537) (1,188,439)
(3,009,396) 42,060,291 . -
155,987,790 150,573,444 49,073,551 22,223,922

33.33% 33.33% 25% 25%
51,995,930 50,191,148 12,268,388 5,555,981
99,617 12,112 . -
52,095,547 50,203,260 12,268,388 5,555,981

(9,529,396) 40,902,171 (378,537) (1,188,439)

(3,176,465) 13,634,057 (94,634) (297,110)

2024 2023
Note e RUPEES (*D00) e remmes

1,670,024 1,692,986
1,077,561 1.077,551
515,435 131,802
(41,643) (35,433)
18,671 418,965
492,463 515,435
1,570,024 1,592,986

TPCL, the joint venture is registered in the Isle of Man, with registered address as Forte Anne, Douglas, Isle
of Man, IM1, 5PD, as a limited liability company and its head office is situated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
TPCL is principally engaged to carry out the business of developing, engineering, funding the construction of,
procuring the eguipment engineering and other services for construction and operation of, constructing
owning, operating and providing maintenance for the proportion of TAPI pipeline running from the borders of
Turkmenistan and Afghanistan to the border of Pakistan and India. The capacity of the TAPI pipeline is
expected to bg 35 billion cubic meters per annum. The Group through ISGSL holds 5% equity interest in
TPCL, however it has joint control due to its rights in decision making of TPCL. Under the terms of
Shareholders Agreement, decisions about significant relevant activities shall be approved unanimously by all

the founding shareholders.

The invetment in joint venture has been made in accordance with the requirements of the Cempanies Act,
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The following table summarizes the financial information of the TPCL as inciuded in the latest available unaudited
management accounts for the 12-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023. The table also reconciles the
summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in TPCL,

Summarized statemén_t of financial position -

Un-audited
2023

Un-audited
2024

Cash and cash eqazé_\raiéhté . 3,475,609 5,114 694
Other current assets 135,965 209,997
Ncn-curr_eﬁi assels 27,942,400 26,532,881
O aRE TG e e L L Csastey (17.085)
Non-current liabilities - 12,372
Net assels 31,400,464 31,850,809
Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
Opening net assets 31,859,909 24,144,483
Total comprehensive loss for the period {832,853} (654,831}
Foreign exchange translation gain 373,408 8,370,257
Closing net assets 31,400,465 31,859,909
Group’s percentage shareholding in the joint venture 5% 5%
Group's share in carrying vaiue of net assets 1,570,024 1,592,996
Summ_arézéd statement of comprehensive income
Loss for the year {1,318,555) {654,831}
Depreciation for the year {8,125) (33,189
RECEIVABLE FROM GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN (GoP)
2024 2023
Note Current Non - Total Current Non - Current Total
Current
. memmmm R upees {'000) Rupees ('000)--m-mmmmmroee

Receivable from GoP 131
Principal amount 6,489,913 58,409,218 64,899,131 - 64,889,131 64,899,131
Accrued interest 5,999,958 - $,999,956 5,548,325 - 5,648,325

13,489,869 58409,218 71,899,087 5,548,325 64,899,131 70,447 4586

This represents receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) against the loan from the Natiorial Bank of Pakistan (NBP)
avalled by GoP through the Hoiding Company, for a tenor of seven years at markup rate of KIBOR + 0.20%, in ordar to fuifil
the commitment of GoP lowards the Government of Balochistan {GuB) for acquisition of equity stake in the Reko Dig Project.
The principal amount is inclusive of all related expenses i.e. transaction cost, 0wl of pocket expense incurred by the Holding
Company. Accordingly, the receivable from Gof* as well as related finance income has been apportioned inte current and non-

current assets.
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Movement in principal amount é_nd interest accrued is as follows - -

Principal Aniouﬁ‘t: o

Balance at beginning of the year

Additions during the year = . _
Principal amount réceived during the year
Balance at end of the year -

. Accrued Interest: . .. . o

Balance at beginning of the vear

2024 2023
PR - 7T, P- 3 T YOO

54,899,131 51,885,156
- 3,003,675

64,899,131 64,899,131

5,548,325 2,071,809
interest accrued during the year 14,580,316 8,714,875
interest on loan from NBP directly repaid by GoP {13,128,685) (6,238,359)
Balance at end of the year £.999,9586 5,548 325
LONG TERM LOAN - UNSECURED
2024 2023
Note Current Non - Total Current Non - Gurrent Total
Current
------------------- Rupees {'000) Rupees ('000)----—----rmmmeman
Loan to staff 14 .1 41,730 103,167 144,897 25,904 72,683 98,587
' 41,730 103,167 144,897 25,904 72,683 58,587
2024 2023

Balance at beginning of the year
Loan disbursed during the year
Repayment received during the year
Balance at end of the year

07

rmmmmerm e AU PEES {000} e mmmmmnme

98,587 31,083
90,660 87,179
(44,350) (19,675
144,897 98.567
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2024 . 2023
Nofe  remmmmemmnenn Rupees {{000)—memmmmeonen
.STORES SPARES AND LQOSE TOOLS - SHARE N
_JOiNT OPERATiONS‘ iNVENTQRY
Store, spares and loose tools Lo 6,430,932 5,295,066
Impairment for slow moving and obsoleﬁe stoms spares R B
and loose tools o : S 15.1 {495,707) (495,707)
c IR 5,935,225 4,800,359
Movement of prowsaon for anw movmg, obsolete
and in transit stores
Balance at beginning of the year A85707 495,707
Impairment charge for the year - -
Balance at end of the year 495,707 495,707

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not yet distinguishable.

2024 2023
: Note  —-—mrecwrmerens Rupees {"000)--onranmrmacenn
STOCK-IN-TRADE
LNG held with third party 16.1 2,614,235 8,382,078
RLNG held in pipeline 16.2 - 101,347
2,614,235 8,483,425

This reprasents LNG inventory heid with PGP Consortium Limited {PGPCL) at the Floating Storage and Regasification
Unit (FSRU). The inventory includes stock on account of borrowing and lending mechanism with SNGPL, in relation to
LNG cargoes received by the Group at FSRU. As per the mechanism, the LNG inventory in MMBTU terms is
recouped by the Group from subseguent month cargo received by SNGPL.

This represents RLNG held in pipeline between Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU) and Custody
Transfer System (CTS).

2024 2023
Note  —e-eeeee—-Rupees {'000)--rmmersnauns
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Accrusd interest receivable on bank deposits 17.1 1,084,372 296,255

This represents interest accrued on local currency bank deposits carrying mark-up at the rate ranging between 10% to
20.9% per annum (2023: 18.5% - 20% per annum) and foreign currency deposits carrying mark-up at the rate of 2.2%
per annum {2023: nil).

2024 2023
TRADE DEBTS P - Rupees ("000)---vuusssmmsmum
Unsecured - considered good 321,928,960 292,997,128
Unsecured - cansidered doubtful 197,927 196,700
322,126,887 293,193,828

Prowsmﬂfor doubtful debts 18.3 {197,927} {196,700}

321,828,960 292 997 128
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Trade debts include overdue amount of Rs. 293,763 miliion {2023: Rs. 263,190 million} on account of inter-corporate
circular debt, receivable from oil refineries, gas and power companies out of which Rs. 143,623 million (2023; Rs.
116,505 million) and Rs. 150,139 million (2023: Rs. 146,684 million) is mainly overdue from related parties, . Sui

Southern Gas Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited respectively. The management of the Group
considers. this amount. to. be. fully recoverabie because Government of Pakistan (GoP) has been assuming the

responsmlhty to settle the-inter- corporate circular debt in the energy sector. The Government of Pakistan (GoP) is
committed, hence continuously pursuing for satisfactory settlement of inter-corporate circular debt i issue, however, the
progress is stower than expected resulting in accumulation of the Group's trade debts. The Group recognises interest /

" surcharge, if any, on cielayed payments from customers only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
" reversal in the amount of income fecogn;sed will not occur when' the uncertainty associated with the interest /

surcharge is subsequently resolved, which is when the interest / surcharge on delayed payments is received by the

~ Group: As disclosed in note 3.3 to these consolidated financial statements, Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan (SECP) has deferred the app%scabsﬂfy of ECL model till December 31, 2024 on financial assets due directly /
ultimately from GoP in consequence of the circular debt.

Total amount due from related parties as on June 30, 2024 is Rs. 315,929 milion (2023; Rs. 284,147 million) and
maximum amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 356,220 million {2023 Rs. 284,147 million).
For party wise details refer note 44.2 2.

2024 2023

Note  ——amememnens Rupees {'000)-wmavecumnuaun
Movement in provision for doubiful debts
Balance at beginning of the year 196,700 539,704
Provision during the year 1,227 -
Reversal of provision - {343,004}
Balance at end of the year 197,927 196,700
RECOVERABLE FROM TAX AUTHORITIES
General sales tax recoverable 19.1 9,164,542 9,587 829

This mainly pertains to import of LNG cargos and management is confident that it is adjustable against future sales of
the Group. General sales tax recoverable has been recognised taking into account the availability of future sales as
per business plan of the Group. The existence of future sales is based on business plan which involves making
judgements regarding key assumptions underlying the estimation of the future sales of the Group. These assumptions,
if not met have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of general sales tax
recoverable, The management believes that it is probable that the Group will be able to achieve the sales projected in
the business plan.

. 2024 2023

ADVANCES, RECEIVABLES AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS Note  «r———a-eeene-RUPEES {000} -mrmrmrermrrmn

Secured

Advances against salary to staff 20.1 19,568 67,772

Unsecured and considered good

Advances to suppliers 8,173 4,138

Advance against arbitration - 78,0286

Other receivable 202 2,334,964 947 917

Security deposits 800 1,031
2,344,737 1,031,110

Short term prepayments

Software maintenance fee 12,387 11,308

insyrance 4,601 8,782

Other prepayments 141,682 6,903

158,670 26,993

2,522,975 1,125 875

The advances are granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the Group’s service rules. These advances
are fci\ré;érzesm period against salaries and camry no interest.
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This includes depasit gﬁla_c'ed with Mithank, the'Compa'ny's Iawyérs‘, amounting to Rs 2,325 million as at year end.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment held at amortised cost |
‘Local currency term deposits. with. banks .

Foreign surrency lerm deposits with banks
Market Treasury Bills (T-Biils)

. 2024 2023
CUNOte  remeewmmenenesRUPEES {1000)-comnneinrinnen
- 71,637,894 - - 31,427 558
4,733,426 -
3,593,519 -
211 79,964,839 1,427 558

The break up of Invastment in term deposit recaipts placed with the commercial banks is as under:

Credit rating Rafing agency

Local currency term deposits maturing within three months

AT+ o VIS
A1+ ' - PACRA
A-1+ PACRA
A+ PACRA
At VIS

Interest accruad

Rate

20.65%
20.65%
20.65%
19.64%
18.82%

Lacal currency term deposits maturing after three months

AT VIS / PACRA

Interest accrued

A-1+ FACRA
interest accrued

Foreign currency term deposits maturing affer three months
7.1% - 7.85%

A-1+ PACRA
interest accrued

Market Treasury Bills (T-Bilis)
interest acerued

Total investmentis

7% -

19.30%

- Foreign currency term deposits maturing within three months
7.5%

21.2
8,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
6,483,766
116,600
388,242

8,000,000
8,000,000
12,000,000

69,982,708

1,628,349
26,337

1,655,186

3,214,828
19,320

3,234,147

1,461,178
35,101

1,499,275

21.4 3,457,344
136,175

3,593,519

79,964,839

31,427 558

This include Rs 10,000 million (2023: Rs 5,000 miliion) which is subject to restriction as the amount is reserved
against funded mining Qmjeci reserve which is further expiained in note 24.5.

Thig includes local currency TORs as a guarantee on account of Sindh Infrastructure Cess, as per the directions of the
Singh High Court amounting to Rs 5,126 million. After conclusion of Court proceedings and the related judgement by

the Cowt, the amount will be released accordingly.

This represents investment in market treasury bills {T-Bill s) with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
LCDC) cc,{rymg an average interest rate 20.59% per annum with maturities ranging from 39 tlays fo 179 days.
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2024 2023
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Mote reememeeeeneRUDEES {0G0) e eememoe
Local currency. L
- .C_ash in hand S 322 451
Cash at banks - curreni gccoirnts L 284 113
Cash at banks - savings accounts o221 48,507,524 20,932,786
: . g ' ' 49,508,127 20,933,350
Foreign currency
_ Cash inhand .~ - o e 6.000 1413
Cash at banks - savings accounts’ 3130 2,847 154
- ' o 8130 2648567
49517257 03,581,017
These carry mark-up at the rale ranging between 10% and 20.8% per annum (2023; 6.83% and 20.00% par annum).
o 2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents Note s Hupees (000 mrmeenns
brrestment in term deposit receipts - maturing in thres months 21 70,277,473 S A27 558
Cash and bark baiances 22 49,547,257 23.581.917
Acorued intorest on savings accounts 17 1,094,372 208 255
120,888,802 55,305,720
Less:
TERs reservad against mining project reserve 21.2 (10,000,000} (5,000,000
TDRs marked with fien for bank guarantee 213 (3,500,742 (3,159 542
{13,500,742) (8,189,542)
. _ 107,388,060 47,136 185
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
i igiMRET Of Shares meeeveeeeees Rupees {000} i
' L 4800000000 4500,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 aach L AR00e000 0 45 005,000
- lesued, subscribed and paid up capital E
2024 2023 w024 2023
------------- —Humber of Shares - meeeemm Bt {11311t 1) 1} N —
Ordinzry shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in .
e 2322, 121,232 2,322,121.233 cash 23,221,212 23.221.212
2,322.171,233 2,364,315,961 Weighted average shares '
The movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital is as follows:
2024 2023 2024 2023
-emmeeees Murniber of shares - Rugees {(800}-emerenm.
Ayt o 2,322,121,233  2,132,755,107 23,224,242 21,327 5561
Orainary sharas of Rs 10 each paid in
cazh issued during the year - 189,365 125 - 1,853,651
At June 3 2322121233 2322121233 23,229212 _ 23031212

Government of Pakistan {GoP) holds 199% shares. Of these shares, iwo nominee directors hoid one quaiification shara,
each. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Group’s residual assets. GoP as holder of these shares Is ontitigd
to dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at general meetings of the Group,

During the year, the PaKistan Sovereign Wealth Fund Act, 2023 became effective. Under the said Act, the GoP's
shareholding in the Group stands transferred to the Pakistan Sovereign Wealth Fund (PSWF}. Accordingty, the GoP s in
the process of taking necessary actions required to record the fransfer of the shares to PSWF.

-~
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Advance againstissie of shares

. Balance at beginning of the year. 525,069 2,329,885
Advance received agamsr issue of shares S 1,124,260 88,825
Issue of shares _ ) ' o - {1,893,651)

. Balance at end of the year : o D 1,649,329 525,069

~Ecariornic C,oofdmanon Ccmmr{tﬁ {EC’C) of ihe Fedx«m Camnnt in nts dacision on Case Mo ECC-145/25/2015
dated December 15 2018, in respect of the ngnqu of Expcncf fure of inier State Gas Systems Private
Limited”, approved that the Hoiding Company is to fund all project activities of ISGSL as a 100% subsidiary

company and all Government investments fe.g. from GIDCj in projects being undertaken by ISGSL shak be
routed Eh;ough the Holding Company. Pursuant to the foregoing, the Finance Division vide its Office
Memorandurn No. F. 4(2) CF-V/2007 dated Qctober 24, 2017 instructed ISGSL to issue shares to the Hol ding
Company and going forward the Holding Company is required to issue the shares in the name of the President
of Pakistan through Secretary M/o Energy (Petroleum Division) in relation to the Government's investment in
ISGSL's projects. Accordingly, the increase in share capital of the Holding Company represents Government's
investment in ISGSL being routed through the Holding Company.

2024 2023
Note  —omeeeeeen e RUPEES (000 emmmmmmmm e

RESERVES
Other reserves ‘ N
Feraeign currency transiation reserve 24.2 1,957,261 2,163,355
Forgign currency tmnaiatton reserve - 243
associated company 13,016,865 14,020,067

14,974,226 16,183,456
Capital reserves
Assets acquisition reserve 24.4 5,000,000 5,000.900
Mining project reserve 24.5 20,000,000 20,000,000

25,000,000 25,000,000

_ 39,974,226 41,183,456

The Gfoup has appropriated and created these reserves in accordance with the principles of prudence.

This represents the translation reserve net of related tax of the retransiation of the investment in the asancizied
comparny and joint venture.

This represents accumuiated balance of franslation effect of a foreign operation in Rupees of asscciated
company.

In view of the Group's business expansion, it is intended to acguire sizable production reserves for which a
separate asset acquisition reserve has been established. The Group plans to continue to build up this reserve in
iuture years. Accordingly, this reserve is not available for distribution to sharehoiders.

This reserve is cr@ated in view of the future funding requirements for the Reko-Dig project. This reserve is 1o be
funded for which the Group plans to accumulate the required funds over a period of four years starting from year
ended June 30, 2023. This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders. The fundfs earmar:md

aga ;15’( tfus reserve are outlined in note 21.2.
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2024 2023
: : : S Mote  corm—mmememne Rupees {000} memmamn e
LONG TERN LIABILITIES
‘Due to the joint operators o : S 25.1 6,133,871 6,175,325
Current portion shown under current liabilities e {1,903,482) {1,667,523)
- A R o Lo 4,230,389 4,507,802

This represenis tong term liakilities on account of the Group's carried interest of 5% in the exploration expenditure of
various joint operations. This expenditure is incurred by the joint operation partners up o the date of commercial
discovery, and the amount will be adjusted i five equal anrual instaliments, against the Group's share of commercial
production in each respective joint operation. The movement in amount due to joint operators is as follows:

2024 2023

Note e £ 411 $1To T (L EL iy R
Balance at beginning of the year 5,175,325 5,036,503
Unnwinding of long term liabiiity 37 261,288 137,133
Payments net off exchange loss {330,494) (396,714)
Additions / adjustments during the year 277,933 207,779
Discounting of long term liability 37 358,826 {519,532)
Unrealised exchange Loss / {gain) on revaluation {610,004) 1,710,156

252 6,133,871 8,175,325

- Lang term fiabifities in US Dollars have been discounted at a rate of 5.39% (2023: 5.85%) per annum.

SV -T2

2024 2023
Mote  eme-cmmmn Rupees {'000}--r-rreomeeme
DEFERRED TAX ASSET : '
. Referred tax asset 261 37,284,165 23912934
-« Movement in the deferred tax asset / (liability): '
" Balance at beginning of the year 23,912,934 9,530,548
. Creditad to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 43 13,281,851 14,829,437
Credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 89,376 (447 .GE1)
' 37,284,165 23912034
Deferred tax comprises of following:
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:
Acceierated depreciation on property, plant and equipment {7,287,063)! | (7,328,324)
Development and production expenditure (6,168,913)] { (5,275,558)
Unwinding of long term Habilities (carried interest) 2,324,652 1 | {638,643}
Provision for decommissioning cost {215,237} I (525,794)
EZfects of franslation of investment in a foreign joint veniure - (125,674)
Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate (408,7486)] (485,738)

(11,838,307}

(14,397 728)
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2024 2023
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Rupees ("000)—---rrmmem-
Deduct bie iempora{y chi ffumce aﬂssng in sespeci of
§mpa;rmem of siore%, spar 25 and iome tc{)ls : : L 247,854 247 854
Unrealised exchange gain / (los.s) TR o T 2,165,787 1,056,638
Work in progress : - I B 145,718 198,235
Expioration and prospecting expendltur@ R _ 2,458,781 2,070 487
Provision for wmdfdll levy on oil / condensate o B 14,786,230 | 8,642 719
Operating lease on Floating Sfomge and Regasification Umt {l— SRU} 31,435,143 _ _24,28_8.?53
" Remedstrement of emplovees’ retirement benefits A 55,692 1 57,005
Met impairment loss on financial assels ' 98,954 08,350
Share of Jose from associate and joint venture 726,323 740,572
48,120,472 38,310,663
37,284,165 23,512 534
28.3 Deferred tax has been caloulated at the current effective tax rate of 50% (2023: 50%) for the Holding Company and
39% (20231 29%) for subsidiary companies.
2024 2023
Note  ———rerreas Rupees {'000)-wrmmneens
27 = PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST
" Provision for decommissioning cost - 271 12,047,359 14,408,445
273 ' Provision for decomimissioning cost
Ralance at beginning of the year 14,408 445 8,240,617
Provisich made during the year 27.2 887,107 2,497 857
Revision due {o change in estimates 273 (4,064,344} (714,814)
- . Revaluation exchange (gain) / loss (421,284} 3,461,250
: +Unwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning cost 37 1,237,412 923,436
12,047,358 14 408 445
27.2 . Provision f (reversal) made during the year is distributed as under
Share in joint operations’ fixed assets 82 73,671 752,594
Share in joint operations’ capital work in prograss 83 - 84 988
Davelopment and production assets 16 B13,436 1,650,105
o 887,107 2,497,657
27.3 Beavision due to change in estimates during the year
Share in joint operations' fixed assets . 6.2 {1,298,031) {47,592)
Share in joint operafions’ fixed assets - capital work in progress 6.3 (11.329) (1,649
Development and production assets 10 (1,460,241} (273.815}
Operating expenses 36 (1,296,743} (391,758}
(4,064,344) {714 814}
27.4 Significant financial assumptions used were as follows;
Discount rate per annum 6.8% ~ 3.97% 7.5% ~ 11.4%
inflation rate per annum 2.07% 581%
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2024 2023
. Mote eeesecooiowaed Rupees {'800)-mmmmrrmrrmn

28  DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFTS

ﬁxctumuiatihg' compensated a'béénées_ T 981 151,939 118,013
28,1 Accumulating cqmpensai_ed_abss-nces

Present value of dafined berefit obligation at beginning of the year S 118,013 124,880

Charge for the year - net : 76,726 80,369

Payments made during the year .~~~ L _— - L {42,800) (67.036)

Present value of definad benefit obligation atend of theyear -~ ' o 184,839 118,013

Principle actuarial assumptions:

Vatuation discount rafe (%) 14.00% - 16.258%  15.75% - 16.25%

Salary increase rate (%) ’ 13.00% to 14.75% 14.75% 10 16.256%

Description of risks to the Group
- The compeonsated absences plans expose the Group to the following risks:

- Discourt rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate / government bonds any
decraase in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

- Salary increase [ inflation risk ~ The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase, where
benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an impact on labiity.

- M_ofta_lity risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expecied i.e ihe actual iife expectancy is
fonger than assumed.

. Withdrawal risk - The risk of actuai withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calculation.

29 LOAN FROM NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (NBP) - SECURED

2024 2023
Note Current Non - Total Current ,Noﬁ' Total
- Current Curtent
------------------- Rupees ("000)--rrvarvmmrsnas s RUDEES {000} e
E.ong term foan ' 291 )
Principat amount 6,489,913 58,409,218 64,899,131 - 84,8%9,131 64,859,131
Accruad Interest 6,99% 956 - 6,999,955 5,648,325 - 5,548,325
_ 13,489,869 58,409,218 71,899,087 5548325 64,800,131 70,447,456

28.1  This represents the long term finance facility obtained by the Holding Company, form National Bank.of Paldstan {NEP).in order .
to settie the short term finance facility obtained by the Holding Company on behalf of the GoP in order to fulfill the commitment
of the Government of Pakistan {(GoP) towards the Government of Balochistan {Gof) in relation to Reko Dig project. The ioan
sarries interest calculated at 8-month Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) + 0.20% effective from the date of disbursement
The losn was availed for @ tenor of seven year (inclusive of & two-year grace period) with effect from December 31, 2022 and is
repayable in equat semi annual instailments of principai amount starting from June 30, 2025, The loan is secured against a
GoP? guaraniee and letter of comfort.

2024 2023

Balanca &t beginning of the year 70,447 458 -
Drow down during the year Co- 64,859,131
Intarast accriuad duing the year 14,580,316 5,546 325
Repayments during the year £13,128,685) -
Balance at end of the year 71,899,687 70,447 A58
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2024 2023

TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES ALY S S —. Rupees {B800)-m--mrmmemee
Trade Creditors
Dz to ioint operalors S R ] 7,083,427 3,605,427
Duﬁ w vendors for servicss acquired . L S : 48,202 14,097

radepayebles . S : C 301 11,613,462 || 10,808,080 |
- AR : ' ' : 8,712,791 14,727 524
Other Payai}ies : ) L : oo : -

- Agorued liabilities - e o 302 2,300,673 1| 468,577 |
Prowszon for eg&? r*:epmeo R PR I TR ' ' - 131,900
Portcharges tecoverad - -0 o 0 T I 303 - 4539305
Excise duty and cess payable at import stage =~ - _ Co 304 5,128,577 3,065,431
CGratuity fund T SO RRRRREPR e .......%05 - 114,762 o A48 .58
Payabie 1o provident fund o o 505 4,200
Sales tax payahie 685,545 322,487
Withholding tax payabie 13,712 210,478
Othei payables 2,208 10,417
Other levies (receivable) / payable 12,524 13,713
Royaly payahie 1,080,348 888,657
Provigion for windfaii levy on oil f condensate 33.1.14 23,572,480 17,285,437

32,913,124 27 586,558
51,623 815 42,314,083

This includes Rs. 2,318 million {2023. Rs. 2,318 million) payabie to PGP Consortium Lirnited {PGPCL) on account of regasitication

- charges and payable to {espectsve LNG supphiers aggregatmg to Rs. 9,294 million (2023: Rs. 8,480 million).

This includes provision recogized in relation to the enforcement petition filed by PGPCL against the LOIA Award dated April 26, 2023,
whergin PGPCL has sough relief against the USD 7.2 million , it was reguired to pay, along with default interest at 3 months
KiBOR+1% starting from March 13, 2018 to the Group on account of liguidated damages (LDs), till full and fiial amount is pasd..
PGPEL have sought relief to pay LDs amount along with default interest at an exchange rate pravailing as on March 13, 2018 Tre
Group has disguled the relizf as the judgement currency is in USD and the LDs amount pavable by PGPCL hat to be in USD or
equivalent PKR prevailing as of the payment date. The matter is pending with Islamabad High Court.

PGPCL fhwough #s letter dated June 28, 2023 agreed to pay L.Ds amount in gqual instaliment of USD 850,600 over 16 months ¢t the
ameunt is fully recovered. The estimated amount of LDs along with Interest is USD 12.43 mitlion. The Group has recoversd USD
11.2 million from PGPCL till year end. However, the Group, as a matter of prudence, has recognized the disputed amount withheld,
amodmting to Rs 1,799 million as payabie to PGPCL Hl the final resclution of the matter pending before the court. -

This represents amount received / withheld by the Group against demand lefter to its LNG supplisrs namely ENEL Guover
international {Gl) and Gunvor Singapore {GS) to claim the amount due to the Group in relation to amount overbilled to the Group in
fieu of port charges. The arbitration proceedings with LCIA against the suppliers has been concluded during the year and the ralated
amount received / withheld has been adjusted accordingly which is further explame'i in note 40 o the consolidatad f,nawc;al
siatemenis.

This represents unpaid amount due under the Sindh Developrnent and Maintenance of Infrasiructure Cess Act, 2017 (Sindh Cess
Act); deposited pursuant o instructions of the Honorable Sindh High Court {SHC) under a petition filed by the Group challenging the
constitutionality of the powsr exercised by the provincial legistature to levy the Cess. Tha Group has also provided linancial
guarantees, sbtained frorn commercial banks, in the name of Excise and Taxation Departrment, Goveinment of Sindh, as disclosad
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,

. 2024 2023
Gratityfund - e Rupees {'B00)resunsmsrsnnan
The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
pusition is as follows:
Preseni value of defined benefit obligation 582,171 501,092
Fair value of plan assets {567 409} (355,135)
Net liability at end of the year 114,762 145,864
The movament in the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning cf the year 501,099 393,509
Current service cost _ 101,626 81,718
interest cost . ' 71,322 50,127
anefits naid {35,987 (48 045}
Remeasurement of defined bansfif abligation 44,091 25691
Prasent value of definer! benefit obligation at end of the vear . o Bg247t 501,099
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2024 2023

---------------- Rupeses {000)---rmmmmmeeme
The movement in the fair vaive of pian assets is as follows: _
Fair value of g}lah assels at begimaing of the year ; i 355,125 249,159
Coniributions = . ' . ' - _ 160,857 88,32
Expected retwm on planassets .. . - IR S 65,438 38,387
Fayment by employer on bshalf of plaﬁ 8 o _ _ - 12.754
Banefits paid _ : 3 - L {35,967) {15,944)
Remeasurement of pian assels - S . _ 1,946 {15,548}
Fair valU{:‘ of rlan assett—* at enci of the year - . ' ’ : . 867,409 355 ?35{“_

- The. movenﬂent in asqet! {iiab;hty) ;ewqmsed in thae censo&tdaﬁed statemeni
- of financial position is as follows: . . R L e
Liability at beginning of the year 145,964 144.451
Expense for the year _ 107,510 93,458
Remaasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income during the year 42,145 39,240
Payments to the fund during the year . {180,857} {131.1858)
Liabiiity at end of the year _ 114,762 145,964
Detail of plan assets
C:—:s_h at bank 90,564 283,832
Term cigposits 476,849 86 303
567,408 355,155

Funds covered were invested within limits specified by reguiations governing investment of approved ratiremant funds in Pakisian.
The gratuity plan is a defined benefit final salary plan invested through approved trust fund. The fund is governed under Trusts Act,

- 1882 Trust Deed and Rules of Fund. Companies Act, 2017, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002, The

trustees of the fund are responsible to plan administration and investment. The Group appoints the tustess, Al trustess are
employees of tha Group.

2024 2023
---------------- Rupees {'000)-mmnermnraonnn
Amounts recognised in consclidated statement of profit and loss:
Current service cost 101,626 31,718
- Net interest cost 5,884 11,740
o 107,510 92458
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income: '
" Remeasurement loss recognized on defined benefit chligation 44,091 23681
~emeasurament loss recognisad on plan assets {1,946} ) 15,549
42,145 39,240
The remeasurement loss arising from:
Experience adiustments 42,145 38,240
Financial assumplions - i
42,148 39,240
Principle actuarial assumptions: e POrierniiagh e meemerass
Vaiuation discount rate (%) 14.00% to 16.25% 15.75% io 16 25%
Salary increase rate (%) 13.00% 10 14.75% 14.75% t0 16.25%
Mortality rates Adjusted SLIC 2001-2005

These results and balances related to employees’ benefits are based on actuarial calculations carried out for the year ended June
34, 2024 for the Holding Company and subsidiaries respectively. The management believes that any change in meorket assumptiong
as of today would not have any materiz! inpact on the consclidated financial statements.

0845
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Descr;ptton of resks to ’ihe Gmup :
The gratuzzy plans expose tha Group to the foﬁtowmg ﬂsks

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in descount rate since doscount rate is based on corporate / government
bonds, any. decrease in bond yleEds will increase plan isabitttles - S

Salary increase / mfiatson risk - The risk that the actua salary increase are hxgher than the expected salary increase,
where benef is are hnked w1th fmai sa!ary at the time of cessatlon of service, is hkeiy to have an impact on lability.

Mor&ahty risk - The risk that the actuai morta tty expenence is hgh'ter than that of expected ie the actual life
expectancy is Eonger than assumed. '

Withdrawal rtsx - _The ris_k of a_ctual ‘withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calcutation.

Investment risk - The risk of cccurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

2024 2023
SR _ Note mmmmmmmnmumneenmn e RUDGES [G00)-mommmmimimianes
PAYABLE TO GOVERNMENT UNDER ITFC AGREEMENT '
Balance at the beginning of the year 113,898,102 120,565,163
Utilisation during the year 311 17,887,410 5,743,542
Amount repaid during the year (11,117,233} (12,410,603)
Balance at the end of the year 120,668,279 113,898,102

o Duriﬁg the financial year ended June 30, 2018, the Government of Pakistan (GoP) and International Islamic Trade

Finance Corporation (ITFC) entered into a deferred financing facility dated April 22, 2019, with the Subsidiary
Company, PLL, designated as an executing agency by the GoP. As per the agreement, payments to LNG suppliers
are processed by ITFC, with PLL processing the payment {o the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in the designated
pank account in USD equivalent PKR. Accordingly, during the year PLL executed 3 transactions (2023 2
tfransactions) with LNG suppliers under the agreement, amounting to Rs. 17,887 million (2023: Rs. 5,744 million).

2024 2023

: Note wemssesmise - RUPEES {MF00 ) rmrmmscrmm e
PROVISION FOR TAXATION
income tax payable / (refundable) at beginning of the year 4,586,480 (51,888)
income tax paid during the year (34,148,864} {34,671,804)
Provision for taxation for the year 43 50,830,206 39,310,172
Provision for taxation - prior year : 43 {5,847.651) -
Income tax payable at end of the year 156,420,171 4,586,480

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) through its decision dated November 29, 2023 and writters order
issued on January 08, 2024, dismissed civil petition fited by the tax authorities and the matter of depletion allowance
stands settled in favour of the Holding Company. Pursuant to the decision having attained finality, for the purpose of
calculation of depletion allowance in accordance with Rule 3 of Part 1 of the Fifth Scheduie o the income Tax
Ordinance 2001, the royalty amount is not to be deducted when establishing the wellhead value. Accordingly, the
Holding Company has reversed the tax expense amounting to Rs 5,153 million booked in prior years in respect of
depletion allowance from tax years 2004 10 2021.
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2024 2023
) . Mote crmmmrenn e RUDERE (00D} m e em
CONTNGENC&ES AND COMMITMENTS o '
Contmgancaes
Govemmnﬂf Hoidmg*~ {Prwate) Limtted {The Hotdtng Company}
eiat'rqfo carried castfianiiz¥=es S _-33,31.'1 o 2,323,297 2,507,151
‘f’a’%coni;ngbncxet“ e L Lo 3312 18,177,837 18,177,837
' ' ' ' 20,501,134 20,684,987

This repreéents {:on'ting@ncies in respect of 5% carried cost of the discovered fields where Declaration of Commercialives
(20Cs) have not yel been submitted at the year end and for those development and production leases where the Holding
Company's estimates varies with those of the operator.

The Federal Board of Revenue {FBR) issued a show cause notice to the Holding Company in respect of non-applicatality of
zero percent sales tax on crude / condensate supplies from 2000-10 to 2013-14 as per SRO Mo, 549(1y/2008, which
includes the condition of "import and supplies thereof” The Holding Company disputed the notice on the grounds that it
does not import crude / condensate and has filed writ petition with [slamabad High Court. Single bench of high courl allowsc
pehiton on ground of jurisdiction. FBR challenged the order in appeal which was aflowed and remanded back to sing!e
bench of High Court for decision on merits. Petilion is pending. The estimated tax contingency has been calculated based
ot the sales tax amount involved, penalty, and default surcharge.

The fax amhcrities had amended the assessments of the Holding Company for the tax years 2003 to 2023 raising an

- aggregate demand of Rs. 27 658% milion, which primarily relates to deplelion allowance, development and production

“0 7 expenditure, dacommissioning cost, super tax, unreatized exchange iosses, rebate on denation and ax credits under

sections €1, 65 of the income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Holding Company had paid the demanded amounts upty tar year

-+ 2020 under protest to avold penalties under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 and has initiated appeliate proceedings against

33414

" the disallowance which are pending at different appsllate forums. in the above demandad amount, Rs 5,153 million was
disalfowed on account of depletion allowance, Howaver, the matier has been decided in favor of the Holding Company
which has been further explained in note 32.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

: Contingency with respéct to imposition of Windfall Levy on oll / condensate

o '..j:Tha Holding Company is a working interest owner in Tal, Mirpur Khas, Khipro, Mehar, Mubarak, Tando Allah Yar, Gurgaiot

= Sinjhoro, Bitrism, Khewart and Nim Blocks whose Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs) were executed under the

" framework of Petroleum Policies 1994 and 1997. Subsequently, in pursuance to the option availahble under Patroleum Policy

2012, the Holding Company along with othar working interest owners signed Supplemental Agresments (SAs} with the
Government of Pakistan {GoP} for conversion of eligible existing and future discoveries under aforesaid FCAs 10 the
Petroieum Policy (PP}, 2012, Under the said arrangement, price regimes prevaiiing in PP 2007, PP 2009 and PP 2042 in
terms of PP 2012 shall be applicable, correlated with the spud dates of the welis in the respective nolicies starting from
MNovember 27, 2007, The conversion package as defined in the SAs included windfall levy on natural gas only.

On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) nciified amendments in Petroleum Policy 2012 after
approval from the Councit of Common Interests {CCi) dated November 24, 2017 These amendments include impasition of
windfall levy on oll / condensate (WLGC). Under the said notification, the Supplemental Agreements already executed for
conversion from Petreleum Policies of 1994 and 1997 shall be amended within 80 days, failing which the working irterest
owners will not remain eligible for gas price incentive. On January 3, 2018, Directorate General Pefroleum Concessions
(DGPCY has reguired all exploration and production companies to submit Supplemental Agreements to incorporate the
aforementioned amendments in Pelrolaum Concession Agreements (PCAs) signed under 1994 and 1997 poficies, for
execution within the stipulated ime as specified above or to forgo the incentives available for gas pricing.

Based on tegal advice, the Holding Company is of the view that terms of the existing PCAs as amended to-date through tha
Supplemental Agreements already exscuted cannot uniiaterally be amended by the GoP through introduction of amendmernt
rior can the GoP lawfully require and direct that such amendments be made to inciude imposition of WLO retrospectivaiy
and nor the GoP uniiaterally hold and direct that the gas price incentive 1o which the Halding Company is presently antitled
0 and racaeiving under the conversion package as enshrined under the Supplemental Agresment stends withdrawn or the
Holding Company ceases to be eligivle for such incentive in case of faillure to adopt the unilateral amendments in the
oxisting PCAs. Accordingly, the aforementioned amendments as wall as the subsequent letters recuising implementation ¢f
the amsndments are not enforceabls or hinding upon the Holding Company.

AT 42
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The Holding Company slong with other joint operation pariners has challengad the applicebility of WLO against the
ackdrop of Supplemental Agreemenis already executed pursuant to PP 2012 in the Honorable Islamabad High Court which
has granted stay order against the CCl desizion dated November 24, 2017 on imposition of WLO. 1t is perfinent to note that

‘all wiit petitions on aubjert maéter have baen cons ohdaiad by the Honorable High Court. The pelitions are pending with gale
Jnoffice. : :

The cumuigtive impact of Windfall Levy on Ol (WLD) sifice application of ircremental gas prices up till Juna 30, 2024
amount lo approximatsly Rs 33,888 miliion {2023 Rs 27,602 million). As mentioned above, the Holding Company based on
the advice of lagal counsels, is confident that it has valid grounds to defend the aforssaid issue in the Court and that the
issue will be decided in'its favor. However, without prejudice to the Holding Company's legal conlention and s a matter of
prudence, the Hot ding Company has booked provision of Rs. 23,572 million to prospectively account for the impact uf WLO

from the date of the &RO i.e. December 27, 2017 till June 30, 2024. The provision has been adequztely disclosed i nols

38,
Unitization of & alamati Adam West Field Reserves

A reservolr communication study by an independent third party, is currently in progress to detarmine reserve volums
gstimates and levei of communication belween Salamat field (operated by UEPL; GHPL Working Intersst (Wi 25%) and
Adam West field {operated by PPL; GHPL Wl Nill. If reservoir communication betwesn the fislds is proved then subject o
final results of the study, agreement of concerned parties and Director General Pefroleumn Concessions's (DGPC approval,
financial exvosure may arise equivalent to revenue from additional production from the reservoir fo be offset by royalty /
OPEX / tax and other related expenseas incurred.

Other contingsncies

- -As part of the investment in Pakistan International Oif Limited (PIOL), each associate of the consortium companies including
.'Hoidmg Company have provided, joint and several, parent company guarantees to Abu Dhabi Natonal O Compary
{ADNOC) and Supreme Council for Financial and Economic Affairs Abu Dhabi, UAE to guarantse the cbligations of the
associate, PIOL. The exposure against the said guarantee as at yvear end amounts to USS 120 million (2023 USS 185

miilion).

On Decamber 17, 2013, Attock Refinery Limited (ARL) filad & writ petition against the Hoiding Company befors islamabad

Hign Court and has disputed and withheld amounis invoiced to it prior to the signing of sales agreement i.e. March 13, 2018

- -on-account of adiustment of premium or discount as announced by Ssudi Aramsco for deliveries to-Asian customers /

destinations under the sales agresment. The amount withheld and disputed by ARL amounts to Rs 411 million (2023 Rs

. 41T million). The Holding Company helieves that the debit notes / invoices have been raised in accordance with the sales
- agreements signed with the Government of Pakistan (GoP) and no provision is required in this respect.

33.1.2

Inter State Gas Systems (Private) Limited - ISGSL. {the Subsidiary Company)

ISGSL has not accrued any penalty under the terms of GSPA with National Iranian Gil Company (NIOC) - an Iran state
ownad enterprise on the basis of management's assessmant of related matters. In making its assessment, the management
has considered that owing to the underlying task and circumstances an extension was agread in 2019 wharain pipeline was
required to be completed by 2024 and subsequent to that various factors including pandemic and other matters have been
an impedimeant in achieving the target. Further, ISGSL has acsessed that both the entities need additional ‘I”m, to fulfit their
respective chligations undor the GSPA,

In August 2024, NIGC issued a notice in furtherance of the arbiration process under the terms of the GSPA for the 1S38Ls
alleged breach of GSPA clauses. The notice demanded compensation for damages with interest inciuding take-or--pay
obligations, reimbursement of arbitration-related costs on a full indemnity basis including arbitrator fees, iegal, and related
exXpenses, along with any additional relief deemed appropriate by the Arbitral Tribunal. Following the consultation with the
Government of Pakistan and external legal counsels, ISGSL has respondad in Qctober 2024 to the aforesaid notice of
arbifration served by NIOC. The management believes that notwithstanding the locus standi, there also exist carlain ofher
related factors which management belleves may guide to amicable resolution of the matter on hand and therehy there 1s no
liketihocd of the ISGSL's upfront exposure to any financial obligation. Keaping in view the foregoing, the Group has not
m'“c;rdcd cmy ‘Enanmal obligation, including penalty under related clause of GSPA.
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Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL (the Subsidiary Company)

For tax year 2018, 2019 and 2020 tax authorities amended the PLUs assessment under section 122{6A) and created tax
demand of Rs. 1,691 million, Rs. 4,207 million and Rs. 2,928 million by making disallowances of mainly related to unrealised
exchange ioss, credit of tax paid under impert stage, unrealised exchange losses, capacity, utilisation, Hexibility charges and
employees benefits encashment.

The Subsidiary Company, PLL, filed appeals on relevant forms which are currently pending, however management, based
on the opinion of its tax consultants, believes that they have strong arguments in these matters hence, most fkely these will
be decided in their favour.

PGPCL has filed a request for arbitration (RFA} before the London Court of Arbitration (LCIA) dated October 28, 2023 with
respect to reimbursement of royalties payable by PGPCL to Port Qasim Authority (PQA) from PLL, payment for services
provided by PGPCL {o PLL before the commercial start date and PLL's refusal to enter a third parly access arrangement

with PGPCL causing significant iosses to PGPCL. The case is pending before LCIA and the hearing of case will held in April
2025, Management is confident that the matter will be decidad in favor of PLL.

Subsequant to the year end, Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA), vide its notifications dated December 24, 2024,
conveyed price determination of RLNG sales for respective months from December 2017 to June 2022 encompassing
supplies made by PLL to Sui Northern Gas Pipeiines (SNGPL). PLL is not in agreement with the various components of the
aforesaid determination made by the OGRA. PLL through its letter dated January 9, 2025, has requested OGRA 1o revisit
various matters and simultansously has also informed OGRA about the certain amounts recovered under international
arbitrations, Further, vide letter dated January 23, 2025, PLL has also filed an appeal under SRC(1)/2024 dated January 31,
2024, issued by OGRA over the matter of statedly lesser LNG profit margin allowed by OGRA in the aforesaid determination,
The management and Board of PLL believe that the matter raised by PLL before regulatory forum are appropriately raised
and carry merit in favor of PLL thus the same are fikely to be decided in favor of PLL and no negative inference would flow to
PLL upoen ultimate conclusion of the related proceedings and also that any possible financial impact arising thereon wilt be
accounted for per PLL’s accounting policy in the period when finalization of matter is reached.

2024 2023
Note wmmimnssmnmnenRUPEES (000} rommmmamnmonan
COMMITMENTS
Government Holdings {Private) Limited {the Holding Company)
Minimum work commitment 33211 8,910,653 3,224,789

This represents the Holding Company's share in the minimum work commitments relating to non-operated joint operations
and tha Holding Company's own capital budget.

As part of the Shareholders Agreement with the consortium partners in PIOL, associate, the Holding Company has
committed to invest upto US$ 100 milion in PIOL during the next five years from August 31, 2021, out of which US$ 60
miltion: has been invested fifl June 30, 2024 (2023: US$ 35 million}. The remaining amount of USS 40 million (2022, USS 65
million} will be invested in subseguent years.

As per the Joint Venture Agreement, for reconstitution of the Reko Dig project, the Holding Company has entered into a JV
agreement with stakeholder under which it has committed US$ 398 million. adjustable for inflation. to fund its contributing
interest of ali cost and expenses of the project. The Holding Company has aiso provided a corporate guarantee in this
respect.

Inter State Gas Systems {Private) Limited - ISGSL (the Subsidiary Company}

ISGSL has entered into an investment agreement in respact of which it shall be subscribing for 940,000 shares in TAPI
Pipeling Company Limited {TPCL} at a consideration of US$ 10 per share. The said subscription shall be against first
second, third and fourth closings. Commitment amounting to USD 2.85 million in respect of fourth closing 1s stili pending

S0ITEL
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Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL {the Subsidiary Company}

in accordance with the provisions of the Operations and Services Agreement (OSA), PLL shall pay to Terminal Operator a
capacity charge of USD 245,220 per day subject to capped availabiiity factor (85%) and a flexibility charge in the event of
terminal capacity utilization increases from agreed annual utilization profile {referred as Annuai Flexibility Profile) at the rate
of 25% of the applicable capacity fee.

in accordance with the provisions of Master Sale and Purchase Agreement {MSPA), PLL is obliged to import one cargo of
LNG per month from M/s. ENI SPA (the Sellers) for a period of 15 years respectively from the start of commercial operation
date. Under the agreement, PLL has issued a Standby Letter of Credit {SBLC) to Eni for USD 42 .4 million.

As at June 30, 2024, PLL has FATR / L.C facilities with commercial banks of USD 552.4 million, which are duly securad
against a pari passu charge on current assets registered with the SECP.

2024 2023
Note ~eemememeeeeen Rupees (000)mmwrmrermmaree
REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS - NET
local
Sales
- Natural gas 71,975,903 69,380,608
- Crude oi 55,461,064 48,803,085
- Liguefied petroleum gas 15,118,435 13,298,802
- Regasified liquified natural gas 34.1 230,357,771 114,431,048
372,813,173 245,913 644
Services
- Regasification services 20,355,967 16,429,124
Export
- Crude oil 9,562,939 7,686,184
402,832,079 270,028,831

Government levies:

- Sales tax {61,2569,703) {31.570.155)
- Excise duty {516,811) {573,080)
- Petroleum development levy {361,791) {341,950}
(52,138,305) (32,485,186}
350,693,774 237,543,745

As per the decision of the Economic Coordination Committee {(ECC) vide case no. ECC-52/12/2018 dated May 30, 2018, the
LNG margin of PLL was increased fram 2.56% to 3.75% w.ef June 01, 2018, However, implementation of the same is
currently pending with Oif and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA). Once implemented, the margin wili be recovered by PLL
prospectively.

Regassified liquified natural gas sales include sales to SNGPL and K-Electric Limited invoiced on provisional prices. There
may be adjustment in revenue upon issuance of final regassified liquified natural gas price notification by OGRA for the
respective month, impact of which cannot be determined at this stage for all costs. Any possible impact related to such
adjustments will be adjusted prospectively.

Contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following contract fiabilities reiated to contracts with customers of liquefied petroleum gas
{LPG) and natural gas:

2024 2023
sammmmm e R U GRS {000 )--remrere e
Movement in confract liabilities
Balance at beginning of the year 1,708 67,353
Advances received during the year 6,405,345 5,230,308
Transferred to revenue during the year (6,303,581 (5,295,854)
Balance at end of the year 103,502 1,708

A I8
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2024 2023
: Note e Rupees {'000}-~--mrmwennne-
ROYALTY AND OTHER LEVIES
‘Royalty . ' i 351 15,033,185 13,864,396
Windfal fevy 35,2 1,367,409 1,398,382
o 16,400,594 15.202,778

Royally and other levies charged by the Government of Pakistan.

This pertains to production from Gambat South, Dhok Sulian, Mamikhe! South and Shah Bandar,

OPERATING EXPENSES

Onerating and other direct expenses 36.1 191,133,27¢ 99,085,563
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 6.4 3,139,504 2,611,062
Depreciation on right of use asset 7 10,701,431 16,701,431
Amortigation of development and production assets 10 5,087,731 4,735,174
impairment : 36.2 441,865 412,428
Decomimissioning cost actualised during the year 60,983 65,970
Reversat due to change in decommissioning cost estimates 273 (1,286,743} (391,758}
209,278,051 17,227,860
Operating and other direct oxpenses
Operating expenses - joint operations & LNG 36.1.1 178,952,035 93,910,838
_LING import retated costs 11,343,488 5,182,589
Cavacity, utilisation and flexibility charges 788,105 (11,015
Operations & Maintenance 79,603 6154
3 191,133,279 99,089 563

it inciucies the Holding Company's share in operating expenses of joint operation amounting to Rs. 16,880 million
{(2023: Rs. 10,974 miliion) mainly comprising of personnel cost, field / contract services, repair and mesintenance,

workovers, travelling etc.

2024 2023
i Note e ELRToTCIT 0 f]1 ] I—
impairment
Impairment oo property, plant and equipment 5.6 45,443 104,076
impainnent on developmert and praduction assets 16 096,422 308 357
- 241,865 412,428

During the year, the Holding Cornpany carried out impairment testing of its joint operations assets, as required under

PAS 36 - impairment of Assets’ to assess whether there is any provision required on these assets. Based on the
assessment, management has made a provision of impairment on property plant and equipment, development and
production asseis &% specified in above note.

For the purpose of carrying out impairment testing, each joint operation has been considered a saparate casn
generating unit and the recoverable value of the each joint operation investment has beern separately defermined and
compared with the respective carrying value of the assets of that joint cperation. The test was performed based on the
estimate of the recoverable value of the CGU. The calculation invoived estimates and judgements, such as estimation
of volume of oil and gas recoverable reseives, fulure oil and gas prices, costs and discount rate.

In asszssing the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their presant value, using & discount rale
of 15.19% (2023 15.16%) per annum. As a resyf, impainment foss of Rs 442 million is recognzad which has been
rsspectively allocated to the properiy plant and squinment (PP} and development and production (D&P) assets of the
G as disclosed in note 36,2 to the consolidatad finaricial statements.

AL



FIMANCE INGOME { {COSTS)
_ 3-§mmu: income :

" Finance ncome fmm fifancial asaets

Raturn on bank deposits:

Return on term deposit receépgt_s ' _
?nierest on !oz}_g ferm receivable from GoP-

Fmancs\ intome from non f:nanma! assets

Gain onlong ter*n ab:l; ies due 10 chas&ge m esi;mate

Finance Incoma.

Finance Cost

Interest expenze on lease liabilities

Unwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning cost
Unwinding of discount on long term liabilities

Loss on long ferm lizbilities due to change in estimate

tterest on long term loan
nterest on delayed payment
Bank charges

Finance cost

Net finance inccme

EXF’LORATEO& AND PROBPECTING EXPENDITURE

Cost of dry and abandonad wells
Praspecting excenditure

CENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Sa_i;:ries, wages and benefils
TAP project expenditure
frar: Pakistan gas pipeline project

Fax Stream Gas Pipeline (PSSP project expenditure

T r:we,‘hr.g and conveyance
Repairs and maintenancs

Rent

Communications

Uitiities

Training and seminars

Printing and stationery
Advertisement

Enteriainment

Legal and professional charges
Audiors' remuneration

Feo and subssription

Software maintenance foe
Insurance - _ -
Business development
Corporate social responsibility
Areortisation of intangible assets
Demreciation

Security services

Others

251

271
25.1
251

39.1

30.5

g}
LY

2024 2023
--------------- Rupess {"000)-emmrenann
1'{5,?9?,591 4,290,533
8,098,576 3,972,649
14,580,316 5,648,325
33,476,483 13,811,607
- 519,532
- 33,476,483 - 14331026

{8,249,357)

{7,337,880)

(1,237,412) (623,436)
(251,286) (137,133)
{359,826) -

(14,580,316) (5,548,325
- (47,510}
(59,673) (13.705)
(24,747,880)  (14.007,988)
8,728,603 323,050
185,604 7160
998,628 440,743
4,184,232 447,903
1,826,178 1,642,585
20,254 3,712
87,770 2,127
- 1,728
41,541 37,014
32,763 20,811
56,970 49,709
2,331 1,650
42,652 24,910
21,945 29,725
10,866 3,382
9,061 14,454
7,546 4,789
102,087 73,599
24,060 16,062
5,350 5,244
94,917 47,135
31,560 19,5971
259,108 272,475
55,000 74,250
9,955 7,324
62,333 37,982
23,345 14,068
8,173 8,905
2,814,765 2,420,210

It includes Rs. 248.7 million (2023: Rs. 205.3 million} in respect of post employment benefits.

ARATLL.



38.2

39.21

38.3

38.5

56

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for the remuneration of the chief

exaecutive officer and executives of the Group are as follows:

' Chief Executive Officer © Executives

2024 2023 2024 2023 )

o IR -~ Rupees ('000) e .
Managerial remuneration _ 75,448 54,704 1,215,320 848,174
Benus - note 39.2.1 I P . 12,058 oL 289803 - 96,322 196,128.0C
Postemployment benefits -~~~ . 7646 13550 . 491,772 265.748
Reimbursable expenses .~ 411 20 5,288 2,380

Additional charge aliowance 8,707 R -
e et~ x>+ 55 Ts0re A
Number of pe{so'ns 1 1 123 107

Bonus comprise of accruals of budgeted bonus payments for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Key management personne!

Key management personnel comprises chief executive, chief financial officer, company secrelary, executive

directors and general managers of the Group.

2024 ) 2023
) N 11Xy T (1111
Managerial remuneration 385,243 156,024
Bonus: note 39.2.1 35,664 53,258
Fost employment benefit 85,178 41,801
Reimbursable expenses 507 22C
' 506,692 281,303

Fae pai'd to non-executive directors for attending the Board of Directors meetings amourted to Rs. 4.7 million

(2023: Rs. €5.7 million).

2024 2023
- T T e mvend] Rupees {'000)—rmme-ereneee.

Auditors' remuneration

Holding Company

Statulory audit fee 8,724 1,692

Reperi  on  compliance of Public  Sector

Companies (Corporate Governanca) Rules 2013 168 138

Decommissioning certification 1,178 966

Out of pocket axpenses 618 504

Tax services 2,211 160

9,897 6,450

Subsidiaries

Statutory audit fee 4,565 3,741

Report on  compliance of Public Sector

Companies (Corporate Governance) Rulas 2013 314 253

Other Services " 1,250 396

Cut of pocket expenses 357 203

Tax services 7,677 6,402
OO L4 1 14,163 11,602
: . 24,060 18,052
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2024 2023
40 ARBITRATION INCOME | (EXPENSE)- NET _ Note e OT CA V13 VLl 1 1 | SR
'&}éitifzmani‘ vrpense’
Seftlernent with ENI o an o saaesn -
Settiement 'i'ncemé :
Settlerment with Gurwor !nterna’téoh@% S o 402 - 17,811,198 -]
Setlementwith Gunvor Singapore. - 40.3 S B6B043 |7 80248 |
"SEB‘XGEH!@F:’( Wifh PGPCL . e e 302 . . ?1052‘523 33]543 !
19,541,761 168,791
Arbitration related costs - net _ 40.4 7,525 (358,903)
19,028,649 (190.112)
4.1 Thus represents amount paid as per the terms of LCIA settlernent award betweer the PLL and ENJ in ralation to

amounts allegedly overbilled to PLL in lieu of port charges. EN! made the payment for an amourt of USD 9.19
miflion under protest against demand letter issuad by PLL for port charges recovery and started arbitration
proceedings against the Company at LCIA which decided the matter in favor of ENi during the year. Resuliantly, PLL
has repaid the antire amount of Rs 1,959 million along with default surcharge and reimbursement of legal costs of
Rs 521 million to the supplier which has been charged as expense to the consofidated financial statements.

403.2 This represents amount recovered from Gunver International (Gl) in respect of port charges recovery, import related
costs, termina! charges, Company's margin and reimbursements of legal cost as per terms of LCIA award. in relation
to recovery of port charges, PLL raised debit notes for an amount of UsD 10.7 million for the recovery of port
charges against GI's invoice of February 2022. Pursuant to the Gl's refusal tc renew thelr performance gusranies,
PLL encashed the Standby letter of Credit (SBLC) amounting to USD 53 million on date of expiry i.e. Bharch 1, 2022
Howaver, Gl initizted arbitration procesdings with LCIA against the aforemantioned adjusimant and encashment
claiming that it has discharged ite obligations under the contract. '

Ddring the year, the matter has been setiled in the LCIA in favour of PLL and PLL has received LiSD 69 miltion,
including the amount withheld earlier through debit notes. Consequent to the matter attaining finality, the amount of
USD 69 miliion has been classified as arbitration income in the consolidated financial statements. The amount
recovered has been intdmated to OGRA and the ranagemant believes it would be adjusted upor: aclualisation of
RLNG tariff by the related directives of QGRA.

46G.3 This represents amount received by PLL under the Settlement Agreement signed with Gunvor Singapore (GS) for an
arnount of USD 2.4 millior: for recovery of entire overbilled port charges and reimbursement of Legal Cost amounting
USE 280,000 in 2023, The amount has been received during the year in PLU's lawyar account and. has basn
accounted for as setliement income in the consolidated financial statements. The amount recovered has been
intimated to OGRA and the management believes. it would bo acjusted upon actuafisation of RLNG tari@ by the
refated directivas of OGRA,

40.4 This represenis the legal and arbitrator cosis in relation o the above-mentioned arbitrations net of ary ravision in
sttimated costs.

2624 2023
: Note | e Rupees ("00)-wcmnaomnnn.
41 OTHER EXPENSES
Exchange foss - net 1,396,873 10 550,375
Exchange loss on translation of lease Hability. 7 : 2,172,550 0,203,614
Windfall fevy on oii / condensate 33114 5,287,023 5,881,892

&w 5,856,456 66,635 881
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43.1

A4

8.

OTHER INCOME

. Other income from non financial assets

Gainy oy disposal of fixed asset .
Contract renawal fes
Gihers :

TAXATION
Current
Charge for the vear

Adjustrment on account of group taxation
Charge for prior vear

Deferred

{Cradit) / charge for the year

Ré:cr:rzciiiatinn of tax charge for the year:

Acsounting profit
Tax rate

Tax on acccunliﬁg profit at applicabls rate 50% (20232 50

o
&
——

Ta')i effect of:

Efigct of decommissioning cost

Deplation allowance

Effect of change in lax rate

Effect of aifferent tax rates

Deferred teue derecognised

Prior years chargse

Group tax adjustiment

Tax losses/benelits recognisad in current vear
Others

EARMINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the vear

Rupsges
Weighied average ordinary shares Number
Eamings per share - basic Rupees

Mote

26

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per shars of the Group.

RIFEL.

2024 2023
Y v 111]1 ] EeP—
452 337,989
31,500 -
125,372 79,509
157,324 417 498
61,021,419 41,051,510
(191,213) (1,741,338)
{5,847,551) -
44,982 555 39,310,172
(13,281,361) (14,829,437)
31,700,694 24,420,735
135,762,814 35,445,302
50% 509
68,384,407 17,722,851
. 2,460,468
{9,019,911) (8,304,690)
(8,375,432) 427,772
(4,097,203) 9,957 280
190,040 496,275
{9,492,235) (57,118)
(191,213)
(5,710,854) 2,168,992
15,985 (96,893},
(36,680,713} 6,758,084
31,700,694 24,480,735
105,062,119,705 10 984,566,955
2,322,121.233 2.164,316.961
45,24 507




g

s

45

FINANCIAL INSTRUNENTS

© The following detail shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. 1t does not.include fair value mformation as

the carrying amount is g reascnable approvimation of fair value as the clirrent financial assets and liabilities are short term
and some finuncial assets are also interest bearing. Further, the financial assets due diectly / ultimataly from GoP carres
cortractual right and entittement fo recelve interest on late payment and is exempt from ECL accourting / disclosure as

disciosed in note 3.3, The hon clirent financial assets are also interest bearing.

CFINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets classified as amortised cost:

Carrying amouni

2024

2023

e ineFEAPE S { OO0 emrmeramnns e

Raceivable from GoP 71,899,087 70,447 456
Shotl term investment 79,564,839 31,427,558
Loans to staff 144,847 ’ G8 BRY
Trade debis- net 21,928,980 202,997,128
Advances and othe: reteivables | 2,354,532 1,015,689
Security deposits 600 1,031
Casn and bank palances 49,517,287 23,581,957
Accrued Inerest 1,094,372 296,255
526,904,544 418,865,621
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES . |
Financial Habiliies classified as amortised cost:
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - secured 71,899,087 70,447 456
Lang term Habilities 6,133,871 5,175 325
Trade and ofher payables 21,135,848 15,358,675
Lease liabitity 171,565,095 185,417,618
Payable te Governmeant under ITFC agreement 120,668,279 113,898,102
S 291,401,981 361,205.476

Credit quality of financial assets

The oredit guality of the Group financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external cradhi ralings of
counterparties detarmined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company
Limited (JCR-VIS) The countarparties for which external credit ratings were not available have bean aszessed by refarence
to intarnal credit ratings deferminad based on their historical information for any defaults in meeting obligations

Rating 2024 2023
----------------- Rupees {(J0§}-mmmmmrmreeemme
Trade Debls :
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due from associated companies 315.982,4686 285,826,716

Others 6,144,421 7367 109
. 322,126,887 293 1693.828
Afivénces, deposits and other receivables
Countarpariios without externat credit rating 2,358,132 1,018,720
Bank Balances. A .
Counierpariies with sxdernal credit rating Ats 49,510,935 23,880,053
Short term investments
Ceunter parties with external credit rating Aty 78,371,320 31,427,558
Counter parties without external credit rating ’ 3,593,519 -
79,864 829 31,427,558
Accrued Interest receivabls
Counter parties with external credit rating At 1,094,372

NvZ14

286,255
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Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used lo discolnt estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield curve at
- ihe rmporting date plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets zre fiosting rete
Cinstrumenis, there s no significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument, fair value significantly
approximates to carrying value, ' : DR R

Determination of fair values

' “Anumber of the Gmup’_t;‘ écc_ounﬁng'bOEiC%@é"&ﬂd disclosures require the determination of fair valueg, for both fnancial
and noh-financial assets and Habilities. Fair values have been determined for rmeasurament and / or disclosure
purnoses based on the following methods.

Mon - derivative financial assets

The fair valuz of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounied at
the marke! rale of interast at the reporting date. This Tair value is determined for disclosure purposes.

Mon - derivative financial labilities

- Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the prasent value of fuiure principal and
interest cash flows, discounted at the markst rate of interest at the reporting date.

Finanviat risk factors’

Tne Group hss axposure to the following risks from its use of inancial instruments:
- Credit risk '

- Liguidity risk

- Market risk

Thiz riote presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's abjeclives, poficies
and provesses for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’'s management of capital. Further guantitative
disciosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overali responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. The Board is responsibie for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to azt
appropriate rigk limits and contrels, and to monitor risks adherence 1o limits. Risk management palicies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activitizs. The Group, through its
fraining and management standards and procedures, aims lo develop a discipined and constructive sontro!
ervircnment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group's awdit and risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Group. The audit and risk managemeni committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit internal audit undertakes hoth reguizar and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are repoerted to the audit and risk management committee.

LQAFEL-



£1-

452 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a_coun‘terp&%rﬁ; will. not mest its obl!gatioh under. a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to - a financial joss, Group's credit risk is primarily ai’tributab}e_ to its trade debts, short term invesiments and ils
balances at banks. : ' ' ' :

Trade debts

Trade debis are essentially _due from oit' refining companies, gas distribution comparies and power generation
- companies and the Group does not expect lhese companies to fail io mest their obligations. Majority of sales to the

- Group's customers are made on the basis of agreements approved by the GoP. . . ...

Sale of crude oil and gas is at prices specified in relevant agreements and/ or as riotified hy the Government authorities
based on agreemenis with customers or relevant applicable petrolewn policy or Petroleum Concession Agreements.
Frices of fguefied petroleum gas are determined by the Group subject to maximum price natified by Ol and Gas
Reguilatory Authority (OGRA).

As outiined in note 3.3, the Group establishes an aflowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
lsses in respect of trade debts and lease receivables that are due directly / ultimately from the Governmant of
Pakistan (GoP) il Juns 30, 2024,

Cthers

The credit risk related to balances with banks, in term deposits and saving accounts, are managed by investing in Hquid
securities and maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A. While bank
balances and investments in term deposits are also subjact to the requirements of IFRS ¢ the identified impairment
loss was immaterial as the counterparlies have reasonably high credit ratings.

The c;_"edit‘ risk on advances to suppliers and other receivables is minimal as the Group has long established
rejationship with the counterparties, which are mainly state owned enterprises, and managerment does not expact nor-
performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Group.

2024 2023 )
Short Term Long Term  Short Term Long Term Credit rating Agency

National Bank of Pakistan At ABRA A1+ AAA PACRA

Allied Bank Limited o At AAA A-1+ . AAA : PACRA

Bank Aifalah Limited. : At AAA A-1+ AA+ PACRA |
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAA | Vis

MCB Barn A-1+ AAA A-d AAA PACRA

United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA A-1+ AAA Vis

Meezan Bank Limited A-tr AAA A-1+ AAA VIS

Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ At AA+  PACRA

Habib Metrepolitan Bank A-1+ Al A-i+ AA+ FACRA

Bank of Punjab 7 A+ Ab+ A-1+ DA PACRA

SR,
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48,21 Exposine to ceadit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure io cledit nsk ‘or the components of consciidatad statement of firgncial position &t lune 30, 2024 and 2023 is e

below:

Receivable from Governmerst of Pakistan (305
Loan o staif !

Trade debis

Staff advances and other receivabies

Security deposits

Shod term investments

sank balances

Accrued interest

Rer s

1,084,372

ualfo the carying amounts of financial assets as given

2024 _ 2023
Bt ST LYl (411 7 ) S —
71,898,087 70,447 456
144 857 - 98 587
322,126,887 . 293,155,528
2,354,532 - 1,015.689
_ 800 1.031
79.964,839 31.427.558
49,510,955 23,580,055

208 255

527,086 149 420,060,457
The Group has maintained saving accounts with different banks having credif rating as mantionad balow:
Credit rating Rating agenéy oo
At PACRA 48,468,308 17,404,880
A-TH VIS 1,042,627~ 5,175,164
: 49,510,925 23,580,054
Credit ratings for short term investments disciosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
45,2.2 Impairment iosses
The aging of trade debts &t the reperiing date is as follows: IR
: 2024 2023
Gross Debts impaired Gross Debts Impaired
---------------- Ripags--mmmmesssrmm Rupbees:
Mot Past Due 25,542,664 - 26,065,445 . -
Past due up fo three months 16,022,035 113,457,249 .- -
Past due three to six months 15,634,238 . 18,203 562 -
Past due more than six months 264,617,851 187,927 135,363,572 186,700
322,216,888 " 137,927 293,193‘829 196,700
Party wise aging of trade debis other than ralatad parties at reporting date is as under,
L. 2024 %
E Past Due ] :
iParty name Not past due Lip i three Thres to gix Ms,‘re_ than six || mpaired batance Total E
: : monthé: | months maoiiths : !
Attock Refinory Limited - 5,090,685 213,141 - 07,088 (72,500} 5,438,426
Mational Refinery Limited 167,878 21,223 - 9,116 {8,117 288,59¢
Gthera 250,983 48 217 5,926 33,563 {79,600 303,189
8,509,328 — C3E2.E81 86 026 248 778 (161,217 6,935.49&
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2023

iDar:y nameo

Not past due

Past Due

Up to three months

!
Three 1o six months |

More than six months

Impaired haidnee

Total

SR ]
Attnck Refinery Limited 5,736,594 86'6"??3 - 207.682 (77817 5,732,482
Hational Rafinery Limied 117,174 37.678 {11.359) 163,503 {18,554} 288,133
United Energy Pakistan Limited - - . - . -
Others . 197,962 {113,5588; 1,811 162,370 Q8 701). 145,793
6,082 332 790,233 {9,448) 533483 (196,172 7,170,408
Parly wise &ging of irade debts of relalsd parties at reporiing date is as uncer: L '
O 2024 B
| Past Due _ i : T
iParty rame Mot past due Up to three Thres to six fore than six - ; fmpaired balancg | Tatal
months months months - :
Sui Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited 3,143,468 3,673,329 5,104,710 141,381,113 - 153,283,120
Harachi Blectric Limited 6,541,843 “ B s . 4,541,843
Sui Scuthern Gas Company Limited 7,281,486 £,971,848 11,386,733 122,264,952 e 160,908,020
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,908,028 1,010,059 1,207 539 - {1,783} 2,918,111
Enar Petroleum Refining Facifity 78,440 - - ey S 78,410
Qit & Gas Development Company 530,407 626,498 “ 133,847 - {28,612} - 1,282,140
Pakistan Refinery Limitad 518,372 322,283 85,639 8,305 {8,308) 926,294
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 31,224 34,935 22 1,347 - 67,528
20,633,338 16,639,453 16,578,311 263,768.973 {38,710} 315,982,466
2023
Fast Due ) . : i
Party v N ired bal : Total
arty naina ot past cue Up to three months || Three to six monihs | |More than six months l:.'npafre wanee.. E o

Sul Northern Gag Fipelines Limited 3.307.653 100,478,002 4,743,414 41,418,754 - 148,891,823
Karachi Electric Limited 5,070,848 - - - - 5.070.848
Sut Southern Gas Company Limited 8,536,440 10,203,648 13,087,237 93,214 623 - : 125,041,935
Paik Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,844,201 1,066 {5.865) 5,306 G 1,945,705
Erar Petroleum Refining Facility 76,165 - {3,384) 3,355 B 76,136
Cil & Gas Developrment Company 519,490 1,114,428 - 191,652 (5223 1,825,118
Pakistan Refinery | Imited 538.337 793,120 348,080 {402) - 1,679,184
Pakistan Pettoleurm Limited 23978 79.558 g3 548 (1,579 - 195,805

20,017,113 112.687.016 18313011 134,830,109 (5283 285 826 719

As explained in nofe 18.7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group believes that no impairment allowance s necessary in respact of rade debis past due from Sul Northem Gas Bipelings
Limited and Sut Southern Gas Company Limited. Trade debls are essentially due from ol refining companies, natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas transmission and distributon companies, the

Group 35 actively pursuing for recovery of debis and the Group does not expedt these companies to-1ail fo meet their obligations. Impact ¢f ZCL on financial assets not covered under exenmption as
explained Iv note 3.3 ngs been recorded in note 18.3 o the consafidated firanuia! statements.

Erpeciec credi loss on loens, advances, depusits and other receivablus is caloulatad using general apprasch {as disclosed innote 5.13.1). 43 atihe reposting date, Group envisages that defauit tisk on
accournt ot isans. atvances, Geposits and cther receivables is bnimaierial based on historic rends adiusted to reflect forward ‘ooking informatizn,

Bark belances and invesiments intarm deposils are alse sublect Lo the requiraments of IFRS. § the igentified impaimment oss was immatedal as the counterparties have rezsonably high cradit ralings

URATARL -
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: 2024 2022
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respest of trads debis during the year was as foilows: ] RUPEBS- s e
Baiance at beginning of the year . 196,700 - 536,704
rrovision / {reversal) during the year . 1227 (343,004}

Balance at end of the year _ . o 187,927 . 196.700

LS

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk th?t the Group will not be able to mest ifs financiatl chligations as they 1all due, Prudant liguidity risk r"sanage“neﬁt impies maintaining sufficient casn and marketable securities io
close out market positions due fo dynaimic naturz of the business. The Greup's appreach to manzging fquidity is to ensure, as far as po.sible, that it will always have suflicient liquidity to meet i
liabiiities when due, under both nermal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccepiabie k:sses or figking damage to the Group's i+ putatnon Since the Group has sufiivient assels agsinst is
itabilities, and being {ully owned by Government of Pakistan (GoP) it does net have any sigrificant kquidity risk. :

The maturily profite of thé Group's financial assets and liabilities based on June 30, 2024, is summarized below:

2054 _ Effective yield / Martup / Interest Nor markup /

ATLYI-

Intersst Rate bearing interest bearing Towai
o, enmmmmmenanmsmeamenene e U DEES {{000)
- FINANCIAL ASSETS ' S
WMaturity up to one ye&ri _
Long term loan : - - _  4€,‘730'__ 41,730
Trade debis - R 322,126,887 - 322,426,887
Recsivable from Govemment of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR+0,2 13,489,889 - 13,489,889
Advances and other recewaiafes . - 2,354,832 2,354,622
Deposits - L. - BGO 60O
Receivable from Government of Pakistan (Gof) KIBOR + 0.50 13,489,888 - 13,489,868
Shori-term investments 11.82 - 14.15 79,984,833 - 79,964,339
Bank balances 2.75-13.0 49 510,935 L. 49,510,835
156,455,512 324,523%,749 480,979,262
Maturity after one year;: R
Long term loan - - 103,187 103,167
Receivabie from Government of Pakistan (GoP) KIBOR+9.2 58,409,218 - 58,408,218
) 58,409,218 103,167 58,512,385
: 214,864,730 324,626,918 539,491,647
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up fo one year.
Trade and other payables B - 21,135,648 21,135,648
Loan from Natfonal Bank of Pakistan (NBP! - secured KIBOR+0.2 13,489,869 - 13,489,863
Curren portion of fong ‘esf‘m fiabiliies . - 1,963,482 1,903,482
i ensa liability 4.20 47,075,868 - 17,075,868
Hor term borrowing KIBOR + .50 413,488 268 - 13,489,882
Fayable to Govarnment . 120,668,279 120.668,273
: 44,055,608 143,707,469 137,763,018
Hiaturity efter ong year:
Long ternm liabilities - - 4,230,389 4,230,389
Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NEP)Y - secured KIBOR+0.2 58,409,218 - £8,408,218
Lease Habiky : 4.20 154,485,228 - 154,488 228
212,808,448 4,230,389 297,128,835

256,054,057

147,937,798

454,881,850
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2023

Eitactive vield /
inferest Rate

Maricup / inferest
begring

Non markisgy /
©inlerest bearing

Totai

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up te one year.

Long term {oan

Trade debts - nal :

Recoivable from Governthert of Pakistan {GoP
Loan, advances and cther recelvables

Deposiis -

Receivable from Govemriert of Pakistan (GoP)
Shortternt investments

Bank baiances

Maturity after one year: |

Long term ipan
Receivabig from the Government of Pakistan (GoP)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one year -

Trade and other payab!esz

Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - secured

Current portion of fong term Habilities
Lease Hability

Short tarm borrowing

Payabie to Government

Maturity after one year,

Long term fabilities

Loan from National Bank of Pakistan (NS£} - securad

Lease lisbility

OFF BALAMCE SHEETY ITEMS

Capital sxpenditure commitmenss

%

T KIBOR+(.2

KIBOR + 0.50
11.82-14.15
2.75-130

KIBOR+(0.2

KIBOR+0.2

426
KIBOR + 0.50

e Y 73113 S

25004

- _ 25,904

- 292907128 262,997 128
5548325 - 5,548 325
o 1125875 1,128,875
5,845,325 - 5,848,325
31,427,558 .. . 31,427 558
73581917 23.581.917
£5,106,124 254 148 507 - 350,255 031
: L2683 72,683
64,699,131 .- S 54,899,131
72683 - 54,971,814

64 859,131

131,005,255

294 221,580

5,548,325

16,262,001

5.548.325

23.831.804

113,808,102

1,667,523

425 226.846

23,831,804
5,548,325
1,667,523

18,252,001
£,548,328

115,888,102

27348650

54899131
160,165 017

139,397,430

166,746,030

4,507,802
64,886,131
168,168,817

4,507,802

234,068.048 238,572 850
261413856 143905231 405,318,630
2024 2023

U 1T YN 04} M

§,910.653

3,224,788
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Market risk

Market risk is the i‘is} %hat zhe raxr value of future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in markst prices. Market prices comprise three type of risks; interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and
other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk inciude trade debts, balances held in banks in saving

and term depo\ss‘s Iong te{m iabil ;;Ly in respect of camed mesest and payab e to joint operation partners

45.4.1

'y

Yy

Interesi rats risk.

Ariterast /. mak U rate risk mana_.;emel Weis thp risk-that - the: value of a- financial instrurment: will fluctuate dus fo- -
changes in interest rate. The Group does not have interest bearing financial liability; therefore, it does not have any
interest rate/mark-up risk in respect of financial liabilities. The Group has invested in fixed interest bearing sccurities
i tha form of short term deposit receipts as mentioned in note 21.1. Further the Group has bank balances in depesit
accounts that carry variable interest rates, as mentioned in note 22.1.

Forelgn currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fali value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes i Torelgn exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly irom future commercial transaciions or receivables
and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Pakistani rupee (Rs.) is the functional currency of the Group and as a result currency exposure atise from
transactions and balances in currencies other than Pak;stam rupee. The Group's potential r‘urzfenf*y SANGSUTD
oo ngriss

- Traras: ctional exposure in respact of non functional currency monetary items.
- Transactional exposure in respect of rion functional currency expenditure and revenues.

Tha petantial currency exposures are discussed below;
T ransgctiona! exposure i respect of non functional currency monetary items

Monetary items, inctuding financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the Group are periodically restated to Pakistani rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The foreign currency risk related to menetary items is managed as pait of the
risk management strategy.

Transactional exposure in raspect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurrad by the Group in currencies other than the functiona! curency.
Certain seles revenue is earned in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group. These currency risks
are managed as 2 part of overall risk management strategy. The Group does not enter info forward axchange
contracts

PRI -
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Exposure to forsign currency risk

S The Groun's &xposure to the risk in changes in foreign ex'change_ rat'es; refates primarily {o the trade debis, long term

45.5

‘Shiort term exposurg

fiability in respact of carried intefest and payabie to joint bperatéon operators, At tha date of consolidated statement of

~ financial position, the net forsign currency exposure aggregates to USD 42.85 million (2023: LISD 26.97 mitlion).

2024 2023
S s e USED {000} e mmenemimnane
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trade debts 106,317 37471
Short term investments 17,007 -
Cash.and bank balances 33 G248

- 27,357 46219
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES '
Shortterm exé‘;osure

Dug to joint operation operators {25,449} {13.637)

Long term liabiiity {carried interest) .. {6,839 (5,823}
Lease liabilities : {61,351) (56,748}
Foreign currency payablas {33,392} (28,947)
o o (127,031) (105,154)
Long term exposure
Long term liability {carried interest) {15,199; {15,743
Lease lahilitias {555,058} {590,684)
{697,288} (711,578}
Met exposure to foreign currency risk (6€9,931; (665,158)

The foliowing signiticant axchange rates applied during the year:

. Average rate Reporting date rate
2024 : 2023 2024 2023
o {Pak Rupeas) —~mmeemmimemmmammem s s
283.17 248.04 278.33 28539

Foreign cirrency sensitivity

A 10% strengihening of the functional currency against USD at June 30, 2024 would have increased consolidated
profit and loss by Rs. 18,648 million (2023: Rs. 19,049 miltion}. A 10% weakening of the functional currency against
USD at June 30, 2024 would have had the egual but opposite effect of these amounts. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, v partcular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30,
2023, : ' Co

Capital inanagement

The Group's objectiva when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's abiiity to remain as 2 going concemn and
continue lo provide return for Government of Pakistan (GoP). The Group is solely financed by the shorehoiders'

The Group manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by manitoring refurn on net assats and
maxres adjustiments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order o maintain or adjust the capital
struciure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to GoP and / or issue new shares,

-
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BALANCES AND TRA?&$ACT30N3 WITH RELATED PARTIES

Tﬂp Crovp is contmllef* by Government of Pakusfaﬂ }ﬂer{"fore all entities owned aﬂd controlled by the Government

of Pakistan are related. parties of the Group. Other: related parties comprise subsidiaries, directors, major

shareholders, companies with common directorship, key management personnel and gratuity fund. The Group in

normal course of business pays for glectricity, gas, airfare, rent and telephone fo entities controlled by Government of

Pakisian which are not -material, hence not disclosed in these consolidsted financial statements. Significant
~ transactions of the Group with related parties and balances outstanding at the year end are as follows:

2024 S 2023

e R U PRES BN e s
Pakistan international Oil Limited {PIOL})- Associated Company - 25% share
holging of the tompany and common directorship
Cost of invastment 13,534,760 6,431,700
Share of loss in assouviaie {94,835) (287,110
Faidstan Minerals {?rivate} Limited (PMPL)- Assoclated Company - 32.3% share
helding of the company and cominon directorship
Cost of investment” 41,637,955 36,569,203
Share of loss in associate (2,173,332} (385,040,
Major shareholders
Government of Pakistan {160% share holding)
Dividend paid ' 7,800,000 5,000,000
KReceivable from GoP 71,898,087 73,447 486
Payakle to Gof* under ITFC arrangements 120,668,278 113,898,102
Re_ia:;e_:fé parties by virtuve of GoP holdings and / or common directorship
Fak Azéa%) Refinery Company Limnited
Saie of crude oi - net 13,859,941 9,850,008
Trade dabis as at June 30 2,918,111 1,945,705
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
Sale of naturat gas - net 19,617,883 17,173,12¢
Sale of RLNG - net 82,356,667 453,650,888

Trade debte as at June 30

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

153,283,120

165,062,672

Sale of natural yas - net 38,834,443 40,665 688
Trade debis as at June 30 150,905,020 125,041,959
Enar Petroleum Refining Facility

Sale of crude ol - net 688,737 657 609
Trade debts as at June 30 78,410 76,136
Pakistan Refinery Limited

Sale of crude ofl - nat 2,993,277 5,227 BES
Trade debls as at Juna 30 932,508 1,679,185

NATLL -
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Oil and Gas Deve&qpﬁzé_ﬂt Company Limited : S -

Receivable as at June 30 -

Pavable as af June 3¢

Expenditure charged by joint operation partner .. _ _
Cash calis paid against joint operation partner expenses
Pakistan Petroleum Limited .
Recalfab%easai.ﬁdne30 A .. .....
Fzyable as at June 30 o

Expenditure charged by joint operation partner

Cash calls paid against joint operation pariner expenses
National Eank of Pakistan

Balance of bank accounts

- Local Currency

~ Foreign Currenocy .

Balance of investrnent

- Foreign Currency.

Interest earnad during the year

Long term loan

Interest accrued on long term loan during the year

K-Electric Private Limited

Sale of regassified liquified natural gas - net
Paymenis recelved during the year
Trade debls at end of the year

Saindak Metals Limited

Balance receivable - naf

Expense incured on behalf of PLL
Expanse incurred on behalf of SML
Payments received

Paymenis made

TAPI Pipeline Company Limited - Joint Venture
Investment in joint venture
Other reiated parties

Contribution to gratuity fund {refer note 30.5)
Remuneration to key management personnel (refer note 39.3)

NUMBER OF EMLPOYEES

Nutnber of employees as at year end
Avarage numbsr of employees employed during the year

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

2024

1,262,140
2,947,002
6,241,912
5,811,868

87,528

1,066,361
1,494,498
1,603,272

855,276
30,811

4,676,006
458,757
71,899,087

14,580,316

139,410,030
123,888,187
6,541,843

1,026

184
1,784
1,222

258

1,670,024

180,857
506,692

2024

166
160

1,825,118
2,041,207
5.081.858
5,218,579

195,805

702,855
1,585,825
1,562,877

927,088

258,432
70,447 456
5,648,325

80,504,707
77,123,714
5,070,340

799
700

1,582,996

84,328
281,303

2023

investments cut of provident flind have been made in accordance with the provision of section 213 of the Companies

Act, 2017 and ruies formulated for this purpose.

£
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“70-
GENEFAL
o amct?v and prodm tzcm

Gowmrﬂem Haiqu" ﬁ?ravatc} Lzmeteﬁd {The Haédmg Lompany)
' Production for tha year

Product O Gt .  L T 2024 2023

Gas . CMMSCF 66,857 71,458
Ol - Barreis. _ . : 2,862,274 2,821 611
LPG Medtric ton 78,832 73,494

Due to the nature of operations of the Group, instalied capacity of above products is niot relevant.

Fv’ai’:'a'atéﬂ LN®G Limited (The Subsidiary Company)

Regasified liquified natural gas ' 2024 2023

o o in MMSCFD

Capacity . 600 500
268

Production -+ ' 418

Figuras have been rounded off to the pearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.
Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflact more approors(:t&

prasentation of events and transactions for the purpose of better nresentation in accordance with the
afzs:f:mming and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

{}p“k'% F AUTHORISATION OF ISBUE

These consciidated financial statements have been auihorised for issue oy the Board of Directors of the
Gmup in lts meetlnq h'.,id On Tl % aned The direciors have the power to amend and reissue thess

Chief E_xecative Officer 7 i)irc:tos'





